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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 39th Annual General Meeting of the members of Super Tannery Limited will be held
on Saturday the 30th September 2023 at 9:00 a.m. at 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur-208 010, the registered office
ofthe Company totransact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March 2023 the
Balance Sheet as on that date and the reports of Directors' and Auditors' thereon.

To Declare Dividend.

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Arshad Khan, who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment.

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Mohd. Imran, who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment.

To appoint M/S Kapoor Tandon & Company Chartered Accountants as Auditor of the Company and fix their
remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
Appointment of Dr. Rohit Mohan as an Independent Director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an  Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 149,152 and any other applicable provisions, of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’) read with Schedule IV 1o the Act, the Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules-2014, including any other Rules made there under and Regulation 16(1) (b)
and other applicable provisions ofthe SEBI {{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)Regulations 2015
("SEBI Listing Regulations™) as amended from time to time, and in accordance with Article 112 of Articles of
Association of the Company Dr. Rohit Mohan, (DIN 09629829) who was appointed as anAdditional Director (in
the capacity of a Non-Executive Independent Director) of the Company by the Board of Directors on 10th May,
2023 meeting, pursuant to section 161 of the Act and as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee the term of Dr. Rohit Mohan office expires at this Annual General Meeting (AGM) and in respect of
whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member along with deposit of the requisite amount
under section 160 of the Companies Act,2013 proposing his candidature for the office of Director and Dr.Rohit
Mohan, has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for independence as provided in section 149(6) of
the , be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company to hold office for a
term of 5 (Five) Consecutive Years Commencing from 30.02.2023, whose period of office will not be liable to
determination by retirement of directors by rotation.

*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts
and to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effectto this resolution”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 181 of the Companies Act, 2013, consent of the members be and is
hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to donate to charitable and other funds not directly
related to the business of the Company or the welfare of its employees up to the extent of Rs. 30.00 lacs (Rupees
thirty lacs only) during the financial year ending 31 March, 2024."

By Order of the Board of Directors
for Super Tannery Limited
R.K. Awasthi

Place . Kanpur
Company Secretary

Date : 12th Aug. 2023
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NOTES:

» AMEMBERENTITLED TOATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELFAND A PROXY NEED NOT BEA MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.
THE PROXY IN OREDR TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORETHE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

» Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the meeting are requested to
send a cerified copy ofthe Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at
the meeting.

» The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Special
Businesses is annexed hereto.

» The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 18" September to
30" September 2023 (both inclusive date) for dividend.

» Members holding shares in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested to write to the Company,
enclosing the Shares Certificate for consolidation of their holding into one folio.

» Members holding Shares in physical form are requested to notify the followings to the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent to facilitate better services.

1. Any change in their address under their signature clearly quoting, their folio numbers, old address
along with the changed address with Pin code.

2. Share certificate(s) held in multiple accounts in identical names or joint accounts in the same order of
the names for consolidation of such shareholding into one account.

3. Members holding shares in electronic form may inform any change in address to their Depository
Participant.

» Members holding Shares in electronic form are requested to provide their Client-ID and DP-ID numbers at the
meeting for easy identification.

» Members desirous of obtaining any information/clarification concerning the Accounts and Operation of the
Company are requested to address their queries in writing to the Company Secretary at least seven days before
the annual General Meeting, so that the desired information may be made available at the Annual general
Meeting, if the Chairman permits to do so.

» The Shares of the Company are compulsorily tradable in demat form. With effect from April 1, 2019 exceptin
case of request received for tfransmission or transposition of Securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks
associated with physical Shares and 1o ease of portfolio Management members holding shares in physical form
are requested to consider converting their holding to dematerialized form. The equity Shares of the Company
have been assigned ISIN INE460D01038. Members are requested to get their Shares dematerialized at the
earliestto make them tradable.

Members are requested to note that, dividend if not in cashed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the
date of transfer to unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investor
Education and protection Fund (*IEPF” The shares in respect of such un claimed dividends are also liable 1o
be transferred to the demat account ofthe |IEPF Authority. In view of this Members/claimants are requested to
claim their dividends from the Company, within the stipulated timeline, The Members whose unclaimed
dividends/shares have been transferred to IEPF, may claim the same by making an application 1o the IEPF
Authority, in Form No .IEPF 5 available on www.iepf.gov.in. The Members/claimants can file only one
consolidated claimin a Financial Year as per IEPF Rules.

As you may be aware Board of Directors of your Company at their meeting held on May 30, 2023, have
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declared a Dividend of Rs. 0.05/- per equity share (having a nominal value of Re. 01/- each) for the Financial
Year 2022-23.

As you may be aware, in terms of the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 ('the Act"), as amended by the
Finance Act, 2020, dividend declared, paid and distributed by a Company on or after 1st April, 2020 shall be
taxable in the hands of the shareholders. The Company will, therefore, be required to deduct tax at source at
the time of payment of the dividend atthe applicable rates as per the provisions ofthe said act.

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 shareholders are entitled to make nomination in respect of
share held by them in physical form. Shareholders desirous of making nomination are requested to send their
request in the prescribed Form to the Registrar and Transfer Agents, M/s. KFin Technologies Limited,
Hyderabad. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to consult/contact with their respective
Depository Participant {DP) for availing nomination facility.

Members are requested to notify immediately change in their address, PIN code, if any to company at its
registered office by quoting their folio number.

Members' proxies are requested to bring attendance slip duly completed for attending the meeting.

Brief Resume of all Directors including those proposed 1o be appointed, nature of their expertise in specific
functional areas, names of companies in which they hold Directorships and Memberships / Chairmanships and
Relationships between Directors inter—se as slipulated under Regulation27 of the listing agreement with the
Stock Exchangesin India, are provided in the report on Corporate Governance forming part ofthe Annual Report.

Voting through electronic means :

The instructions for e-voting are as under;

PROCEDURE FORREMOTEE-VOTING

Vi

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations
and in terms of SEBI vide circular no. SEBIYHO/CFD/CMD/ CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 8, 2020 in relation
to e-Voting Facility Provided by Listed Entities, the Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote
electronically, through the e-Voting services provided by KFintech , on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice.
The instructions for e-Voting are given herein below.

However, in pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 8, 2020 on “e-
Voting facility provided by Listed Companies”, e-Voting process has been enabled to all the individual demat
accountholders, by way of single login credential, through their demat accounts /websites of Depositories / DPs
in order to increase the efficiency ofthe voting process.

Individual demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the e-Voting
service provider (ESP) thereby not only facilitating seamless authentication but also ease and convenience of
participating in e-Voting process. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and e-mail 1D with their
DPsto access e-Voting facility.

The remote e-Voting period commences 27.9.2023 (9.00AM) and ends 29.09.2023(5.00FM)

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity share capital of the
Companyas on the cut-off date. 23.09.2023

Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the
Company and becomes a Member ofthe Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as ofthe cut-off
date, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoling@ Kfintech.com. However, ifhe/ sheis
already registered with KFintech for remote e-Voting then he /she can use his/her existing User ID and password
for casting the vote.
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vii. In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode and who acquires shares of the Company
and becomes a Member of the Company after sending ofthe Notice and holding shares as ofthe cut-off date may
follow steps mentioned below under “Login method for remote e-Voling and or attending physical meeting for
Individual shareholders holding securities in physical mode.”

viii. The details of the process and manner for remote e-Voting and -AGM are explained herein below:

Step 1: Access to Depositories e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in demat
mode.

Step 2: Access to KFintech e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical and non-
individual shareholders in demat mode.

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:

l. Login method for remote e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Type of :

shareholders e

Individual 1. Useralreadyregistered for|DeAS facility:

Shareholders holding I.  Visit URL: hitps:#/eservices.nsdl.com

securities in demat II.  Clickonthe “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” under'IDeAS' section.

mode with NSDL Ill.  On the new page, enter User ID and Password. Post successful authentication,

click on “Access to e-Voting”

IV. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider and you will be re-directed
to e-Voling service provider website for casting the vote during the remote e-
Voting period.

2.  Usernotregistered for IDeAS e-Services
I.  Toregister click onlink : https://eservices.nsdl.com
Il.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS” or click at
hilps:/feservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp
I1l.  Proceed with completing the required fields.
IV. Follow steps givenin points 1

3. Alternatively by directly accessing the e-Voting website of NSDL

I.  OpenURL: hitps:#eservices.nsdl.com/

Il.  Clickontheicon “Login®which is available under 'Shareholder/Member' section.

. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID {i.e. your sixteen digit
demat account number held with NSDL), Password / OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen.

IV. Post successful authentication, you will requested to select the name of the
company and the e-Voling Service Provider name, i.e. KFintech.

V. On successful selection, you will be redirected to KFintech e-Voting page for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.
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Type of
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders holding
securities in demat
mode with CDSL

1. Existing userwho have opted for Easi/Easiest

I.  Visit URL: hitps:/fweb.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
URL: www.cdslindia.com

Il.  Click on New System Myeasi

Ill.  Login with your registered userid and password.

IV. The user will see the e-Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of ESP i.e.
KFintech e-Voting portal.

V. Click on e-Voting service provider name to cast your vote.

2. Usernotregistered for Easi/Easiest
I.  Optiontoregisteris available at
hitps:/fweb.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
Il.  Proceed with completing the required fields.
1. Follow the steps givenin point1

3. Alternatively, by directly accessing the e-Voting website of CDSL
. Visit URL: www.cdslindia.com
Il.  Provide your demat Account Number and PAN No.
. System will authenticate user by sending OTP on registeraed Mobile & Email as
recorded in the demat Account.
IV. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective
ESP,i.e KFintech where the e- Voting is in progress.

Individual
Shareholder login
through their demat
accounts / Website of
Depository
Pariicipant

I.  You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
your DP registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.

Il.  Once logged-in, you will be able to see e-Voting option.Once you click on e-
Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository site after
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature.

I1l.  Click on options available against company name or e-Voting service provider —
Kfintech and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of KFintech for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voling period without any further authentication.

Important note: Members who are unable 1o retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use Forgot user ID and
Forgot Password option available at respective websites.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depositoryi.e. NSDLand CDSL.

Login Type

Helpdesk Details

Securities held with
NSDL

Please contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in orcall attoll free
no.: 18001020 290 and 1800 22 44 30

Securities held with
CDSL

Please contact CDSL helpdesk by sending arequest athelpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or
contactat022-23058738 or 022-23058542-43

Details on Step 2 are mentioned below:

1) Login method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual's shareholders holding securifies in
demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

{A) Members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/ Depository Participants (s), will receive an email
from KFintech which will include details of E-Voting Event Number (EVEN), USER ID and password. They will have to
follow the following process:
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i. Launch internet browser by typing the URL: hitps://evoting kfintech.com

ii.. Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and password). In case of physical folio, User ID will be EVEN (E-
Voting Event Number) xoocx, followed by folio number-n case of Demat account, User ID will be your DP 1D and Client
ID. However, if you are already registered with KFintech for e-voting, you can use your existing User ID and password
for casting the vote.

iii. After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN”.

iv. You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to mandatorily change your
password. The new password shall comprise of minimum 8 characters with at least one upper case (A- Z), one lower
case (a-z), onenumeric value (0-9) and a special character (@ #,$, etc.,). The system will prompt you to change your
password and update your contact details like mobile number, email ID ete. on first login. You may also enter a secret
question and answer of your choice to retrieve your password in case you forget it. It is strongly recommended that
you do not share your password with any other person and that you take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

V. You need o login again with the new credentials.
vi. On successful login, the system will promptyou to selectthe “EVEN” i.e., '39 AGM” and click on “Submit”
vii.  On the voting page, enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) as on the Cut-off

Date under “FOR/AGAINST” or alternatively, you may partially enter any number in “FOR” and partially “AGAINST”
but the total number in “FOR/AGAINST” taken together shall not exceed your total shareholding as mentioned herein
above. You may also choose the option ABSTAIN. If the Member does notindicate either “FOR” or "AGAINST” it will
be treated as “ABSTAIN” and the shares held will not be counted under eitherhead.

viii.  Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts shall choose the voting process separately for each folio/
demat accounts.

ix. Voting has to be done for each item of the notice separately. In case you do not desire to cast your vote on
any specific item, it will be tfreated as abstained.

*. You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on “Submit”.

Xi. Aconfirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm else “CANCEL” to modify. Once you have voted
on the resolution (s), you will not be allowed to modify your vote. During the voting period, Members can login any
number of imes till they have voted on the Resolution(s).

xii.  Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are also required to send
scanned cerified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board Resolution/Authority Letter etc., authorizing its representative
o attend the AGM . Together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorised representative(s), to the
Scrutinizer at email id kn.shridhar@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@kfintech.com. The scanned image of
the above-mentioned documents should be in the naming format “Corporate Name _ Super Tannery Limited 39" AGM
Even No.”

i The Members who have notcast their vote through remote e-voling shall be eligible to cast their vote
through voting system available during the AGM.

ii. AMember can opt for only single mode of voting i.e., through Remote e-voting or voting at the AGM. If
a Member casts votes by both modes, then voting done through Remote e-voting shall prevail and

. In case of any query and/or grievance, in respect of voting by electronic means, Members may refer
o the Help & Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and E-voting user manual available at the
download section of https://evoting kfintech.com (KFintech Website) or contact at evoting @ kfintech
.com or call KFintech's toll free No. 1-800-309-4001 for any further clarifications.
Il. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as on
23.09.2023, being the cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice. A
personwhois not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purposes
only. Once the vote on aresolution{s)is castby the Member, the Member shall noibe allowed to
change itsubsequently.
Ill. In case a person has become a Member of the Company after dispatch of AGM Notice but on or
before the cut-off date for E-voting, he/she may obtain the User ID and Password in the manner as
mentioned below:

i. If the mobile number ofthe memberis registered against Folio No./ DP ID Client ID, the member may
send SMS: MYEPWD <space> E-Voting Event Number+Folio No. or DP D Client ID to 9212993399

1. Examplefor NSDL.:
2. MYEPWD <SPACE=>IN12345612345678
=% Example for CDSL:
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4. MYEPWD <SPACE=> 1402345612345678
B. Example for Physical:
6. MYEPWD <SPACE> XXXX12345678%0

ii.. If e-mail address or mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No. / DP ID
Client ID, then on the home page of hitps://fevoting kfintech.com, the member may click
“Forgot Password” and enter Folio No. or DP ID Client ID and PAN 1o generate a password.

iii. Members who may require any technical assistance or support before or during the AGM
are requested to contact KFintech at toll free number 1-800-308-4001 or write to them at

evoting@kfintech.com.

IV.  The results of the electronic voting shall be declared to the Stock Exchanges afterthe AGM.
The results along with the Scrutinizer's Report, shall also be placed on the website of the
Company. vote atthe AGM shall be treated as invalid.

Procedure for Registration of email and Mobile: securities in physical mode

Physical shareholders are hereby noftified that based ion SEBI Circular number:
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37, dated March 16th, 2023, All holders of physical
securities in listed companies shall register the postal address with PIN for their corresponding folio
numbers. It shall be mandatory for the security holders to provide mobile number. Moreover, to avail
online services, the security holders can register e-mail 1D. Holder can register/update the contact
details through submitting the requisite ISR 1 form along with the supporting documents.

ISR 1 Form can be obtained by following the link: hitps:/fris kfintech.com/ clientservices fisc / default
-aspXx

ISR Form{s) and the supporting documents can be provided by any one ofthe following modes.

a) Through 'In Person Verification' (IPV): the authorized person of the RTA shall verify the original
documents furnished by the investor and retain copy(ies) with IPV stamping with date and initials; or
b) Through hard copies which are self-attested, which can be shared on the address below; or

Name: KFIN Technologies Limited
Address Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No 31 & 32, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddy, Telangana India - 500 032.

c) Through electronic mode with e-sign by following the link:

https //ris kfintech.com/clientservices/isc/default.aspx#

Detailed FAQ can be found on the link: hitps:{/ris kfintech.com/fag.himl

For more information on updating the email and Mobile details for securities held in electronic mode,
please reach out to the respective DP(s), where the DEMAT a/c is being held.

EVEN (E Voting Event Number) User ID Password

By Order of the Board of Directors

for Super Tannery Limited

Place : Kanpur R.K. Awasthi
Date : 12th Aug. 2023 Company Secretary
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

ltem No. 06

Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors appointed Dr.Rohit
Mohan,(DIN 09629829)as additional Director in the capacity of Non-Executive Independent Director w.e.f10" May
2023 by the Board of Directors in accordance with Article 112 of Articles of Association and section 149(6) 161 and
Schedule IV of Companies Act,2013 (the Act,) and Regulation 16 {1) (b) and other applicable provisions of
SEBI{Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements ) Regulation 2015

Pursuant to the provisions of section 161(1) of the Act Dr. Rohit Mohan, shall hold office up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting and is eligible to be appointed as Director, The Company has, in terms of section 160{1) of the Act
received in writing a Notice from a Member along with deposit of Rs 1.00 Lacs proposing the candidature of Dr. Rohit
Mohan, to be appointed as an Independent Non -Executive Director at the ensuing AGM notliable to retire by rotation,
Dr. Rohit Mohan has consented 1o the proposed appointment and declared qualified Dr. Rohit Mohan possesses
requisite knowledge experience skill for the position of Independent Director as per required criteria under the Act,
rules regulation made thereunder.

Based on the recommendation received from the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and in view of his
knowledge ,skills expertise related o the business of the Company, itis proposed to appoint Dr.Rohit Mohan as an
Independent Director Non-Executive Director of the Company in terms of section 149 read with section 152 of the
Companies Act, 2013 Dr.Rohit Mohan is notliable to retire by rotation Dr.Rohit Mohan if appointed will hold office fora
consecutive period of 5 years commencing from 30" September 2023

The Company has received a declaration from him to the effect that he meets the criteria of Independence as provided
in section 142(6) ofthe Actand Rules framed thereunderand Regulation 16{1){b) of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, he has confirmed that he is not aware of any circumstances or situation
which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair orimpact his abilityto discharge his duty.

In the opinion of the Board, he fulfills the conditions specified in the act and SEBI Listing Regulations for appointment
as an Independent Director and is Independent of the Management of the Company, the terms and conditions of his
appointment shall be open for inspection by the Members at the Registered office of the Company during the normal
business hours on any working day{except Saturday) and will also be kept open at the venue of the AGM fill the
conclusion ofthe AGM.

Accordingly, the Board recommends passing of the Ordinary resolution set out in ltem no 6 of the Notice in
relation to appointment of Dr.Rohit Mohan, as an Independent Director of the Company ,

Item No. 07

It has been the policy ofthe company to contribute in those charitable funds, which serve the society at large or for the
welfare of its employees, whether such charitable institution are directly related or not with the business of the
Company, the action of the Board is taken keeping in mind the responsibility that the Company owes to society as well
as to full fill the requirement of CSR by way of promoting preventive health care, promoting education, including
special education etc. Sometimes contribution so made exceed the limit prescribed by the section 181 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Board can not do such welfare work, beyond prescribed limit, without the approval of the
members. The aggregate of such contribution during the year ending 31.03.2024 is likely to exceed the limit as
prescribe by the Act. Therefore, your permission is requested.

The Directors recommend the resolution set outin itemno 7 ofthe Notice for approval of members.

None of the Director of the Company in any way whether, directly or indirectly, except as frustee of trust which
receive the fund, is interested or concerned in this resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors
for Super Tannery Limited

Place : Kanpur R.K. Awasthi
Date : 12th Aug. 2023 Company Secretary
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Dear Shareholder,

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the 39th Annual Report on the business and operations
ofthe Company together with Audited Financial Statements forthe year ended 31* March 2023:

Year endad Year ended
FINANCIAL RESULTS 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Rsinlacs Rs in lacs
PROFITS:
Profit before Interest, Depreciation & extra-ordinary items 1888.12 1705.93
| ess: | Interast 44563 386.03
Depreciation 655.65 626.86
Exchange Fluctuation Loss/(gains) 00.00 00.00
Bad Debts written off 27.93 1129.21 18.92 1041.81
Profit before tax 758.91 664.12
Less: | Provision for cument tax 180.00 162.00
Provision for deferrad tax 34.40 25.00
Income Tax relating to earier Years (61.37) 15303 | 74.20 261.20
Profit after tax 605.88 402.92
Add: | Profit brought forward from previous year 3138.57 2718.76
Cther Comprehensive Income 10.49 17.89
3150.06 2736.65
Profit avallable for appropriation 3755.94 3139.57

NOTE : Figuras of the previous year have basen re-grouped/re-arranged In order to make them comparabla.

DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors of your Company take pleasure to recommend a dividend of Rs.0.05(5%) per equity shares of
Re.1/each for the year ended 31st March, 2023 .subject to approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual general
Meeting. The dividend if approved, shall result in a payout of 8.91% current year profit available for appropriation.
This makes the Management Investor friendly and creates more confidence to keep the Investors interest at heart.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
The extract of Annual Return as provided under sub-section (3)of section 92 of the Companies Act,2013('the Actin
prescribed form MGT-2is uploaded on www.supertannery.com.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW:

During the year under review, the income from operation of the company was Rs 22,665.35 lacs as against
Rs 22,259.18 lacs during the last financial year, shows improvement in the operational income by Rs. 406.
lacs. The company overall growth is satisfactory despite recession in the market.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

The Company has Five subsidiaries namely: Super Corporation Limited, , Aarifi Tanners Limited, Secure
Safety Limited, Super Tannery (UK} Limited and Super [talia s.r.| . The Financial statement including
Consolidated Financial statement and separate statement in respect of each of its subsidiaries have also
been placed on the website of the Company. A statement containing salient feature of the Financial
Statement of subsidiariesfassociates companies is forming part of Annual Financial statement. The Annual
Accounts of the subsidiary companies will be kept open for inspection by any investor at the head office of
the Company and the subsidiary concerned.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:
During the period industrial relations have been extremely cordial. Employees' cooperation and co-ordination had
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been animportant factor in the growth ofthe organization.

EXPORT AWARD:
The Company received during the year The State Export Award -Uttar Pradesh for the overall export
performance for the year 2021-22 from the Hon'ble Chief Minister Mr. Yogi Adityanath.

FIXED DEPOSITS:
The Company has not accepted/renewed any deposit during the year under review, under the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed thereunder.

CREDIT RATING:
During the year under review Care Rating Limited reaffirmed the long-term rating of BBB (-) on the bank borrowings of
the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTINGTHE COMPANY:
There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between the
end offinancial year and date of Reports. There hasbeen no change in the nature ofbusiness ofthe Company.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Directors state that the Secretarial standardsi.e., $8-1, §8-2, $8-3 and S5-4 relating to Meetings ofthe Board
of Directors, General Meeting, Dividend and Report of Board of Directors respectively, have been duly followed by the
Company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:
The Company has in place adequate internal financial Controls with reference to financial statements. During the
year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed.

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT:

Employees are vital to the Company. We have created a favorable work environment that encourages humble
relationship. We have also setup a scalable recruitment and human resources management process, which enables
us to attract and retain high caliber employees. The Company also has started with collaboration of UP Leather
Industries Association a training center for recruiting trained labors.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL ACT, 2013:

Your Company strongly believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for each and every individual
working for the Company through various intervention and practices. It is the continuous endeavor of the
Management of the Company to create and provide an environment to all its employees that is free from
discrimination and harassment including Sexual harassment.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no complaint pertaining to sexual harassmentwas received bythe Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
Astatement of particulars of employees as specified underthe Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time, is
setoutin the Annexure forming part of Directors' Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, and FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING &
OUTGO:

The particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption etc. pursuantto Section 134(3) (m) ofthe Companies
Act, 2013, read with Rule & of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out in the Annexure forming part of this
Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THEREGULATORS OR COURTS ORTRIBUNALS:
No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals during the previous year which
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may impact the going concern status ofthe Company's Operation in the future.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISIM:

To create enduring value for all stakeholders and ensure the highest level of honesty, and ethical behavior in all its
operations, the Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism named as SUPER Whistle Blower Policy' in addition to
the existing code of conductthat governs the action of its employees. This Whislleblower policy aspires to encourage
all employees to report suspected or actual occurrence(s) of illegal, Unethical or inappropriate events (behaviors or
practices) that effect Company's interestimage. A copy of the Policy is available on the website of the Company and
may be accessed through the web link www:hipp //supertannery.com

DIRECTORS & KMP:

Interms of Article 125 ofthe Articles of Association ofthe Company, Mr. Arshad Khan and Mr. Mohd. Imran , Directors
of the Company retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers themself for their
re-appointment. Brief resume of all the Directors, their expertise in specific functional areas and names of other
companies in which Directorship held and the membership of committee of the Board as stipulated under the listing
Agreementare given in corporate governance annexure, attached to this report.

DECLARATIONBYINDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet
with the criteria of independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of section 149 ofthe Companies Act,2013.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS'APPOINTMENT AND REMUENRATION:

For the purpose of selection of any Director, the Nomination &Remuneration Committee identifies persons of
integrity who posses' relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities required for the position and also takes
into consideration recommendation, ifany received from any member ofthe Board. The Commitiee also ensures that
the incumbent fulfills such other criteria with regard 1o age and other qualifications as laid down under the Companies
Act, 2013 or other applicable laws.

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination &Remuneration Committes framed a policy for selection,
appointment and remuneration of Directors &senior Management.

The Remuneration policy of the Company is disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms a partofthe
report.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FORTHEINDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 27 of the listing Agreement, the Company has putin place a
Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors to familiarize them with the Company, their roles rights
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the Company in which Company operates, business model etc.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
Pursuant to Regulation 27 of the Listing Agreement, a report on Corporate Governance is given in Annexure to this
report.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) read with section 134(3)( c ) of the Companies Act, 2013 with
respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

(i) That in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2023, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(i) That the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company atthe end ofthe financial year and ofthe profit orloss of the Company for that period,

(iii) That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
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preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) That the Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2023 on a going concern
basis.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

In accordance with Accounting Standard AS-21 on Consolidated Financial Statements, your directors have
pleasure in attaching the Consolidated Financial Statements which form part of Annual Reports and
Accounts. These consolidated financial statements include accounts of Super Tannery (U.K.) Limited, Aarifi
Tanners Limited, Super Corporation Limited Secure Safety Limited, and Super ltalias.r.l.

AUDITORS: M/s. Kapoor Tandon & Company Chartered Accountants, Kanpur (Registration No.000952C) the
Statutory Auditors of the Company are retiring at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, we
recommended their re-appointment. They have furnished a Cerlificate to the effect thattheir re- appointment ifmade,
will be in accordance with the provisions ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013.

COSTAUDITOR:
As required under the Companies {Cost Accounting Records) Rules 2011, the requirement of Cost Audit report does
not applicable to the Company as per MCAcircular. Hence noreport was filed.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/S K.N. Shridhar, & Associates,
Company secretary Kanpurto underiake the secretarial Audit ofthe Company.

The Secretarial Audit Reportis annexed herewith as “MR3”
The Audit Report and the Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2022-23 does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark by the Auditors.

LOANS, GURANTEES & INVESTMENTS:
The particulars of Loans, guarantees and investments have been disclosed in the financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is available on the website of the Company
WWw.supertannery.com.

All contracts/amrangements entered by the Company during the previous financial year with the related parties were in
the ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis. The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors reviewed
the transaction (which are repetitive in nature) and the Audit Committee granted approval for such transactions.

The disclosures as required under AS-18 have been made in notes forming part of the standalone financial
statement. The particulars of contracts or arrangements entered in to by the company with related parties referred to
in sub-section (1) of section 188ofthe companies Act, 2013 has been disclosed in Form No. AOC-2 which is annexed
hereto.

AUDITORS' REPORT:
The comments of the Auditors in their Audit Report and reference to “Notes on Accounts” forming part of the Financial
Results are self-explanatory and need no further comments.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your directors would like to express their gratitude and appreciation for the continued support and co-operation
received from State Bank of India, Central & State Government Authorities, Regulatory Bodies, Stock Exchanges and
Shareholders.

Your directors wish to place their deep sense of appreciation on record for the devoted services of the officers, staff
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and workers of the Company.

On behalf ofthe Board of Directors

Place: KANPUR

IFTIKHARUL AMIN MOHD.IMRAN
Date: 12.08.2023

Managing Director Whole Time Direcfor
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ANNEXURE I TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Statement as required under Section 134(3)m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the
Companies{Accounts) Rules, 2014 .
{(a) ConservationofEnergy:

(1)

(2)
(3

)

Energy conservation measures taken:

Upgradation of power generation and distribution systems for long term energy savings. Special
emphasis has been laid on boiler and steam generation.

Additional investments and proposal, ifany, being implemented for reduction of consumption of energy:
Introduction of energy saving devices and systems in process machines.

Impact of the measures at (1) & (2) above for the reduction of energy consumption and consequent
impact on the cost of production of goods:

Energy conservation measures have helped in generation of required quantity of steam at a minimum
costwhich resulted inimproving efficiencies and reduction in costs.

Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production as per Form A of the Annexure
in respect ofindustries specified in the Schedule thereto: NotApplicable

(b} TechnologyAbsorption: Research and Development (R & D):

(1)

(2)

(3)

Specificareain which R & D carried out by the Company:

(a) New product development based on different raw hides/skins.

(b) Apartfrom production of safety footwear establishing standard products for fashion shoes/sandals.
Benefits derived as aresult ofthe above R& D:

{a) Costreduction and betterunitrealization.

{b) Better product acceptance.

Future plan of action:

Tocontinue toinvestin R & D for faster introduction of new products.

(4) ExpenditureonR& D:
2022-23 2021-22
(Rsinlacs) (Rsinlacs)
{(a) Capital (HHHH (HHHH
(b} Recurring 5.40 2.18
(c}) Total 5.40 2.18
(d) Total R & D Expenditure as % ofturnover  0.02% 0.01%

Technology Absorption, Adoption And Innovation:
(1) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adoption and innovation:

The Company is using indigenous technology and is developing in house technology and is not
dependant on any outside technology / source.

{(2) Benefits derived as aresult ofthe above efforts: Not Applicable
(3) Incase of imported technology {Imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of the

financial year):

{a) Technologyimported

(b) Yearofimport

{c) Hastechnologybeen fully absorbed?

{d) Ifnotfully absorbed, areaswhere nottaken place,
reasons therefore and future plan of action

Not Applicable

5 gt g

{c) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO:

(1)

(2)

Activities relating to exports, initiative taken to increase exports, development of new export markets or
products and export plans:

On Export front, Company's performance is quite satisfactory and itis expected to be strong in the time
1o come.

Total foreign exchange earned & used:

2022-23 2021-22

(Rsinlacs) (Rsinlacs)
(a) Foreign exchange earned (FOB value of exports) 17,504 .66 17,072.90
(b) Foreign exchange used 2,449.44 2,693.28
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(d) STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF MANAGING AND JOINT MANAGING DIRECTORS FORMING
PART OF THE DIRECTORS' REPORT:

Namea Deslignation | Gross Qualification |Experienca | Date of Age Particulars

Remuneration (Years) Commencement | (Years) |of previous
of employment amploymen

Mr. Managing Rs24,00,000 Post 38 06.02.1984 65 Promoter

iftikharul | Director Graduate

Amin

Mr. Jt.Managing | Rs.24,00,000 | Graduate 34 21.12.1988 82 Promoter

Igbal Direcior

Ahsan

Mr. Director 00 Leather 32 01.01.1980 &0 Promoter

Vagarul Technologist

Amin

Notes:

1. Mr. Iftikharul Amin, Mr. Igbal Ahsan and Mr. Veqarul Amin being brothers are related to each other within the
meaning of schedule |1Aof CompaniesAct, 2013.

2. Remuneration includes salary and perquisites as per rules of the company and recorded under the Income
TaxAct, 1961.

On behalfofthe Board of Directors

Place: KANPUR IFTIKHARUL AMIN MOHD.IMRAN
Date: 12.08.2023 Managing Director Whole Time Director
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ANNEXURE -1l TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

In accordance with the Regulation 17-to 270of { LODR) Regulation 2015 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchanges in India {(Regulation27) and some of the best practices followed internationally on Corporate
Governance, the report containing the details of govemance system and processes at Super Tannery Limited is as
under:

Corporate Governance Philosophy

At Super Tannery Limited it is our belief that as we move closer towards our aspirations of becoming a global
corporation our corporate governance standard must be globally benchmarked. That gives us confidence of having
put in the right building blocks for future growth and ensuring that we achieve our ambitions in a prudent and
sustainable manner.

Shareholders Communications

The Board recognizes the importance of two-way communication with shareholders for giving a balanced report of
results & progress and responds to the questions and issues raised in a timely and consistent manner. Shareholders
seeking information may contact the Company directly throughout the year. They also have an opportunity to ask
questions in person at the Annual General Meeting. Shareholders can contact the company via dedicated
shareholder contact points as provided with this report or through any of Investor Service Centre of the Company's
Registrars and Transfer Agents. The company ensures that queries, complaints and suggestions areresponded in a
timely and consistent manner.

Role of Company Secretary in Overall Governance Process

The Company Secretary holds a key role in ensuring that the Board Procedures are followed and regularly reviewed.
The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details and documents are made available to the
directors and senior management for effective decision making at the meeting. The Company Secretary is primarily
responsible to ensure compliance with applicable statutory requirements and is the interface between the
management and regulatory authorities for governance matters. All the Directors of the company have access to the
advice and services ofthe Company Secretary.

Observance of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India

The Institute of the Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), one of the premier professional bodies in India, has issued
Secretarial Standards on important aspects like Board Meetings, General Meeting, Payment of Dividend,
Maintenance of Registers and records, Minutes of Meetings, Transmission of Shares and Debentures, Passing of
Resolution By Circulation, Affixing of Common Seal, Forfeiture of Shares and Board's Report although these
standards are recommendatory in nature, the Company substantially adheres to the standards voluntarily.

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

(i) The Board of Directors comprises five Executive Directors (including Managing Director & Joint Managing
Director) and Six Non-Executive Directors. Out of 11 Directors Four directors are Independent and Non-
executive Directors, Women director is Independent non-executive Chairperson and two are non-
Independent and non-Executive directors.

(i) None of the directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than 5
committees as specified in the regulation across all the Companies in which hefshe is a director. Necessary
disclosure about position in other public companies as on 317 March 2023 has been made by the Director.

(i) The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board meetings held during the
year and the number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanship/Membership held by them in other
companies is given below. Other directorships do not include alternate directorship and directorship of
private limited companies, Chaimanship/Membership of Board Committees included on Audit,
Remuneration and Shareholder/Investors Grievances commitiees.

(iv) The present strength of the Board is 11 comprises Five executive and Six non-executive directors. During
the year 2022-23, the Board met 5 times (as against the minimum requirement of four meetings) on the
following dates: 30" May, 13" Aug 2022,12" November,2022, 31% January 2023 and 14" Feb 2023, the
maximum time gap between any two board meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days.
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The following table gives details of directors' attendance atthe Board meetings and atthe last Annual General
Meeting, number of memberships held by director in the Board/Committees of various companies:

Name Category | Aftendance Particulars | Number of other Directorships
Committes Member/Chalrman
Board Last AGM Director- Other Committee
Meatings ships Committes  [Chairman
Membership
Iftikharul Amin MD 5 Yes 4 1
Igbal Ahsan JMD 3 Yeas 5 1
Yegarul Amin NED 5 Yes 2
Imran Siddigui ED 5 Yos 2
Arshad Khan ED 5 YES
Mohd. Imran ED 4 YES 2 1
| Yogendra Singh Katlyar NED 4 Yes
Kumud Behar Seth NED 4 1 3 1
P. K. Sinha NED 4 Yos 1 3 1
Sadia Kamal NED 5 Yes 2
Aftab Ahmad NED 5 Yes 2 3 1

MD-Managing Director; JMD-Joint Managing Director; ED-Executive Director; NED-I-Non-
Executive Director —Independent.

None of the Director is member of more than 10 committees or Chairman of more than 5 committees across all
companies in which hefshe is Director. Brief resume of Directors seeking re-appointment, nature oftheir expertise
in specific functional area, is given here under:

Mr. Arshad Khan: Mr. Arshad Khan, Age 58 years is a Graduate and has been associated with the Company for
the last 27 years and closely involve in the export marketing of finished leather of Company. He was introduced in
the Board in the year 2000 as Additional Director and was regularized at the 16" Annual General Meeting of the
Company as a whole time Director. He has vast experience of export of leather and leather products. He has
visited many countries for this purpose and gained rich experience. His service is required for steering the export
of the company. Mr. Khan is not director of any other company.

Mr. Mohd. Imran: Mr. Mohd. Imran (55 years) is a Chartered Accountant having experience in export, import,
accounts, excise, customs and foreign trade matters. He is very initiative and closely associated with the
company since long time. Mr. Mohd Imran is also director in Secure Safety Limited and Super Tannery (UK)
Limited.

Dr. Rohit Mohan: Dr. Rohit Mohan, age 64 years is MSc-Ph.D. (Chemistry) having experience of 40 years in the
field of Administration, The designations held by Dr. Rohit Mohan are as under. Head of the Department of
Chemistry D.AV. (Post Graduate) College Kanpur, Convenor of the Chemistry, C.5.J.M. University Kanpur and
Dean Faculty of Science, C.S5.J.M. University Kanpur. He was introduced in the Board of Director ofthe company
on May 10" 2023 as an additional Director (Non-Executive Independent) of the Company and will be regularized
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company as a Non-Executive Independent Director notliable to
retire by rotation.

2. AUDIT COMMITTEE:
The Audit Committee consists of three Members - Mr. Kumud Behari Seth (Non-Executive Independent Director)
acts as Chairman, Mr. Aftab Ahmad {(Non-Executive Independent Director) member and Mr .P.K. Sinha (Non-
Executive Independent Director) member of the committee. During the year 4 meetings were held one of which
was before finalization of annual accounts. The said meetings were held on 30" May ,2022 13" Aug.2022, 12th
Nov. 2022, and 14" February 2023. The meetings of the commitiee were attended by the members of the
committee. Mr. Kumud Behari Seth hasfinancial and accounting knowledge.
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The meetings of Audit Committee were attended by the heads of accounts & finance and other respective
functional heads and statutory auditors as invitees. Members held discussion with the statutory auditors during
the meetings of the Commitiee and half yearly and annual audited financial accounts of the company were
reviewed by the Audit Committee before consideration and approval by the Board. The Committee reviewed the
internal control systemalso.

The terms of reference specified by the Board to the Audit Committee are as contained under Regulation 17-27 of
(LODR) ofthe Listing Agreement. They are as follows:

a. Oversight ofthe company's financial reporting process and the disclosure ofits financial information.

b. Recommending the appointment and removal of external auditors, fixation of audit fee and also approval
for payment for any other services.

c. Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board, {i) the going

concern assumption {ii) compliance with accounting standards (iii) compliance with stock exchange and
legal requirements conceming financial statements.

d. Reviewing the adequacy ofinternal audit functions.
e. Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow-up there on.
f. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is

suspected fraud orirreqularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the Board.

g. Discussion with external auditors before the audit commences nature and scope of audit as well as post-
audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

3. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
For better compliance of Corporate Governance, the Remuneration Committee of the Company has been
designed to determine Company's policy on specific remuneration package of Executive Directors on the basis
oftheir performance. The Remuneration and Commission decided by the Committee are paid in accordance with
the Companies Act, 2013. The Composition of Remuneration Committee is as follows:

Name Status
Mr. Aftab Ahmad (Non Executive Director - Independent) Chairman
Mr. Kumud Behari Seth (Non Executive Director - Independent) Member
Dr.Rohit Mohan {(Non-Executive Director-Independent) Member
Mr. P.K.Sinha (Non Executive Director - Independent) Member

Note. Mr. Kumud Behari Seth resigned on 10.05.2023 and Dr. Rohit Mohan Appointed as an Non-Executive
Independent Director from 10.05.2023.

Details of remuneration paid to Directors are given below :

Name of Director Salary | Sitting Fees Total
including (RsTin lacs)

perquisites

Mr. Iftikharul Amin 24,00,000 - 24,00,000

Mr. Igbal Ahsan 24,00,000 - 24,00,000

Mr. Vegarul Amin -- -- -

Mr. Imran Siddiqui 708000 - 708000

Mr. Mohd. Imran 394000 - 394000

Mr. Arshad Khan 438000 - 438000

The Non -Executive Directors are not paid any remuneration.

4. SHAREHOLDERSYINVESTORS' GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:

The Company has constituted Shareholders' / Investors' Grievance Committee (the committee), comprising
Mr.P.K.Sinha, Chairman, Mr. Iftikharul Amin and Mr. Igbal Ahsan. The Committee, inter-alia, approves issue of
duplicate cerificates and reviews all matters connected with the securities transfer. The Committee also looks
into redressing of Shareholders'/ Investors' Complaints like fransfer of shares, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-
receipt of dividends etc. Mr R.K. Awasthi, the Company Secretary acts as a Secretary of the Commitiee as well as
Compliance Officer. Total No. of complaints received and replied to the satisfaction of shareholders during the
yearwas 85. No outstanding complaints were lying unresolved as on 31st March 2023. No investors' grievances
are pending for a period exceeding one month with the Company.
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CSR COMMITTEE:

The Company has constituted CSR Committee (the committee), comprising Mr. Kumud Behari Seth, Chairman,
Mr. Mohd. Imran, and Mr. Igbal Ahsan. The Committee, inter-alia, approves the CSR activities as run by the
Company through its Amin Welfare Trust. Besides this it has been the policy of the Company to take up activities
such as healthecare including preventive healthcare, education etc. During the year company has spent more
than 2%of the average net profit of the Company through the Hospital and Schools. The basic aim of the
Company CSR policy toimprove the lives ofthe local Community.

Note. Mr.Kumud Behari Seth, Chairman of CSR Committee was resigned on 10.05.2023 and Dr. Rohit Mohan, a
Non-Executive Independent Directorwas appointed on 10.05.2023 1o act as Chairman of CSR Committee.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:
During the last three years, following Annual General Meetings (AGM) & Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM)
were held:

Year Location Date Time

2019-20 (AGM) 187/170 Jajmau Kanpur 30.08.2020 9.00AM

2020-21(AGM) 187/170 Jajmau Kanpur 30.09.2021 9.00AM

2021-22(AGM) 187/170 Jajmau Kanpur 30.08.2022 S.00AM
DISCLOSURE:

(a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions i.e. transactions of the Company of material
nature, with its promoters, the directors or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have
potential conflict with the interests ofthe Company atlarge.

None of the fransacifions with any of the relafed parties were in conflict with the inferest of the
Company. All the refated parly fransactions are negoliated on arms lengith basis and are only
intended to safeguard the interest of the company. Wherever necessary, the refated party
transactions are disclosed in Nofes fo the Accounis, forming part of the Annual Repori.

(b) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three
years.

There were no insfances of non-compliance of any matter refafed fo the capital markets during the
fast three years.

. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

Quarterly Results: The quarterly results were published in the "Financial Express (English), New Delhi and
“Jansatta (Hindi), Kanpur. The Management Discussion and Analysis (M D & A) is a part of Annual Report.

. INSIDER TRADING:

In accordance with Securities & Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation 1992, as
amended in February 2002, the Board of Directors of the company formulated the code of conduct for prevention
ofinsider trading in shares of the company by its employees.

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERINFORMATION:

10.1: ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: Date and Time 30" September 2023 at 9:00 a.m.
Venue—187/170, Jajmau, KANPUR-208 010.

10.2: FINANCIAL CALENDAR (1stApril 2022 to 31st March 2023:

BOARD MEETINGS:

Results for the quarter ending 30.06.2022: 2™ week of August 2022

Results for the quarter ending 30.09.2022: 2™ week of November 2022

Results for the quarter ending 31.12.2022: 2™ week of February 2023

Results for the quarter ending 31.03.2023: Last week of May 2023 (as per Listing Agreement.}
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10.3:

10.4:

10.5:

10.6:

10.7:

10.8:

10.9:

BOOK CLOSURE DATE/ record date: 16" September 2023 to 30" September 2023 (both days inclusive)
for dividend.

Dividend payment date: Credit/dispatch of divided between 17 Qctober 2023 10 5" October 2023

(a) LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES ON STOCK EXCHANGES AT:
1.The Stock Exchange, Mumbai, Phiroze Jegjeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, MUMBAI-400001.

NOTE: Annual Listing Fees for the year 2023-24 as applicable has been paid to the BSE.
(b) DEMATISIN NUMBERS IN NSDL & CDSL: Equity Shares INE460D01038

STOCK CODE: Trading in Mumbai Stock Exchange and Stock Code is 523842.
Performance of Company’s Equity Share

Months Company’s Equity Share
High Low

April 2022 9.60 5.09
May 2022 8.70 6.10
June 2022 7.63 5.14
July 2022 8.70 6.12
August 2022 7.39 6.50
September 2022 8.65 6.74
QOctober 2022 7.79 6.55
November 2022 7.15 6.60
December 2022 8.00 6.32
January 2023 8.00 6.55
February 2023 7.46 6.51
March 2023 717 545

REGISTRARAND TRANSFERAGENT:

KFinTechnologies Lid.

Karvy Selenium Tower B”, Plot No 31&32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Gachibowli,
HYDERABAD-500032 Telangana,India

Phone: 40-87162222, 33211000 ; Fax: 40-23420814

Email: einward.ris@kfintech.com

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM:

In compliance of SEBI Circular No.D&CC/FITTC/CIR-15/2002 dated 27th December 2002, your
Company has appointed common agency to shareholders for all the work relating to share registry in
terms of both physical and electronic at single point by our Registrar & Transfer Agent i.e. KFIN
Technologies Ltd. (KTL.) Hyderabad. The share transfers, which are received in physical form, are
processed and the share cerificates returned within a period of 10 to 15 days from the date of receipt,
subjectto the documents being valid and complete in all respect.

SHARE HOLDING PATTERNAS ON 31.03.2023

S. No. | Description Cases Shares | % Equtiy
1 BANKS 1 3000 0.00

2 Clearing Members 3 166 0.00

3 DIRECTORS AND THEIR RELATIVES 10 | 63426346 58.74

4 HUF 169 911649 0.84
5 BODIES CORPORATES 38 3150406 2.92

6 NRI Non-Repatriation 36 128226 0.13

7 NON RESIDENT INDIANS 70 324642 0.30
8 RESIDENT INDIVIDUALS 13014 [ 36344011 33.68

8 IEPF 1 3683914 M
Total: 13342 | 107973360 100.00
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10.10: Distribution Schedule as on 31st March 2023:

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE AS ON 31/03/2023
Sno | Category Cases | % of Cases Amount % Amount

1|uptol -5000 12379 92.78 12537627.00 11.62
2 (5001 -10000 553 4.14 4007011.00 371
310001 -20000 212 1.59 3113986.00 2.88
4 | 20001 -30000 62 0.46 1570459.00 145
5130001 -40000 20 0.15 708835.00 0.67
6 | 40001 - 50000 23 0.17 1090267.00 1.00
7 | 50001 -100000 47 0.35 3427026.00 3.17
8 | 100001 & ABOVE 46 0.34 81518149.00 75.50

Total: 13342 100.00 107973360.00 100.00

16.11:DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY:
The company has entered into agreement with NSDL and CDSL for the dematerialization of its equity
shares. The equity shares ofthe company are frequently traded on the BSE. Approximately 91.25 % of
the equity sharesissued by the Company have been dematerialized up to 31st March 2023.

10.12: OUTSTANDING GDR/ADRWARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS, CONVERSION
DATE AND LIKELY IMPACT ON EQUITY : Nil

10.13: PLANT LOCATIONS:

(a) ChromeTannery : 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur-208 010
(b) Sole Tannery 2 (i) Mona Nagar, Jajmau, Kanpur-208010.
: (i) 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur—208 010
{c) Fashion Shoe Division 6, Akrampur, Unnao—209 801
{d) Footwear Division : 169, Jajmau, Kanpur-208 010.
{e) Safety Shoe Division : Leather Technology Park, Banthar, Unnao, U.P.

10.14: ADDRESS FORINVESTORS' CORRESPONDENCE:
Shareholders correspondence should be addressed to our Registrar & Transfer Agents at the address
mentioned above. Shareholders may also contact Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the
Company at:
187/170, Jajmau, Kanpur-208010
Phone: 0512-7522000371, 7522000372, 7522000373 Fax: 0152-2460792,
E-mail: share@supertannery.com; info@supertannery.com.
Website: www.supertannery.com
Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence to their
respective Depository Participant.

11. CODEOF CONDUCT:
The Company has a code of conduct applicable to its Directors and senior management personnel.
Declaration as required under the Listing Agreement:

All Directors and senior management of the company have affirmed compliance with company's Code of
Conductforthe financial year ended 31* March 2023.

IFTIKHARUL AMIN
Kanpur: 12.08.2023 Managing Director
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12. NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:
The company has adopted non-mandatory requirements to the following extent:
Chairman of the Board — The Company does not have a Chaimman. At every Board meeting, a Director is elected
to preside over the meeting. The company has constituted Remuneration committee ofthe Board.

On behalfofthe Board of Directors

Place: KANPUR IFTIKHARUL AMIN MOHD.IMRAN
Date: 12.08.2023 Managing Director Whole Time Director
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industry Structure and Development:

The Indian Leather Industry plays a significant role in the Indian Economy in view of its substantial export earnings,
employment generation and growth opportunities. The export of leather and leather products has increased over
past few years.

The Company is striving high 1o capture over Global Market in respect of Leather and Leather Products. The
Company has taken various steps to promote company's products all over the world and it is being done in line with
global trends to enhance scale, global competitiveness and financial flexibility and also to contribute towards
achievement of company's objective and to increase revenue, production volume, market shares and shareholder's
returns.

Your company in view of the competitive scenario has taken various steps to meet these challenges and also
capitalize on budding opportunities available. The company is regularly carrying out detailed analysis of leather
industry and has been making all possible efforts to understand the various minutiae of the emerging market
scenario. The company has been investing considerable amount of funds on its Research & Development Programs
in order to enrich and improve the quality of products.

Opportunities:

Company has gained reputation and established itself globally as Supplier of quality products. The company has
demonstrated global competitiveness and has achieved international standards for the quality of its products and its
immense capabilities provide massive opportunities in the foreign market. Company's overall strategy is to enhance
shareholder value by receiving better returns through a long-term investment.

Threat:

The company is fully aware of the factors dictating competition and has been investing with the ups and downs
through its various effective measures like cost optimization, competitive pricing, improved production process and
enhanced customer satisfaction.

Even under difficult operating conditions, company has been consistently performing at its best. It is expected that
company's sound policies, competitive cost position will enable the company to lead the market effectively.

To existin the competitive market and improve the value of shareholder, company is consistently considering all the
significant factors, which provide sharp edges that enable company to enhance the margin.

Out Look:

Company's maximum operational income is based on the margin on export of leather and leather products. As most
of part of the earning is realized from Export, out look depends upon the global economic scenario, global demand
and supply and International product prices. Above all the performance of your company largely depends on the Ex-
imp policy of the Union Government. Looking at the overall development of the Indian economy and the efforis of the
Central Government to achieve higher GDP, Board of directors of your company is very much optimistic to the future
ofthe Company.

Risks and Concerns:

Although Your Company does not perceive any serious threat, still company is taking care against the risk of growing
pressure of prices, foreign exchange rates variation, current and future litigation, working capital management, bad
debts etc. Foreign exchange liabiliies / revenues are mainly concerned with the company's operation. Regular
monitoring of movement of foreign exchange rates is carried out and decisions are taken as to when outstanding are
to be covered and payments are to be made. Working Capital requirement are 1o be keptat minimum level in orderto
maintain the lowest possible interest rate.

Company has strongly prepared itself to meet cutthroat competition in global market by adhering to international
quality standards ofits product.

In addition to above company has overall risk management strategy, follows such practices & policies that are
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framework of efficient managementto count the risk in advance.

Internal Control System and their Adeguacy:

The company has made sufficient arrangement for internal control system and its monitoring for keeping proper
record ofthe purchase of raw materials, stores, components, plant and machineries, equipment's and all other assets
for production and sale of finished leather and leather products. The company has clearly fixed rules and
responsibilities for all management personnel and all operational activities are well controlled. The system ensures
authorization of all ransactions, records and the reports correctly and properly through computerized system.

The Audit committee of the Company also re-examines adequacy of internal controls, systems of risk management
policies adopted by the Company.

Company's Laws and Regulations are also reviewed by the internal Audit Team regularly from time to time and its
report is submitted to the promoters and put up in every Board Meeting. In order to provide sufficient support for
business promotion of the company, the finance and commercial functions have been properly set. The company
takes into account from time to time and Analysis its progress in accordance with the Laws and Regulations set by the
internal auditors and report to the Board in every Board Meeting in support of best practices for internal control,
standard operating norms and guidelines are being issued. The Company also incorporates all financial operating,
and information technology systems are also evaluated from time to time.

Environment and safety:

The Company feels its responsibility and is fully aware of the importance to achieving exhibiting healthy
environmental performance by checking effect of its activities, product or services for the environment. The
environment policy of the company fully complies with the environmenial laws and prevention of water, air and noise
pollution and all efforts are made for continual improvement in the environmental performance. The Company has
also initiated focusing its attention on "Charter on Corporate Responsibility" under the policy of the Government of
India. The Company takes all measure to save and minimize the environmental effect on air, water by stricily using
and further sounding its environmental managementi system to meet its objective. The Company ensures providing
safe work place, machines and safety control measures within the organization and a sense of safety consciousness
is spread amongst all the workmen, employees and supervisors.

Industrial Relations and Human Resources Development:

The Company gives much importance to maintain good relations with its employees ensuring that employees feel
valued and energetic in creating an atmosphere and culture so thatthey can maximize their contribution in increasing
the growth and further development of the company, and in turn the Company thinks of individual growth of its
employees for their dedicated participation in organizational development.

The company's priority is to reduce the employee's turnover ratio. The company's approach and efforts are to create
congenial work environment for individual growth, which enable the development of whole organization. Relationship
with the employees remains cordial through out the year. The company has a team of over 500 dedicated employees
working towards the company's mission.

Discussion of Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance:

Effective working management is regularly concentrating to reduce the cost of debt as much as possible. Prudent
cash management endeavor to utilize the optimum Working Capital in order to reduce the interest cost and also to
avoid the bottleneck of company's operation.

Research & Development
The company is committed to continue technological innovation, physical and chemical standardization and
improvementio achieve high standards of product quality and customer satisfaction

Key factors that keep the company one step ahead:

Extensive interaction with the latesttechnological developments.

Presence in all major trade fairs, seminars and workshops for optimum knowledge up gradation.
Well qualified and progressive workforce.

Fully equipped Laboratory

oo
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The tannery units of the company work under guidance of a well-equipped laboratory conducting physical and
chemical tests. It also has a pilottannery to conduct trials of new leathers at a small scale before its implementationin
bulk production. The laboratory has all the requisites to perform tests of leather as per EN, ISO and DIN standards.
The company is amongst few companies which provide certification as per the REACH guidelines of European
Chemicals Agency.

Design Studio: The footwear units of the company conduct their production as per the guidance of a newly built, state
of the art designing cell, lead by well qualified shoe technologists and designers. Dueto a rapid change in the product
profile over the past few years, this studio was installed keeping in mind the ever-changing tests and preferences of
the customers, while keeping time frame into consideration.

Quality Assurance: Amajor factor which keeps the company ahead is its obsession with total quality, which includes
products of the highest standards, quick and efficient customer service, leading to complete customer satisfaction.
Factorslike these help the company to retain customers, some ofthem, for as long as 31 years.

Cautionary Statement:

Statements in the Management Discussion & Analysis Report which seek to describe the company's objectives,
projections estimates, expectations and predictions may be considered to be "forward looking statements” and are
stated as required by applicable laws and regulations. Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied.
Many factors including global and domestic demand-supply conditions, prices, raw materials availability,
technological changes, changes in Government policies, tax laws and other statues may affect the actual results,
which could be different from what the Directors’ envisage in terms of future performance and out look.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Social Responsibility:

Super Tannery Limited (STL) believes in total commitment to society. The promoters of the company run an
organization known as AMIN WELFARE TRUST (AWT ) which follows the motto of "Fromoting Hope in Life." This trust
has taken up number of social causes in the field of EDUCATION & HEALTHCARE.

STL nurtures relationships across the entire range of stakeholders, which has the Company understand pertinent
issues, develop businesses, enhance shareholder value and manage risks better. It is the relationship, trust and
commitment to stake holder's interest and the warm reciprocal of the same by the stakeholders thatmake STLrobust,
resilient and sustainable. STL actively integrates shareholder goals with its own and then pursues them
collaboratively.

STL's commitment towards excellence in Health, Safety and Environment Performanceis one of the company's core
values. The company is unwavering and its policy of, “safety of persons overrides all production targets”, which drives
all employees to continuously break new grounds in safety management for the benefit of the people, property,
environment and the communities in which STL operates. This is the Company's responsibility as a global corporate
citizen. The 'pursuitto achieve world class operational excellence' has been the key focus ofthe Company.

Healthcare:

AWT operates a hospital known as Chaudhry Ehsan Kareem Hospital, well equipped with the most modern
machinery and infrastructure, in the industrial area of Jajmau, Kanpur City, providing healthcare facilities in a number
offields including Neurology, Vision, Endocrinology, Dentistry and Pre/Post Maternal Care.

STL has a program an initiative to promote healthy workplaces and reduce health and safety risks, has been
instrumental in creative a culture of implementing health, safety and environment project on priority basis.

This performance has also helped the Company to improve its performance on the occupational health and safety
front.

Education:

On 28" January 2010, AWT launched a state of art educational institution namely Super International School with
the aim to provide world class education at affordable cost to the middle income group. The school is affiliated with the
C.B.S.E board and is equipped with the latest infrastructure required for a healthy and constructive approach to
education. To know more, please visit www.superinternationalschool.com

Environment

When the leather industry enough developed, the pollution of air and water increased and the stage reached where
scientists started thinking on making better use or reuse of material which caused pollution keeping in mind the
economical factor else noindustrialist would acceptthe change.

Special emphasis has been laid on use of low waste technology with minimum possible expenditure and maximum
quality production because it is natural for any industrialists o resist a change unless it is likely to give better quality
production with least expenditure. Pollution is given the last priority by them whereas we give it the first priority.

At STL we are very much cautious about pollution. We have our own water treatment and chrome recovery plantin
which we collect the drain water full of nickel, chromium and many more harmful substances. Our deep interestis in
green and clean environment. The chrome is used in the processing of hides & skins in which 65% is consumed during
the process while 35% goes waste. The presence of chrome in the discharged water of tanneries is hazardous for
public health as its excessive use can cause severe skin diseases. To minimize the danger we have water treatment
plantto purify water o its maximum possible level. We believe to contribute in safe and healthy environment. STLis an
eco friendly tannery.

Health, Safety & Environment

We at STL are committed to provide a safe and healthy working environment for our employees by adopting a
proactive approach. It is part of our work ethic to ensure that safety, health and environment safeguards are in place
right from the inception to the execution stage. We accept the need for constant up gradation of safety & health
standards commensurate with the rapid changing technology in production.
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2023.

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies {Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,

SUPER TANNERY Limited
187/170,JAJAMU KANFPUR
UTTARPRADESH.

We were appointed by the Board of Directors of the Super Tannery Limited (hereinafter called the Company) to
conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial yearended 31st March, 2023.

We have conducted the secretarial audit compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Super Tannery Limited. (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Auditwas conductedin
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification, the Super Tannery Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,

We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
31st March, 2023 Complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter :

We have examined the books, papers, minute, books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
company forthe financial year ended on31st March,2023 according to the provisions of:
(i) The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder:
(il The Securities contracts {(Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder:
(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder:
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulation made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings:
{v) Thefollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ('SEBI Act):-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
regulation, 2011:
(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992
{c) The securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2008 —Not applicable to the Company for the year underreview;
{d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 : Not applicable to the Company for the year under review;
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulation, 2008:
Notapplicable to the Company forthe year under review;
f The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue And Share Transfer Agents)
Regulation, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing With client. Not applicable to the
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Company forthe yearunder review;

{(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Share) Regulations,2009: Not
applicable tothe Company for the year underreview;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998: Not
applicable tothe Company for the year underreview;

{vi) (Mention the other laws as may be applicable specifically to the Company) N.A

we have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses ofthe following:

{i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The Company is
maintaining Minutes Book as perthe norms, butnot as Stated inthe §8-1 and §8-2, the company has
been suggested to comply the standard viz. numbering of Minutes Book, whether they are Board
Minutes, Committee Minutes or General Body Minutes.

(il  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
(hereinafter called as “Listing Agreement):

During the period the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. Mentioned above, to the extent applicable:

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director. There is no change in the composition of the
Board of Directors during the period under review.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to convene the Board Meeting, agenda {detailed notes on agenda were sent,
but sometime at least seven days in advance notice were not adhered), and a system for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

Majority decision is carried through and recorded as part of the minutes, it was found that most of the time it was
unanimous but the name of proposer and seconder were given in the Minutes book.

We further report that
The adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines to the extent applicable.

We further report that

On the basis of the questionnaire provided to the Company, during the audit period, on the basis of reply received
from the various departments, it was concluded that the company has complied with the following laws applicable to
the Company.

Forexample:
(i) Water (prevention and control of pollution) Act,1974;
{ii) Air {prevention and control of pollution)Act,1981;
(iii) Environment Protection Act, 1986
{iv) Factories Act,1948;
{v) Industrial DisputesAct, 1947,
{vi) Payment of Wages Act, 1936,

{vii) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948,
{viii) Employees State Insurance Act,1948;
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{ix) The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,1952;

(x) The Payment of Bonus Act,1965;

{xi) The Payment of Gratuity Act,1972;

{xii) The Sexual Harassment of Women atwork place, (Prohibition and Redressal)Act, 2013.
Signature:

K.N.Shridhar. &Associates
Name of Company Secretary in Practice/Firm:
FCS No. 3882 CPNo; 2612
UDIN FCO3882E000794311
Date:12.08.2023
Place: Kanpur
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with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read

Statement Containing Salient Features of the Financial Statement of
Subsidiaries/Associate Companies /Joint Ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars Details
Sl S.TUKLTD| SECURE AARIFI SUPER SUPER
Name of the Subsidiary SAFETY TANMNERS CORPOR- ITALIA
No. LTD. LTD. ATION SRL
LTD.
1. | Reporting peried for the subsidiary concerned, if different from 31.03.2023| 31032023 31.03.2023| 31032023 31.032023
the holding company's reporting peried
2. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last dafe of the GBP INR INR INR EURD
relevant Financial year in the case of forgign subsidiaries

3. | Share capital Rs.1.52 Rs.150.00 Rs . 148.07 Rs.5.00 Rs.0.75
4. | Reserves & sumlus Rs.(-})353.08| Rs. (-)27.13| Rs(-)24.83| Rs. (001 Rs. {-)8.18

5. | Total assets Rs. 5.34 Rs. 28 45 Rs.12.64 Rs. 1287| Rs 74122
B. | Total Liabilities Rs. 8.34 Rs. 29.45 Rs. 12.64 Rs. 1287| Rs 741.22

7. | Investments MNIL MNIL Rs.1.73 MNIL NIL

8. | Turnover NIL NIL NIL NIL| Rs. 1,218.83

8. | Profit before taxation Rs. (-} 7.35 Rs. 3.64 Rs.1.27 Rs.0.15 Rs. 29.82
10. | Provision for taxation MNIL NIL NIL MNIL NIL
11. | Profit after taxation Rs. (-} 7.35 Rs. 3.64 Rs. 1.27 Rs. 0.15 Rs. 24.82
12. | Proposed Dividend NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
13. | % of shareholding 100% 83 28% 82.52% 52% 100%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished af the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet fo commence operations
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

Part “B": Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3] of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures

NIL

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

Shares of AssociatelJoint Ventures held by the company on the year end No.

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

Extend of Holding%

Description of how there is significant influence

Reason why the associatefjoint venture is not consolidated

Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Shest

ProfitiLoss for the year

Considered in Consolidation

Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Mames of assocates or joint venfures which are yet fo commence operations.

2. Names of associates or joinl venfures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner inwhich the Balance Sheetis fo be cerified.
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Form No. AQC-2

{Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
{Accounts} Rules, 2014}

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 201 3 including certain arms length transactions
under third proviso thereto
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
{a) Name(s} of the related party and nature of relationship:
(b} Nature of confracts/amrangements/ransactions:
{c} Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:
(d} Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or tfransactions including the value, if any:
(e} Justification for entering into such contracts or arangements or fransactions
(f} Date(s} of approval by the Board:
{g) Amount paid as advances, if any:
(h} Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188:
N.A
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
{a) Name(s} of the related party and nature of relationship:
(b} Nature of contracts/amrangements/ransactions:
{(c} Duration of the contracts / arangements/transactions:
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or fransactions including the value, if any:
{e) Date(s} of approval by the Board, if any:
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any:
The Details has been given under the head notes to financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Iftikharul Amin Mohd. Imran R.K. Awasthi
M.D. Cirector Finance &CFQ Company Secretary
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Kapoor Tandon & Co. _ Branch
Chartered Accountants (-_A "24/57 Firat Floor. Birhana Road,
] Kanpur — 208007

O- 104, 12" Meor, Himalayva House, s

S0 Lasturaa Gandh Marg,
Mew Db 110 007

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Tothe members of SuperTannery Limited

. We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Super Tannery Limited ("the Company”}, for the

year ended on March 31,2023, as stipulated in regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b}to (i} of regulation 46(2} and paragraphs C, D
and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations”}.

Management’s responsibility

2.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of management. This responsibility includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of intemal control and procedures to ensure compliance with the conditions of
comporate govemance stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Auditors’ responsibility

3

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
the compliance of the conditions of the corporate govemance. It is neither audit nor expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the Company.

We have examined the books of accounts and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the
purpose of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with corporate governance requirements by the Company.

We have carmried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Certification of Corporate Govemance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the ICAI"}, the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this cerificate
and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purpose issued by the ICAl which requires that we comply
with the ethical requirements ofthe Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC} 1, Quality Control for
Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services
Engagements.

Opinion

7.

8.

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanation provided to us and
representations provided by management, we cerify that the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate
governance as specified in regulation 17 to 27, clause (b} to (i} of regulation 46(2} and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of
the SEBIListing Regulations, as applicable during the year ended March 31,2023,

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000852C

(Divyank Nigam}

Place: Kanpur Partner
Date: August 12, 2023 M. No. 438443

UDIN: 23438443BGRYVN2455
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To
The Members of Super Tannery Limited
Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Super Tannery Limited {“the Company”), which comprise the
standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the standalone Statement of Change in Equity and standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{hereinafter referred to as "Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give atrue and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, thereof {"Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs

of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit, total comprehensive income, change in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) ofthe Act. Ourresponsibilities underthose Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
ofthe standalene Financial Statements section of curreport. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion onthe standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current pericd, These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a
whole, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are
no key audit matters to be communicated in our report,

Information Other than the standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

he Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The cther information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report and Corporate Governance and
Shareholder's information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and cur auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respensibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge obtained during the course of our
auditor otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this otherinformation, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respectto the preparation ofthese
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial perfoomance, including other
comprehensive income, change in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other imegularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
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maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud crerror.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management
either intendsto liquidate the Company or tc cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so,
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or emror, and toissue an auditor's report thatincludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or errorand are considered material if, individually orinthe aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also!

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, designand
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢  Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinicn.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a geingconcern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contentof the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of curwork; and (i} to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

¢ We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, ameng other matters, the planned scope and timing of the auditand
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

¢ We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

¢ From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expectedto outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
sub-section (11} of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Furtherto ourcomments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of cur knowledge and belief were necessary
forthe purposes of our audit;

{b) In our opinicn, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination ofthose books;

{c} The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
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standalone statement of change in equity and the standalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

(d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
ofthe Act, readwith Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,

{2} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as of March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appeinted as adirectorin terms of Section 164 (2)
oftheAct,

With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, referto our separate Report in "Annexure B”, Ourreport expresses an unmedified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness ofthe Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

{f

As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its directors during the yearin
accondance with the provisions of and limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion andto the best of ourinformation and accerding to the explanations givento us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial statements —
Refer Note no. 33 tothe financial statements;

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any matenal
foreseeable losses; and

there has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

{a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually orin the aggregate) have been advanced orloaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or enfity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the lke on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficianes;

(c) Based onthe audit procedures that have been considered reascnable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i} of Rule 11{e), as
provided under (a) and (b} above, contain any material misstatement.

v. (a) Thefinal dividend proposed inthe previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the yearisin accordance with
Section 125 ofthe Act, as applicable.

(b} As stated in Note 12 (1) to the financial statements, the Board of Directors ofthe Company have proposed final dividend
for the year which is subjectto the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of dividend
proposed is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi, Provisoto Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using accounting software
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 11{g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial
yearended March 31, 2025,

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000952C
(Divyank Nigam}
Partner

Place: Kanpur M. No. 438443

Date: 30.05.2023 UDIN: 23438443BGRYUX8799
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report

{Referred to in paragraph 1 of cur report of even date on standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 of
Super Tannery Limited)

[n terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of accounts and records examined by
us in the normal course of audit and to the best of ourknowledge and belief, we state that:

i (@

(b)

(c)

{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of its
property, plant and equipment and relevant details of right-to-use asset;

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets;

The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets so to coverall
the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of itsassets, Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year
and were physically verified by the Management during the vear. According to the information and explanations given to us,
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

Title Deeds ofimmoveable properties as disclosed inthe financial statements are held in the name ofthe company excepting
the following properties {refer Note no. 50 (a}}:

Gross Held in Whether Held ; :
Description of Property Carrying Value the promoter e Reason for not being held in
; ! name of co.
(Rupees) Name of |director or relative
Land No. 1363,Banther Unnao 24,722.00 |Veqgarul Amin Director 14.08.2002 | Though cost of land is paid
Land No. 1382 Banther Unnao 99,892.00 |Vegarul Amin| __ Director 14.08.2002 | by Ccmﬁa"y but due to
. ; oversight registration was
Land No, 1417 Banther Unnao 1,05453.00 |Veqarul Amin | Director TADBI00D | et T e e
Land No. 1416 & 1415 Banther Unnao|  96,398.00 | Vegarul Amin Director 09.10.2002 | However the process of
Land No. 1413 & 1414 Banther Unnac| 2 0582000 |Vegarul Amin Director 01.01.2004 | registering the title deeds in
Land No. 1364 & 1365 Banthor Unnao| 4285000 | Veqarul Amin| __Director 10.03.2004 Lhnedgf\gi‘;ft‘t’ﬁg‘m’;y;?
Land No. 1366 Banther Unnaoc 1,02,520.00 |Iftikharul Amin Director 14.09.2004 | finalization of accounts.
(d} The Company has notrevalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the year.
(e} Noproceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending againstthe Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1958 (as amendedin 2018)and rules made thereunder.
iy (a) The inventories of the Company have been physically verified by the management at reasonable interval during the
year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate having regard to the size of the
company and nature of its operation. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class ofinventory were
noticed on verification during the year when compared with books of account.
{b) Asdisclosed in note no. 50(g) to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of Rupees five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets ofthe
Company. The quarterly returns/ statements filed by the Company with such banks are not in agreement with the books
of accounts ofthe Company and the details are as follows:
(Rs. in Lacs)
Value as per Values as per quarterly retum/ Difference Reason
Quarter Ending of Accounts statements filed with lenders
June 30, 2022 851257 8625.61 13.04 As axplained, the differer;_ces are there,
September 30, 2022 | 1318479 12861.20 B | e
December 31, 2022 12151.76 12474 47 322.71 on previsional basis and also because of
exclusion of certain current assets in the
March 31, 2023 11285.04 11119.43 175.61 statements filed with the lenders.
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(i)

The company has made investments , granted unsecured loans to companies, during the earlieryears, inrespectofwhich;
{a) TheCompany has provided loan to two WOS and also to one subsidiary. The details are as under:

(Rs. in Lacs)
Name of the Company | Relationship | Loan/ Guarantee Balance as at 31.03.2023 Maximum amount outstanding
T during the year
Super Tannery (UK} Ltd | WOS Loan 130.04 130.04
Secure safety limited Subsidiary Loan 12.49 12.49
Super ftalia SRL WOS Loan 57.59 87.59
Total Loan 230.12 23012

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

()

()

(b} Inouropinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans, during the year are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company's interest.

{c) Asthe lcans are in the nature of demand loan, no schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
specified.

{d) Inrespect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount thereon as no demand has been raised by the
company.

{e) Noloan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh locans granted
to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties,

{f) During the year, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature loans either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 156 ofthe Actin respect of grant of loans, making investments
and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposit or an amount deemed to be deposit during the year within the meaning
of Section 73 to Seclion 76 ofthe Companies Act, 20135 (the Act) read with the Rules framed there under, Hence, paragraph 3(v) of
the Orderis not applicable.

Having regard to the nature ofthe Company's business / activities, the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the
Central Government under section 148(1) of the Act. Accordingly reporting under clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

{a) According tothe books and records produced and examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
Statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (GS5T), Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues as applicable
with the appropriate authorities and no undisputed amount payable in respect of aforesaid statutery dues were outstanding as
atMarch 31, 2023 for a period of more than six menths from the date they become payable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Taxand GST which have notbeen deposited on account of any dispute.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the yvearin the taxassessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (45 0f 1961).

{a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or on the payment of interest thereon to any lender
during the year,

(b} The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority.
(c) The companyhas notavailed any term loan during the year, Hence, paragraph 3(ix){c) ofthe Orderis not applicable.

(d} Onanoverall examination of the financial statements ofthe Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not
beenused during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e} the Company has nottaken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries and
hence reporting underclause 3(ix}(e) ofthe Orderis not applicable.

() The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, JV or associate
Company andhence reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) ofthe Orderis not applicable.

(a} The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {(including debtinstruments) during
the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a} ofthe Orderis not applicable.

(b} During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partly or opticnally} and hence reporting underclause 3(}(b) ofthe Orderis not applicable.

(a) Nofraud by the company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed orreported during the year.
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{bY Noreportunder sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has beenfiled in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this
report.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and upto the date
ofthis report), while determiningthe naturg, timing and extent of cur audit procedures.

{xii) The companyis not a “Nidhi Company”; hence paragraph 3(xii) the Orderis not applicable.

{(xiii)  In our opinion, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 158 of Act where applicable and the
details of such transactions have been disclosed in Note no .48 in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the
applicable IndAS.

{xiv) (a) Inouropinionthe Company hasan adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business,

(b} We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year andill date, in
determining the nature, timing and extent of cur audit procedures.

XV n our opinion, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Hence,
| pinion, th pany h tentered into any ht i ith direct P cted with him. H
paragraph 3{xv)the Orderis not applicable,

{xvi) (a) Inour opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Hence, reporting under clause 3{xvi}(a), (b) and (c) of the Orderis not applicable.

(Y In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2018) and accordingly reperting under clause 3{xvi){d) of the Orderis not applicable

{xvii) The Company has notincurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial
year.

{xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors ofthe Company during the year.

{xix) On the basis ofthe financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
otherinformatiocn accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date ofthe audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date ofthe auditreport and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a pericd of one year fromthe balance shest date, will get discharged by the Company as and when theyfall due.

{xx} The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and there is no unspent CSR
amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule V|| to the Companies Act or special accountin compliance
with the provision of Sub-section (8) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx} of the Order is not
applicable forthe year,

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000952C

{Divyank Nigam}

Partner
Place: Kanpur M. No. 438443
Date: 30.05.2023 UDIN: 23438443BGRYUX8799
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referredto in paragraph 3(f) of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023
of SuperTannery Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements ofthe Company forthe year ended on
thatdate,

In cur opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control ocver
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management's Responsibility forInternal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial contrels based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential compenents of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl).
These respensibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by |CAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2015, to
the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness ofinternal control based on the assessedrisk. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether dueto fraud crerror.

e believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's
internalfinancial controls systemover financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting incudes those pelicies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effecton the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls overFinancial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting te future pericds are subjectto the risk that the intemal financial control

over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate,

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.000952C

(Divyank Nigam}
Partner
Place: Kanpur M. No. 438443

Date: 30.05.2023 UDIN: 23438443BGRYUX8799
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Standalone Balance shwet as at March 31, 2023

Particulars MNote No. As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Rs. in Lacs

ASSETS
Nan-current assets
{a) Property, Plant, Equipment & Intangible Assets 2{a) 7,17228
(b) Capital work-In-progress 2d) 1,125.44
[c) Other Intangible assets 2{b) 6.54
(d) Financlal Assets
{i} Investments 3 30842 30249
{Il) Loans 230.12 23012
{ll} ©Cther Financlal Assets 5 41.60 580.14 34.85
Cumrent Assets
{a) Inventories
(b} Financial Assets
{I} Trade recelvables
{if) Cash and cash equivalents
{lll} Bank Balances other than {lll) above
(iv] Other Financlal Assets
{c) Current Tax Assets (Net) -
{d} Other current assets 11 1,340.16

£

5,955.98

5,339.06 3,323.67
33981 297.53
442.63 50926
39176 6,513.26 724.52

Beow

TOTAL ASSETS 22,603.80

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other Equity
LIABILITIES
Non current llabliiHes
{a) Financial liabilities
{I} Borrowlngs
{b} Deferred tax Nabliities {net}
{c) Other non-current liabilities
Current Kabliitles
{a] Financial liabilities
{1} Shortterm borrowings 17 6,771.59 7,694.99
(i) Trade payables 18
{a} Total Outstanding Dues to micro and small enterprises 7138 7720
(b) Total Outstanding Dus o parias
other than micra and small
entemrises 347435 3,265.07
[iii} Other financial liabilities 19 734.02 11,051.34 84348
{b) Other current lablliies 20 519.67
{c] Provisions 21 221.11

1,079.73 1,079.73
3,499.02 9,578.75 7,936.64

ER

44.83
751.55
526.55

o

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 22,593.80

Significant Accounting Policles 1
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No. 000952C
Mohd. fmran

Director (Finance) & CFO
Divyank Nigam DIN:00037627
Partner
M. No. 438443
Place: Kanpur R. K. Awasthi
Date: 30-05-2023 Company Secretary

7,118.57
840,45
6.91

56746

647387

6,856.98
1,176.40

23,040.65

9.016.37

53.73
1347
49958

11,885.74
669,44
20232

23,040.65

Iftikharul Amin
Managing Directar
DIN:00037424
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Standalone Statemuent of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

Partlculars Note Mo. 2022-23 2021-22
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

INCOME:
Rewvenue from Operations
fa} Sales fincome from operations 22(a) 21,569.29 21,182.11
{b) Other Operating Revenue 22(b) 889.81 22,459.10 93557 22,117.68
Other Income 23 20625 141.50
Totul Income 22,665.35 22,259.18
EXPENSE:
Cost of materals consumed 24 12,548.19 13,632.82
Purchase of stock-in-trade 25 1,941.56 1,213.99
Changes In Inventorles of finlshed goods,

work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 26 736.10 940,88
Employee Beneflts Expenses 7 1,008.09 890.35
FInance costs 28 445.63 396,03
Depreclation and Amortization Expenses 29 655.65 &26.86
Other Expenses 30 4,571.22 3,894.13
Total Expansas 21,906.44 21,595.06
Profit before Exceptional fbems and Tax 75891 664.12
Exreptional Iltems - -
Profit before Tax 75891 664,12
Tax expense:

1. Current Tax 130.00 162.00

2, Deferred Tax 3440 2500

3, Tax adJustment relating to earller years

Current Tax (61.37) (137.30)

Deferred Tax - 153.03 211,50 261,20
Profit for the peried 605.88 402.52
Dther comprehensive Income
{ly Rems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

{a} Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans 14.17 24.18
{ll} Income tax related to tems that wlll not be reclassified to profit or lass (3.68) 10,49 (6.29} 17.89
Total comprehensive incoma for the period 516.37 420.81
Eamings per equlty share 31
{Face value per Share Rs. In Lacs1/-)

1. Basic 0.56 037
2. Dilluted 0.56 0.37
Slgnificant Accounting Pollcles 1
See accompanying notes to the standalone financlal statements
Ag per our attached repert of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Kapaor Tandon & Co.
Chartered Accourttants
Firm Registration No. 000552C
Mohd. Frran Tikharul Amin
Director (Finance) & CFO Managing Director
Divyank Nigam DIN:00037627 DIN:00037424
Partner
M. No. 438443
Place: Kanpur R. K. Awasthi
Date: 30-05-2023 Compamy Sacretary
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Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March,

A. Equlty Share Caphal

Particulars R, in Lacs
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,079.73
Changes in Equity Share Capital doe to prior period emors -
Restated balance as at April 01, 2021 1079.73

e b i e i
Balgnee a8 at March 31, 2022 1.079.73
Chengea in Equity Share Capital doe to prios perind esora -
Restated balance as at April 01, 2022 107973
Changes in equity during the year ~
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,079.73
B. Othar Equity

Reserve and Surplus OCI - Other Total
Particulare Cepital  |Securities General Retgined Orther

Balance as at March 31, 2021 17.67 270.18 4,563.21 2,718.76 - 7,569.82
|Profit for the year 402,92 - 402.92
Dividend Pad (53.99) (53.99)
Other Comprehensive Income 17.89 17.89
Balance s st March 31, 2022 17.67 | 27018 | 4509.22 | 3,139.57 - 7,936.64 |
|profit for the yeur 605.88 605.88
Dividend Peid {53.99) (53.99)
Other Comprehengive Income 10.49 10.49
|Balance es at March 2023 17.67 | 270.18 |  4.455.23 | 3,755.94 - 8,499.02 |
Slgnificant Accounting PolicTas

See sccompanying notes to the etandalone financial statements
As per our attached report of even date For end on behalf of the Board
For Kapnor Tandon & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No. 000552¢

Mohd. Imran Tftikharul Amin
Director (Finance) & CFO Managing Director
Divyank Nigam DIN:00037627 DIN:00037424
Partner
M. No. 438443
Place: Kanpur B. K. Awasthi
Darte: 30-05-2023 Company Secretary
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Standalone Statement of Cazh Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulara 2022-13 2021 -22
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Laca
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tex 75891 664,12
Adjugtments for ;
Deprecistion’ Amortisation 655.65 626.86
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments {29.17) 625
Losa on Sale of Property, Plant & Bquipments 0.16 355
Intevest incomne (19.31) (23.70)
Accretion in Investment and Share of profit from LLP (5.94) 573
Expected Credit Losa 17.50 -
Finemce Cogt 352.06 28457
Defierral of income on government grant (100.42) {74.26)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans 14.17 2418
Derivatives MtoM Provision 1477 (10.45)
Oparating profit before worldng capital changes 1,658.98 1,482.89
Changes in working capital:
(Increnzc) D in trade {30.90) 293,78
(Increare) Decrease in inventories 517.89 1,389.35
(Increaze) Decrease m other non current loan - -
(Encresse) Deorease in other non financisl asset {6.75) 014
(Increase) Decreage in gther cutrent financial ascets 332.76 5873
(Increage) Decrease in other current asssts (153.76) (160.16)
Incresss/ (Decreass) in non cumment lishilities - 114.59
Incrense/ (Decrease) in trade payables 203 45 (921L.87)
Increase’ (Decrease) in other fmancial lishilities (114.45) (25.75)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other current Lisbilities (164.53) 16.88
Increasef (Decrease) in Provigions 2314 750
Cash generated from operations 2,255.22 2,156.48
Income taxee refimded / {paid), net (122.98) (134.66)
Net cagh genermted from gperating activities 232,24 2,121,900
B, CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchese of fixed assets (868.38) (1,156.68)
Purchase of other intengible asscts {0.12) (L.16)
Procesds from sale of property, plant and equipment 30.96 1154
Increase of non-cument investments - -
Interest received 1931 23.70
Orther bank balances (Margin Money) 66,63 @50
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activitics {751L.60) {1,126.80)
C. CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeda/(repayment) from/of dhort-term loens (923.41) (316.54)
Proceoda/(ropayment) from/of long-term loans {3.90) (226.00)
Finance costs paid (352.06) (284,
Dividend paid (53.99) (53.99)
Net eash used in financing activitice {1,338.96) (88L.10)
INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AN} CASH EQUIVALENTS 4228 113.92
Cash and cesh equivalent= &t the begirming of the year 297.53 183.61
Cagh and cash equivalents at the end of the year 339.81 297.53
(refer Note No. 8 for break-up)
Significant Accounting Policles
See accompanying notes to the stendslone fmancial atatements
As per our aitached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Kapour Tandon & Co.
Chartered Accoymtnmis
Firm Registration No. 000952C
Mohd. hrran Iftikherl Amin
Director [Finance} & CFO Managing Director
DIN-00037627 DIN:00037424
Divyank Nigam
Pariner
M, No, 433443
Place: Kenpor E. K. Awnathi
Date: 30-05-2023 Company Secretary
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Note 1:
A. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Super Tannery Limited (“the Company”} is a public limited company having its registered office situated at
187/170JAJMAU ROAD JAIMAU KANPUR was incorporated on 06.02.1984.

The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and exports of Leather and leather footwear.
The Company's equity shares are listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 30,
2023.

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS) notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act} read with the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. In addition, the
guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl} are
also applied except where compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the histarical cost convention on accrual basis except
forfollowing assets and liabilitie s which have been measured at fair value amount:

i} Certain financial assets and liabilities {including derivative instruments},
ii} Defined benefit plans - plan assets

Histarical costis generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods or
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using anather valuation technique.

3. Operating Cycle for current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current
classification.

An assetisclassified as currentwhen itis;

a) expected to be realised orintended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,

b) held primarily far the purpose of trading,

c) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d}) cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile aliahility for

atleasttwelve manths after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
Aliability is classified as current when:
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a} itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle,

b} itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reparting periad, or

d} there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle of the Company, that is, the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
andtheirrealisation in cash or cash equivalentis 12 months.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

4.  Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, whichis alsoits functional currency.

5. Critical estimate and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liahilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities atthe date
of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis.

The areas involving critical estimates orjudgements are:

Employee benefits {estimation of defined benefit obligation)

Post-employment benefits represent abligations that will be setfled in the future and require
assumptions to project benefit obligations. Post-employment benefit accounting is intended to
reflect the recagnition of future benefit costs over the emplayee's approximate service period,
based on the terms of the plans and the investment and funding decisions made. The accounting
requires the Company to make assumptions regarding variables such as discount rate and salary
growth rate. Changes in these key assumptions can have a significantimpact on the defined benefit
obligations.

Estimation of expected useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each
reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimatesrelate to
technical and economic obsolescence thatmay change the utility of property, plant and equipment.

Contingencies

Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending against the Company. Due to the
uncertainty inherent in such matters, itis often difficult to predict the final outcome. The cases and
claims against the Company often raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues that are
subject to many uncertainties and complexities, including but not limited to the facts and
circumstances of each particular case/claim, the jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law.
In the normal course of business, the Company consults with legal counsel and other experts on
matters related to litigations. The Company accrues a liahility when it is determined that an adverse
outcome is prabable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the event an
adverse outcome is possible or an estimate is notdeterminable, the matteris disclosed.

Valuation of deferred tax assets

Deferred income tax expense is calculated based on the differences between the carrying value of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases that are
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considered temporary in nature. Valuation of deferred tax assets is dependent on management's
assessment of future recaverability of the deferred benefit. Expected recaverability may result from
expected taxable income in the future, planned transactions or planned optimising measures.
Economic conditions may change and lead to a different conclusion regarding recoverability.

Fairvalue measurements

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet
cannotbe measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair values are measured using
valuation techniques, including market multiples model {Market Approach} and Capitalisation
method (Income Approach}which involve various judgements and assumptions.

impairment of Property, plant and equipment, Right-of-use assets, intangible assets {other
than goodwill} and Capital wark-in-progress

The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit {CGU} based on future cash
flows after considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results
and growth rates and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash
flows are developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using a suitable
discountrate in order to calculate the present value.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets orgroups of assets.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the periad in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

6. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recaverable taxes, trade discount and rebates
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. For this purpose, costincludes deemed
cost which represent the carrying value of property, plant and equipment recognised at 1% April 2016
measured as per the previous GAAP. Such costincludes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost
directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition far its intended use, net charges on
foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the
assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Assets are classified to the appropriate categaries of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready forintended use.

Expenses incurred relating to project, including borrowing cost and net of income eamed during the
project development stage prior to its intended use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and
disclosed under Capital Work -in - Progress.

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the Company intends to
use these during more than a period of 12 manths.

7. Investment property
Property that is held for long-term rental vieldsor for capital appreciation or both, and that isnot
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occupied by the Campany, is classified asinvestment property. Praperty, plant and equipment are
stated at cost, netofrecoverable taxes, trade discount and rebatesless accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. For this purpose, costincludes deemed cost which represent the carrying
value of property, plant and equipment recognised at 1% April 2016 measured as per the previous
GAAP. Such castincludes purchase price, barrowing costand any cost directly attributable to bringing
the assets toits working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment or any significant part initially recognised of such item of
property plant and equipmentis derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset}is included in
the income statementwhen the assetis derecognised.

8. Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its
estimated residual value. Depreciation has been provided on such cost of assets less their residual
values on straight line method on the basis of estimated useful life of assets as prescribed in Schedule
Il of the Act.

Estimated useful lives of the praperty, plant and equipment as estimated by the management is the
same as prescribed in Schedule |l and the same are as follows:

Factorybuildings - 30 years

Non-factary buildings - 5 to 60 years

Railway sidings - 15 years

Plant and equipments - 15 years

Fumiture and fixtures - 8to 10 years

Computers (included under plantand equipments) - 3 years
Office equipments -5 years

Vehicles-8to10vears

Freeholdlandis not depreciated/amortised.

Assets held under financial leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets or, wherever shorter, the term of relevant lease.

Depreciation is calculated an a pro rata basis except that, assets costing uptoRs. 5,000 each are fully
depreciated in the year of purchase.

The estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of praperty, plant and equipment are reviewed
ateach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, ifappropriate.

9. Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates
less accumulated amortisation/depletion and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase
price, barrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition
for the intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from
exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.

Subsequent casts are included in the asset's carrying amount or recagnised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
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10.

1.

the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Fallowing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairmentlosses, if any.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
Statementof Profitand Loss when the assetis derecognised.

Intangible assets being computer software is amortised on straight line method over the period of five
years.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangibles assets recognised
as on April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost
as of transition date.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period and adjusted prospectively, ifappropriate.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit andloss unless
such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's or cash-generating unit's{CGU)} fair value less costs of disposal and its value inuse.

Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds recoverable amount.

Far assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that previously recognized impairmentlosses nolonger exist or have decreased.

If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A
previously recagnised impairment lass is reversed. The reversal is limited so thatthe carrying amount
of the asset does notexceed its recoverable amount, nor exceedthe carrying amount that would have
beendetermined, net of depreciation, had noimpairment loss been recognised for theasset in prior
years.

Leases
Company as a Lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, atinception of a contract. A contractis, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a define
periad oftime in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified assets, the Company assesses whether: (i} the contact invalves the use of an
identified asset (i} the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period ofthe lease and {iii} the Companyhas the right to direct the use of the asset.

As a lessee, The Company recognises a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right of use assetis initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amaunt of the lease liahility adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remave the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease
incentives received.

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset orthe end ofthe
lease term. The estimated useful lives of right of use assets are determined on the same basis as those
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12.

13.

of praperty and equipment. In addition, the right of use asset is periadically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements ofthe lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicitin the lease or, if that rate cannat
be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar
characteristics, the Company, on alease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental barrowing
rate specific to the lease ar the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whaole.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments,
including in-substance fixed payments and lease payments in an optional renewal period if the
Company isreasonably certain to exercise an extension option;

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interestmethod.

The Company has elected notto recognise rightof use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises
the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. The Company applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar
economic environment with a similar end date.

Company as a Lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Where the Company is a lessor under an operating lease,
the assetis capitalised within praperty, plant and equipment and depreciated over its useful economic
life. Payments received under aperating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss on a
straight-line basis averthe term of the [ease.

Inventories

Inventaries are valued at cost ar netrealisable value, whichever is lower. The basis of determining the
costforvarious categories of inventory are as follows:

{a} Raw materials, Chemicals, Components, stores & spares and Stock in Trade — Cost includes cost
of purchase (Net of recoverable taxes} and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
presentlocation and condition. Costis determined on FIFQO basis.

(b} Stock in process and finished goods- Direct cost plus appropriate share of overheads.
{c} Saleable Scrap/\Waste/By products - Atestimated realisable value.

{(d} Inter unitgods transfer — transfer price

{e}Import Entitlement/ Licences — At estimated realisable/Utilisation value

Net realisable value is the estimated sellingprice in the ordinary course of business,less estimated
costs of completion andthe estimated costs necessary to make thesale.

Foreign Currencies
a)Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency'}. The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupee {INR/Rupees), which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

b} Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded on initial recagnition at the exchange rate prevailing
on the date of the transaction.
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Any gains orlosses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement
are accountedforin the Statement of Profit & Loss eitherunder the head foreign exchange fluctuationor
interest cast, as the case may be, exceptthose relating to long-term foreign currencymanetary items.

Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates

Investment inassociates and other related parties are carried at costless accumulated impairment, if
any.

Fair Value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market which can be accessed

by the Company for the assetorliability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
bestinterest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inputthat is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities
Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurementis directly orindirectly observable
Level 3 Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurementis unobservable
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-

assessing categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, inthe case of financial assets notrecorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place {regular way trades} are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequentmeasurement
Subsequentmeasurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial

assets. Based on the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset, the Company classifies financial assets as subsequently
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measured at amortised cost, fair value through ather comprehensive incame or fair value through
profitandloss.

Debtinstruments atamoertised cost
Debt instruments such as trade and other receivables, security deposits and loans given are
measured atthe amortised costif both the following conditions are met:
The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR} method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the profitorloss.

Debt instruments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

A'debtinstrument'is classified as atthe FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
The objective of the business madel is achieved bath by callecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and
The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recagnized in the other comprehensive income
{OCl}.
Debt instruments at Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

FVTPLis aresidual category for debt instruments excluding investments in subsidiary and assaciate
companies. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized
costoras FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, any fair value changes including any interestincome, foreign exchange gain
and losses, impairmentlosses and othernet gains and losses are recagnised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

De-recognition
Afinancial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised {i.e. remaved from the Company's Balance Sheet}when
The rights to receive cash flows from the assethave expired, or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
'pass-through'arrangement; and either:
The Companyhas transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
The Company has neither transferred norretained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, buthas transferred control of the asset.
On de-recagnition, any gains orlosses on all debt instruments {(other than debt instruments measured
at FVOCI} and equity instruments {measured at FVTPL) are recognised in the Statement of Profitand
Loss. Gains and losses inrespect of debtinstruments measured at FVOCI and that are accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition. Gains or losses on equity instruments

measured at FVOCI that are recognised and accumulated in OCl are notreclassified to profitorloss on
de-recognition.

Impairment of financial assets
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The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL} model for measurement and recognition of
impairmentloss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bankbalance.
b} Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
In case of other assets (listed as a} above}, the company determines if there has been a significant
increase in creditrisk of the financial assetsince initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has
not increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and recagnized as loss

allowance. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is
measured and recognized asloss allowance.

Financial Liabkilities

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and barrowings and
payables, netofdirectly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, and dervative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit orloss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profitorloss are designated
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk is recognized
in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the statement of profit orloss.

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities classified and measured at amortised cost such as loans and borrowings are
initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial recognition, financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective interestrate (EIR} method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised costis calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amartisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profitand loss.

Derecagnition

Afinancial liahility is derecognised when the aobligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange ormadificationis treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
orloss.

Derivative financial instruments
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The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage the commoadity price risk and expasure
on account of fluctuation in interest rate and foreign exchange rates. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently measured at fair value with changes being recagnized in Statement of Profit
and Loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liahilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken through profit and
loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any differences between the proceeds {net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in Profit or lass over the period of the borrowing using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent thatitis probable that some or all of the facilities will be drawn
down. Inthis case, the feeis deferred until the drawdown occurs.

The barrowings are removed from the Balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
that has been extinguished or transferred to anather party and the consideration paid including any
noncash asset transferred orliabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/{losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability of at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is abreach of a
material provision of along-term loan arrangement an or before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify
the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the
financial statement forissue, not to demand payment as a consequence ofthe breach.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment tao the
barrowing casts.

Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from
commencement of activities relating to construction/development of the qualifying asset upta the date
of capitalisation of such assetis added to the cost of the assets.

Interest income eamed on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending expenditure on
qualifying assetis deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the standalone
balance sheetif there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a netbasis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent an future events and must be enforceable in the
narmal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company, orthe
counterparty.
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Claims

Claims againstthe Company not acknowledged as debts are disclosed after a careful evaluation of the
facts and legal aspects of the matterinvolved.

Provisions, Ceontingent liabilities and Capital Commitments

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation {legal or constructive} as a result of a past
event, itis prabable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the abligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
reviewed ateach balance sheet date and are adjusted ta reflect the current best estimate.

If the effect of the time value of maoney is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the pravision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events
not wholly within the contral of the Company, or present obligations where it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

Contingent assets are notrecognised but disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits is probable.
However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a
contingent asset, butitis recognised as an asset.

Government Grant

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with.

A govemment grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses incurred in
previous period{s). Such a grant is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which it becomes
receivable.

Govermment grants shall be recognised in profit orloss on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate.

Govemment grants related to assets are presented in the balance sheet as deferred income and is
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related assets or
otherrelevantbasis.

Govemment grants by way of financial assistance on the basis of certain qualifying criteria are
recagnised as they become receivable.

In the unlikely event that a grant previously recognised is ultimately not received, it is treated as a
change in estimate and the amount cumulatively recognised is expensedin the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Revenue Recegnition
Sale of Goods and services

Revenue is recognised upon fransfer of control ofpromised goods to customers in an amount
thatreflects the consideration which the Companyexpectsto receive in exchange for those goods.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised atthe point in time when {a} contral is transferred to
thecustomer, which is mainly upon delivery in case of domestic sales and on issuance of Shipping Bill
in case ofexportsales.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received ar receivable for goods supplied
and services rendered, net of returns, rebates and discountsto customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as Goods
& Services Tax{GST).

Interest Income

Interest income is accrued an using on a time basis by the effective interest rate with reference to the
principal outstanding.

Dividend Income

Dividend income fram investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive paymenthas
been established.

ExportIncentives
ExportIncentives are recagnised when certainty ofreceiptis established.
Insurance Claim

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to
the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect
ultimate collection.

Other Income
Otherincome is accounted for on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is uncertain and in
such case itis accounted for on receiptbasis.

Employee benefits

The Company makes contributions to both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes which
are mainly administered through/by duly constituted and approved Trusts and the Gavernment.

Defined Contribution Scheme

In case of provident fund administered throughRegional Provident Fund Commissioner,the Company
has no abligation, other thanthe contribution payable to the providentfund.

In case of members of constituted and approved trusts, the Company recognises contribution payable
to such trusts as an expense including any shortfall in interest between the amount ofinterestrealised
by the investment and the interest payable to members at the rate declared by the Government of
India.

The Company's contributionspaid / payable during the year to pravidentfund administered through
Approved Trust, Regional ProvidentFund Commissioner, Superannuation Fundand Employees' State
Insurance Corpoarationare recognised in the Statement of Profit andLoss as an expense when
employees haverendered services entitling them to contributions.

Defined Benefit Scheme

Gratuity: Cost of providing the Benefit is determined on an actuarial basis at the endof the year and
charged to Statement of Profitand Loss. The cost of providing these benefitsis determined by
independent actuary using the projected unit creditmethod.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gainsand losses and the effect of the asset
ceiling,{excluding amounts included in net interest onthe net defined benefit liability and retum on
planassets), are recognised immediately in the balancesheet with a corresponding debit or credit
toretained earnings through other comprehensiveincome in the period in which they occur. It
isincluded in retained eamings in the statement ofchanges in equity and in the balance sheet.

Leave encashment: Leave balance as atthe end of the calendar yearis encashed and balance leaves
eamed thereafter to the extent not availed by the employees are provided in the accounts.
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Research and Development Expenditure

Expenditure on research of revenue nature is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss and that of
capital nature is capitalized as fixed assets.

Taxes on Income

Current tax is the amount of tax payable determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and
pravisions of the Income TaxAct, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.

Deferred taxis recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liahilities in the
Balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are
accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances to the extent thatitis probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses
and allowances can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax
rates. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set, and presented as net.

Current and deferred taxes relating to items directly recognised inreserves are recognisedin reserves
and notin the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Minimum Altemate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is
convincing evidence thatthe Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as
andeferred tax assetin the Balance Sheetwhenitis probable that future economic benefit associated
with itwill flow to the Company.

Dividend Distribution

Dividends paid (including income tax thereon)} is recognised in the period in which the interim
dividends are approved by the Board of Directors, or inrespect of the final dividend when approved by
shareholders.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method specified in Ind AS 7 on Cash Flows.
Cash and cash equivalents {(including bank balances} shown in statement of cash flows exclude item
which are notavailable for general use on the date ofbalance sheet.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss} after tax {(including the post-tax
effect of extraordinary items, if any} by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted eamings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ {loss) after tax {including
the post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if any} as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to
expense or income {net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamings per share and the
weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would
decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares
are deemed ta be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later
date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been
actually issued at fair value {i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares}. Dilutive potential
equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares
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and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus
shares, as appropriate.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in consistent manner with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM} of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the Company.

Recent Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Amendment
Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements — This amendment requires the entities to disclose
their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective
date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on ar after April 1, 2023. The
Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the
financial statements.

Ind AS 8, Accounting Palicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors — This amendment
has introduced a definition of 'accounting estimates' and included amendments to Ind AS 8ta help
entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The
effective date for adoption of this amendmentis annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023.
The Campany has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements

Ind AS 12, Income Taxes — This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition
exemption so thatit does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temparary
differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its
financial statements.
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Motes forming part of the Standalons Financial Statements for the year anded March 31, 2023
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3 Financlal Assats: Investmants - Non Current

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

No. of No. of
Shares Rs.In lacs Shares Rs.In lacs
Equlty Shares Unquoted
A. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
() SUPER TANNERY (ULK)LIMITED
Ordinary Shares of GBP 1 each fully paid up 2,100 1.52 2,100 1.52
(i} AARIFI TANNERS LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs. in Lacs10/- each fully paid up 12,05,366 164.24 12,05,366 16424
(iii) SUPER CORFORATION LIMITED
Equity Shares of Re. in Lacs10/- sach fully paid up 26,000 2.60 26,000 2.60
(iv) SECURE SAFETY LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs. in Lacs10/- sach fully paid up 9,49,300 $4.93 9,49,300 94.93
(¥) Super Halia SRL
Ordinary Shares of Euro 1/- each fully paid up 990 0.75 990 0.75
Total - A 264.04 264.04
B. OTHERS
iy SUPERHOUSE OVERSEAS LIMITED}
Equity Shares of Rs. in Lacs10/- each fully paid 5,000 0.50 5,000 0.50
(i) AL-BARR FINANCE HOUSE LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs. in Lacs10/- each fully paid 20,000 2.00 20,000 2.00
(iii} SVIT PRONEXT MACHINES PRIVATE LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs. in Lace10/- each fully paid 8,500 1.17 8,500 147
(v) INDUSTRIAL INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs. in Lacs10/- each fully paid 8,000 0.74 8,000 0.74
(v) KANPUR UNNAQ LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT CO. LTD.
Equity Shares of Rs. in Lacs10/- each fully paid 75,000 7.50 75,000 7.50
(v} LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT
Equity Shareg of Rs. in Lacs10/- each fully paid 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
(vii} JATMAU TANNERY EFFLUENT TREATMENT ASSOCIATION
Equity Shareg of Ra. in Lacs10/- each fully paid 26,200 2.62 26,200 262
Total - B 13.53 15.83
€. INVESTMENT IN PARTNERSHIP/LLP FIRM
() BOVINIFRILLSLLF
15% in the capital of the LLP 0.75 0.75
Share of Reserves and Surphus of the LLP 27.58 21.35
Total - C 2B.33 22.10
Equity Shares Quoted
D () BSuperhouse Ltd,
Equity Sharcs of R, in Lacs10/- cach Tally paid 5,200 0.52 5,200 0.52
Total -D 0.52 0.52
Total (A+HB+CHD) 308.42 302.48
Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Inveatments 0.52 0.52
Market Value of Quoted Tnvestmenta 12.25 9.65
Aggregate Book Value of Unquoted Investments 27957 279.87
Aggrogate provision for dimimmtion in value of Inveatments
Detalls of Partners, Capital and Profit Sharing Ratio in LLP Ra. in Lacs
Profit Capital as
Sharing on Capital az on
Nama of Partnars Ratio 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
1 Mr. Shahbhaz Khen 55% 275 275
2 Super Tannery Limited 15% 075 0.75
3 Mr Iikharal Amin 15% 0.75 0.75
4 Mr. Igbal Ahsan 15% 0.75 0.75
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Notes of the Standalone Financlal Statements for the year anded March 31, 2023

4 Financisl Assets: Loans - Non Curment

Farticylare As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs Rs In bacs
Loans and Advances
to Subsidaries
Secured Considered Good - -
Unseoured Considersd Good 230,12 230,12
Unsecured which have eignificant increass in cradit risk - -
Unsecured credit impaired - -
(refier Note no. 35 for details) 230.12 230.12
Toral 3012 230.12
5 _Dther Fnancisl Assets - Non Cument
Particulare As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 20
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
Unsecured Convidered Good
Security Depowits 41,60 34,85
Tatal AL.60 34.85
&_Invantories [At cost or nat realisable value which Iy lower}
Particulsrs As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 20;
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
Raor Materiale 1,471.78 1,239.50
‘Waork in Progross 1,950.38 2,293.09
Finished Goads 1,083 34 1379.08
Chemival, Components end spare perts 1,429.62 1,443.69
‘Waste & Scrap 20.86 11851
Total 5,955.98 §473.87
(a) All the Inventories have been hypothecabed as security for varions working facilities from banke.
(b} During the year Rs, in LacsMil wag recognissd as oxp ds wrlie-down of rvenstory,
7 _Financial Aspets - Curnent: Trede Racelvehle
Particulsrs As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
Beonred Congidered Good - -
Unsacured Congiderad Goad 5,339.06 5.325.67
Unsecured which heve gignificant incresse in oredit riak - -
Unsacmred credit impairad 112.61 95.11
5451.67 5,420.78
Lexa: Impairment Loes Allowance (ECL) 112.61 95.11
Total E‘m.ua am.ﬁ?
{8} All the Trade Reosivables bave been hypothecated as secmrity for veriouws working fcilities from benks.
Trmde Receivable ageing Schedube: Rs In Lacs]
[Particubsm Not Duo Cutstanding from due date/date of transaction Total
Leex than & monthe 1 year- 2year- More than
6 moniths - 1 yeut 2 yeur 3 your 3 yents
Ar at Miarch 31, 2023
Undigputed Trade Recelvables
(i) Considered Good 419.42 4,336.61 502.49 456 - 7598 5,339.06
{7i) Which heve significent incroase
in credit riek 5 .
(idi) Credit impaired - 106,14 1.04 sl - 4,83 112,61
Disputed Tmde Reccivables
(i) Considered Good - - - - - -
{il) Which have gignificant increase
in cwedit sk . - - - - -
Total 419.42 444275 508.57 5.07 - 80.85 5,451.67
As at March 31, 2022
Undisgsted Trade R
(i) Comsidered Good 181.67 4,611.77 40548 15.06 0.38 111.31 5,325.67
{fi) Which have significant increass
in credit rigk - -
(ifi) Credit impaired - 87.13 0.21 168 0.06 6.03 95.11
Digproied Trade Recetvabieos
(i) Comsidered Good - - - - - -
{7i) Which heve significent increase
in credit rsk - - - - - -
(i) Crodit impaired - - - - - -
Total 18167 4,698.90 A05.69 16.74 o.44 11734 542070
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8 Financlal Azsets - Current: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulas As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
Balances with banks
o current accoumtys 31617 284.19
on EEFC accomnt 16.35 3.85
33252 288.04
Cash on hand 729 9.49
Total 339.81 297.53
S Financlal Aszets - Current: Bank Balances other than cazh and caszh equivalents
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
Margin money deposite (restricted, held as lien ageinst bank puarentecs) 43499 500.16
Ratmurked balances with hanks - mnclaimed Dividend 764 9.10
Total 442.63 509.26
10 Dther Current Financlal Assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In laes Rs. In lacs
Unsecured Considersd Good
Export Incentive Receivable 236.77 506.62
Other Claime Receivable - 0.96
Balanee with Govt/Rlevenue mthority 15499 21694
Total 391.76 724.52
11 Other Current Assets
Particulare As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
Unsecured Considered Good
Advances to Trade Creditors 1,18923 900.34
Advence recoverable in cash of kind or for valuc to be reccived 105.81 250.40
Prepaid expenses 4512 2556
Total 1,340.16 1,176.40
12 Equity Share Capital
Particulms As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of Ng. of
Shares Re. in Laca Sharea Ra. in Laca
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rupee 1/~each =11,00,00,000 1,100.00 11,00,00,000 1,100.00
Izsued
Buuity Shares of Rupee 1/~each 10,79,73,360 1,079.73 10,79,73,360 1,079.73
Subscribed and fully pald-up
Equity Shares of Rupee 1/~each 10,79,73,360 1,079.73 10,79,73,360 1,079.73
Total 1079.73 1,079.73
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{A) Recondliztion of the number of equlty shares and shar= capital
Particnlare As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No, of Shares Ra. inTacs No, of Shares Re, inLacs

Subscribed and fully paid-up equity shores
Outetending st the begiming of the year 10,79,73,360 L0973 10,79,73,360 1,079.73
Shares issucd during the year : 5 iy 5
Ontstnding st the ood of the yoar 10,79,73,560 1,079.73 10,79,73,360 107973
{B) Detail of Sharez held by the promoters:
Az at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 Chaenges during the year
5.  Name of the Promoter No. of % of Shares No. of % of Sharee Changes during the year
No. Shares held Shares beld No of ehares. %
1 VEQUARUL AMIN 1,78,83,900 16.56% 1,78,83,900 16.56% - -
2 IQBAL AHSAN 91,42,502 8.47% 91,42,502 8.4T% - -
3 IFTIKHARUL AMIN 90,80,432 8.41% 90,80,432 8.41% - -
4 MIBASHIRUL AMIN 45,90,000 425%  4590,000 425% - -
5 UMAIRUL AMIN 45,90,000 425%  45.90,000 4.23% - -
6 TANVEERUL AMIN 45,00,000 417%  45,00,000 4.17% - -
7 TFARHA FATIMA 44,64,.912 4.14%  45,00,000 417% (35,088.00) -
8 SOPHIA AMIN 34,58,400 3.20% 34,58,400 3.20% - -
9 ISMAT IQBAL 30,82,B00 2.86% 30,82,800 2.86% - -
10 RUMANA AMIN 26,33,400 2.44% 26,333,400 2.04% £ s
Total - 6,84,26,946 58.74%  6,84,61,434 S8.78% {85,088.00) -
As at March 31, 2022 As st March 21, 2021 Chanpes during theyear
8. Nanw of the Promoter No. of % of Shares No, of % of Shares Changes during the year
No. Shares held Shares beld Mo of shares %
1 VEQUARUL AMIN 1,78,83,900 16.56% 1,78,83,900 16.56% - -
2 IQBAL AHSAN 91,42,502 84T 9142502 8.47% - -
3 TFTIKHARUL AMIN 90,80,432 841% 9080432 8.41% & =
4 MUBASHIRUL AMIN 45,90,000 425%  4550,000 4.25% - -
5 UMAIRUL AMIN 45,590,000 4.25%  4550,000 4.25% - -
6 TANVEERUL AMIN 45,00,000 4.17% 45,00,000 4.17% - -
7 FARHA FATIMA 45,00,000 4.17% 45,00,000 4.17% - -
8 SOPHIA AMIN 34,58,400 3.20% 34,58,400 3.20% ] .
9 ISMAT IQRAL 30,82,800 2.86%  30,82,800 2.86% - -
10 RUMANA AMIN 26,33,400 244% 2633400 2.44% - -
Tatal - 5,24,61,434 58.78% 6,34,61,434 58.78% - -

{C) Terms and rights sttached to equity shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having s par value of Re. 1 per share. Each holder of equity sheres is entitled to one vote per share. The
company declares and pays dividends in Indinn Rupecs. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the gharcholders in the
I the event of liquidation of the comparry, the holdees of squity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distritagtion of all
proferential amounts, The distribotion will be in proportion to the trmmbsr of equity shtes held by the sharcholders.

(D) Detalls of sharcholders holding more than 5% sharss In the comparny

Sharcholder's Name As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of Shares % No. of Sharea %
(@) M. Vegarul Amin 1,78,83,900 16.56% 1,78.83,900 16.56%
(b) M. Ighal Ahsan 91,42,502 847% 91,432,502 8AT%
(=) M. Htikham! Amin 90,80,432 8.41% 90,820,432 841%
2002-23 2021-22
{No. of Shares) (No. of Bhares)
(B} Equity Sharee allotted as fully pald pursuant to contract(s) without NIL NIL
{F) Equity Shares allotied as fillly paid up Bomus Sharer during the NIL NIL
{@) Equity sharea bay-back in immediately preceding five years NIL NIL
{H) Shares held by holding/ultimate holding compeny end/or their NIL NIL
@ () The Board of Directars of the Company has ded a final dividend of Re., 0,03 per equity share (5%4) face value of Re,1 sach for the year ended

March 31, 2023, subject to the epproval of Sharcholders.

{b) The company has paid finel dividend of Re.0.05 per squity share(53%) face value of Re.]1 each for the year ended March 31,2022 .
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13 Otharaquity
Particularg As at March 31, 2023 Ag gt March 31, 2022
Rs. In laes Rs. In lacs

(8) Capital Regerve 17.67 17.67
(b) Securities Premium 27018 270.18
{c) General Reserve 4455.23 4,50922
(d) Retained Earnings 3,755.94 3,139.57

Total 8,499.02 7,936.54

(A) Caphal Reserve
It represent the gain of capital nature which manly include the excess of value of net aazets acquired over considerstion paid by the company for business

(B} Securites Premium
Securitics premium rescrve ie used to record the premivm on igsue of sharce and ip utilized in dance with the provigions of the Act,

(C} Ganeral Reserve
Mandatory transfier to general reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013,

(D) Retained Eamings
Retained eamings are the profit thet the Company has eamed till date, leas ey tremafers to genersl reserve, dividends paid or other distributions out of

14 Financial Liabiitles - Non-current: Borrowings

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In |acs

Secured

Rupee loans

Team loans from banks - INR - -

Vehicle Term loans from banks - INR. 44,83 53.73

Total 44,83 53.73

Repayment terms;

(g} The clazsification of loans beteween corrent lishilitles end non -coreent Habilities contimmes based on repayment schedule under respective agrecmernts aq
no loens have been recalled due to non complisnce of conditions wnder any of the loan agreements.

(b) Inberest retes: Loans availed from banks in INR carry interest mate ranging from % 10.05% to 11.65 % (March 31, 2022: 10.05% to 11.65%) for term

(¢} Scheduled : Contracinal in ease of loans fiom bk (incl Current mshurities disclosed under other Current ffnaneial
Particulare As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. in Lacs Re. in Lacs

Upto three years 58,79 115.65
Between three to five yoars 9.58 6.15
Onver five yeare = 2

Refer note 39(ivi(h) () & (TIT) on Dirterest rate risk and Liquidity Risk nezpectively.
Security details:-
Term Loan pther than Vehicle Loang
Aforesmid Term Losng are zecured by hypothecation/morigage of company's ble and im ble properties. Further secured by the personal
guaranice of promoter Directors of the comperty and Asrifi tarmers Ltd, which is the sylwidiary of the company,
Vehicle Loans
Secnred by hypothecation of vehiclo financed.

15 Deferred tax [labliities {Net)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
Tax effect of tems consthtweting deferrad tax Rebiity
Borrowings meamured at amortized coat
On difference between book balance and tax balanoe of fixed assets 722.84 66743
On MtoM valustion of derivatives and other itemms 136.90 13925
859.74 805.68
Tox effect of items constitwting defarrad bax oseats
Expenses allowable on payment hasis and other iterms 108.19 93.21
Totel Tax effect of items constitating deferred tax assets 108.19 9321
Net Deferred Tax Lisbility 751.55 713547
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16 Other Non-current Lisbilities

Particulare As gt March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Re.
Deferred Reveme
Govt Grant under IDLS 94.82 135.09
EPCG Obligatlons 43173 364,49
Totnd 526.55 489.50
(a) Govemment Girant noder IDLS, the deferred grant i 1s recognized in St of Profit and Loss cn a gysternatic: hasie oner the usedl life of assst

on which such grant is received subject to compliance of ofber terma & conditions of the scheme.

(b} Vnder BPCG scheme, the Compeny is committed 1o export poescribed times of the duty seved oo impost of capitel goods over s specified pariod of time
apart from maintaining averags expart groorth. n caze such commitments are not met, the Compamy would be required to pay the duty raved along with
intereqt to the regulatory authoritics. The deferred grant income 38 recognized in Statement of Profit and Loes on & ysicmatic baxis over the periods in

17 Finarvcial Liabilthes - Curnsirt: Short b Borrowdngs
Particulare

As at March 31, 2023
Rs. In lacs

As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs

Secured
Wotking Captal Loan from brnle
Rupec Loams
{) Cash Credit
(i} Packing Credit
{iii) Advance agrinst bills sent for collection

419.50
4,521.2%
L671 82

430.48
4,542.88

1,822 56

6,612,861 6,795.52

Current mamsitios of long term homowings 68,07

Other Short tarm Bottowinga
Foreign Cummency loan
() Stand by line of Credit{SBLC)

Total
Amcunt of defimlt a1 on the Balanoe Sheet date:

{a) Repaymest of loan NIL
{b) Interest on Losn NIL NIL

13444 #31.00

6,77L59 7,694.99

(A) Secutlty
‘Working Capitel Loans ers primerily secured by hypotheeation of present end fitnre Current Assets and Astionable Claims (viz. Inventories, trade
recolvabls / book debts, ding moniss, recebvahile claime, bills and materials in trangit),
Thees are firrther collaterally sscured by exteswion of chargs ower moveable and i hle properties of the contp

Further secured by pemscaal guarantes of promoter dmmr(a)d‘ﬂneumpmymdﬁmﬁmlﬁ.whnhuﬂwnhm&uyofﬂwumpmy

(B) Stand by Lime of Credit(S8BLC) are primarily secured by hypothecation of Plant and machinery and rew materinl and are further secured by personal
guernies of p i (3) of the compeny mmd Aarifi tanners 1id. which i the subgidiery of the company.

{C) Ratc of Interest
Wotking caphial crodit fucdlities carry Ingrast rabes anging fcem 9,105 to 190,15%,

18 Financal Lisbilthe - Current: Trade Payable

Particulare As Jt March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. Rs.
() Total Ouvtgtinding Drues tr trdcro snd small enserprises (rofe note bokw) 7138 77.20
(t) Totel Outstanding Due to parties other than micro mnd gmall enterprises 347435 326507
Total 3,545.73 5,842.27
Trade Payshlc ageing Schedule: Rs. In lacs
Pecticulan Not Due Outstanding fram dus date/date of transaction Total
Less than 1 year - 2 year - More than
1 year 2 yaar 3 ysar 3 yeane
Asg at March 31, 2023
Undispated Duss
() MBSME (Micro and Smell Entities) 2244 48.94 - - - 71.38
(i} Othern 92848 2.506.22 495 018 3452 347435
Disgruted Duoss
() MSME (Micro and Small Entities) s - = s = .
(i) Others = = - : - :
Total 250.93 2,555.15 4.95 0.18 34.52 3,545.13
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As at March 31, 2022
Undisputed Dues
() MSME (Micro and Small Entities) 67.50 9.70 - - - 7720
() Odhas 1,784,10 1,340.03 78.01 44,55 1838 3,265.07
Disputed Dues -
() MSME (Micro and Small Prtitics) - - - - - -
(i) Others . - - - . .
Total 185160 L389.73 78.01 4455 338 334227
Notz: The compeny has requested confimmation from Suppliers regarding their registration (filling of Memorandum) mder the Miovo, Small and Medium
Enterprices Davalopment Act, 2006 {fhe MEMED Act). According to the information availahle with the company, the following disck has haen made in
Particulss As at March 31, 2023 Ag gt March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
(8) Prineipel smwunt and interest doe thereon remeining mpsid o ey supplier at the
Principal Amonnt 7138 7720
Interest due on sbove L10 038
(b) Amonnt of interect paid by the company in terma of saction 16 of the MEMED NIL NIL
Act, Blong with the emount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
(¢ ) Amount of interest due and paynbla for the peciod of deluy in mgking payment NIL NIL
(which have been paid but beyond the appeinted day during the year) but without
(d) the it of intarset d and ining nnpaid at the end of the year 5.64 454
(e ) the emowumt of further interest remaming dne end payshle even in the sucoeading
yearx, until uch date when the intarert dises sbove are acmally paid to the amall NIL NIL
enterpeise, for the purpose of disallowence of B deductible expenditure mder
19 Financial LUsbilties - Current: Other Amandal Liabliities
Particulam As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In laes Rs. In lacs
{b) Buok overdruft from banks 38.40 130.86
(c) Unclaimed Dividend * 7.64 9.10
{d) Other Liahiliting 687.98 70852
Total Tad.02 B4E.48
* Rep dividend either not Y in with Section 125 of the Companics Act, 2013
20 Othar Cumant Liabllitles
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As gt March 21, 2022
RE. In lacs Rs. In lacs
(2 Advance fram customers 106.25 32429
{b) Advence egrinst sale of fixed asssts 373.10 319.60
(c) MTM valustion on forwerd cover 40.32 2555
Total 519.67 563,44
M Cumant Liabittas: Provisions
Particulers As at March 31, 2023 As gt March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
Provisien for Gramity 214.21 191.407
Provision for taxation 690 1125
Total 22111 202.32
22 Revenue from oparstions
Particulara As at March 31, 2033 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
() Saks/Income from operations
() Sales (Expent) 17,654.38 17405.79
{ii) Exchange Fluctustion on Sales (Export) 369.19 304.42
(ifi) Sales (Indigenons) 3,545.72 347190
{refer Note (c) below for break-up} 21,569.2% 21,182.11
{b) Other operating revenne
Export Incentivew {rofir Note (d) below for break-up} 889.81 835.57
Revenue from operstions (gross) 22.459.10 22117.68
(<) Breakup of Sales
Finished Leather (mcluding Split) 11,641.95 10,717.58
Leather Shoc md components $.927.34 10,464.53
Total 21,559, 21,182.11
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640.0B 67818
249.73 25739
BEY.81 935,57
13 Othar Income
Particulsrm As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
(8) Foteet Incotre
- from Fixed Deposit with Banka 1931 2370
- Interest received on Income Tax 593
(b} Profit on Sale of Propeety Plant & Equipanents 29.17 525
() Miscollaneons Income 1519 3155
(d} Defared reveme on EPCG & IDLS Subsidy 100.42 7426
() Lisbilitiosfprovisions no ired _ _
(e} Share of profit from the LLP 623 5.63
() Accretion in Frvestrment - 011
Total 208.15 141.50
24 Cost of material consurnad
Particulars As at Marceh 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
Raw Matarial consnmed
(s} Raw Hide for sole 40.41 197.65
(b) Raw Hide for chrome 2943 87 4,155.07
(£} Wet Bhye Leather Chrome 27726 361,09
(d) Upper for safety shoes 301.38 1,576.97
(€} Pimish leather for shoe opper and shoes 2010.74 1,855.19
{) Othess 507.46 13.05
Raw Material consomed 6,581.62 8,159.02
Chemicals consmmed 4,102.68 335283
Stores & Spares vonsumed 1,863.89 2,12097
Total 554[.19 55!2.82
25 Purchese of stock In trade
Particulsrs As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs._ In lacs Rs. In lacs
(&) Finished Leather (incloding Split) 1570.6% 4521.60
(b} Shoe Upper 370.91 29239
Total 3941.56 EH.”
26 Incravag/decreasa In Inventories
Farticularg As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs._In lacs Rs. In lacs
Inwentories at the commencement of the year
Finished Goods 1379.08 1,410.08
Work in procesa 2293.09 3,201.39
Waste & Scrap 118.51 120.09
TOTAL'A' 3,790.68 4,TIL56
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goads 1,083.34 1,379.08
Work in process 1,950.38 2,293.09
Wasto & Sotap 20,88 118.51
TOTAL B' 3,054.58 3,790.68
Decreasa/{increase} in Stocks [A-B) 736.10 940.88
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ﬂanlﬂnlhmﬂlm

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Ra. In lacs Rs. In lacs
Salary and Bonme 75043 665.78
Directors Retmmeration 61.98 6339
Contribrotion to Provident and other finds 7880 7453
Contribution o Gramity Fund 3732 43,63
‘Workmen and Staff Welfire expenses 59.56 37.62
Total m 880.35
28 Finance cost
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
Interest on
- Term Loen - 094
- Otherg 352.08 283.63
352.06 28457
Bk Cherges 78.85 9728
Forelgn Bank Chargee 14.72 14.18
Total 445.63 356.03
29 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Particular As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
Depreciation/Amortieation cn Tangibls Asgets 655,16 526,48
Amortization of Intangible assete 0.49 038
Tatal 555.65 626,86
30 Dther axpenses
Particulsm As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
Marmfactiring Expenses
Job Work Charges 1,284.64 1,17958
Power end Fuel w117 579.12
Polhrtion Contral Expenses 119,31 63.51
PRepaire and Maintenance
- Buildng 117.64 18.43
- Muchinery 142.51 B3.58
2371.27 192922
Freight, Hendling and Other Sales end Distribution Expenses 1221.23 1,23L.70
Comnriggion cn Sals 101,47 110,39
Advertisement and Publicity 4.05 299
Bad Debts - Provision/write off 2793 1892
Expected credit loss 17.50 33.60
1372.18 1,397.60
Bateblishment Expenses
Remt 21.55 17.56
Ratee and Taxen 5244 45.74
Insurence 41.21 25.74
E.C.G.C Premmimn 70.43 B535
Commymication cost 3523 725
Travelling and Conveyance 189.72 121.52
Repaire and Maintenance - Others 68.23 5998
Printing snd Statlonery 11.66 10.26
Lagal and Profassinnal Charges 55.80 6232
Augditor's Remunerstion {refer Note () below} 3.20 330
Miscellansons Expeascs 192.80 B2.06
R h & Development Exp 540 2,18
CSR Expenditure 10.81 920
Subseription mnd Denation 12.02 1029
Loss a1 Sals of Property Plaat & Equipsments 0.16 3.55
Dimmmnition in valne of Tmvestrment: 0.29 -
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Exchange Fluctoation 56,32 -
827.77 567.31
Total A571.22 3,894.13
(8) Auditor’s remeration cormprises:
As suditor 3.20 3.30
Total 3.20 3.30
Particulars As at Mareh 31, 2023 As at Mareh 31, 2022
Rs. In lacs Rs. In lacs
31, Eaming per share (EPS)
(8) Profit for the year (Rs. in Lacs) 605.88 402.92
(b) Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of 10,79,73,350.00 10,79,73,360.00
of caloulation of Basic and Dilnted EPS
() Wominal vatoe of equity shares (Rupees) 1.00 1.00
(d} EPS- Basic and diluted {Rupees per share) 0.56 037
32, Capttal and other commitments
i.  Estimated value of contracts remaining to be exscuted on capital
account (net of advances) 180.71 131.35
il  Other Commitments NIL NIL
33. Contingent Babilties
(i} Comtingent Liabilitice in respect of:
() Letter of Credit opencd and outstamding 589,31 1,064.64
{b) Claims against the compsny not acknowledzed as debt NIL NIL

34, Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Emglcyee Banafits":

{a) Defined Contribution Plan
The employses of the Company are members of 3 state-managed retirenwent benefit plans namely Providest fand and Pension and Employee State
Innrance (EST) operated by the Government of India. The Company is required to contritade a specified percentage of paytoll costa to the retirement
The only obligation of the compeany with respect to such retirement and other benefit plan iz to meke the speeified contributions,
The Company hae recognized the following amounts in the Incwmne Siatement during the year under ‘Comkibution to staff provideat and other finds'
Ra. in Lace
Particulars 202223 2021-22
Employer’s contribution to PF and FPF 6248 5945
Employer’s contribution to ESIC 1632 1548
[Total 7880 7453 |
{b) Defined Benefit Plan
The employees Gratuity Fund Scheme, which iz a defined benefit plan, is managed by the st maintained with LIC. The present vahie of obligation is
deteyrmined based on actusrial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Methad, which recognises each period of service s giving rise to additional writ of
Rs. In lacs
Particulars Gratulty {Funded) Gratulty {Funded)
31-03-2023 31-03-2022
(A} Movements in present valne of defined benefit obligation
Obligations ag at beginning of the year 325.42 305.93
Current setvioe coat 36.67 34.62
Dinterest cout 23.11 20.80
Curtailment cost/(credit) - -
Scttlement cost/(eredif) = o
Curmrent acrvice contritmtion- cmployees - -
Past Secvice Cost - -
Plan amendment - -
Acquisitions - -
Remeasurement {or Actnarial {gain)/Less} arising from - -
- change in demographic assmmpstion - -
- change in financial agemrpstion {1.18) {5.99)
- CRpETiChEE VariEmce (13.57) (16.94)
- others = -
Boenefits paid (30.16) {12.00)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at end of the year 340.2% 325.42
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Movements in the fhir valne of plan aecets

Fadr vl of plan uspets ot beginning of the ysar

Investment Incoms

Retun on plan esscty, excluding amount recognised in net Intereat cxpense
Actnal contribmtions by the employer

Fair vahae oof plan asseis ag at snd of the year

Amcumnt recognized in the balance gheet

Precent valne of defined benefit obligaticn ax at s of the year

Fair value of plan usseiz ag at snd of the year

Funded status {Surplusi(deficit)}

Effect of balence sheet sanet limit

Unirecopniged past sarvice cast

Wit asgot(Hability) recognised in balance sheet

Net ascti(liahility) recognised in balance eheet at beginning of the year
Ex gnized in Stab t of Profit and Loes

E dged in Other C beistve T

Net assati(Hability) recognicad in halance gheet at end of the year

Ammmis recogrized in the siatement of profit and loss
Current service cost

Titarest cost

Loss{(gain) on settement

Peat gervice cost

Total

Retomn on plan sssets, exchyiig amoumt recognised in net Intereat cxpense
R (e fal (gain)/lors) aricing diws to asset celling

Tatal

1. Bffect due to 1,00% marwese in discomt rete
2. Effect due to 1.00% decrease in digcoint rate
B. Salary Eecalation Rate
1, Effect dus to 1,00% i in palary eacalation rate
2. Bifect dus to 1.00% decrease in mlary cecalation mie
C. Withdrawal Rate
1. Bffect due to 30% increase in withdrawal rate
2, Effact due to 50% decreass n withdrawal rats
D. Mortelity Bt
1. Bffect due to 10% increase n mortality rate
2. Effect dne to 10% decrease in mortality rate

Risk Exposure - Asset Volatility
The plan liskilities &re caloulsted Tsing & i

100.00%

5.36%
75%

B.75%
-5.89%

0.15%
0.15%

126,08
(214.21)

(214._21)

(191.0%
50.23

(14.18)
1291

214.21)

36.67
13.56

(1?1::)
{13.57)

0.57

(14.18)

318.65
365.81

363,25
32026

339.79
340,79

34023
340.33

Mozt of the plan asset investments i in fixed income sscnritien with high grades and in povernment cacuritiax,

Thawe are subject W inberest rae tgk wnd the fimd munages: indarest tabs rigk dorhvithves to mrimimd

tigk fx ana

invested in equity securitics and in altemnative imvestments %6 which have low comrelation with equity securitics.
The squity securitics are sxpected to sam a retum in excess of the discomnt mte mnd sontributz to the plan deficit.

Axtuerisl aspumplions

100,00%

S43%
761%

£.26%
-5.95%

-0.18%
0.18%

0.03%

Axtoerial valustion as af the year-ond wes done in respect of the sforessid defined benefit plans besed on the following sasumptions:

115%
200%
850%

122,76

025
15.00

(12.00)
134,36

32542
134,36
(191.08)
as1.06)
(183.17)
47.08
(@2418)
1500

as1om

1246

(6.99)
(16.94)
2y

(24.18)

32542

304.45
350.18

347,73
306.05

324.84
3261

32535
32530

Tate aet with reference to bond yields; if plen assets underperionm this yield, this will create 8 defivit,

pinble level, A portion of the fimds wee
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Notes forming part of the Standalons Ainsnclal Statements for the year snded March 31, 2023

ii} Murbality rates considered ame ag per the published rates in the India Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimabe,

iy Lenve pollcy: Leave bulance as at the valuation date and each subsequant year following the valustion duts to the exent not svadled bry the snployes
sovumulated up to 31at Deoember 2022 is availsble for encashment .

iv) The discount rate should be based upon the market yields available on Govermment bonde ot the accounting date with a tenm that matches that of the

v} The expectsd mtbe of retnm on plan aexets ia hassd on market expactation, at the beginning of the year, for retuma over entirs lifs of the ralated

vi) The asgumption of firare salary increases, congidersd it actuarial veluation, takee t of inflaticn, peniceity, p tion, mapply and d d and

vii) Lisbdlity on accomnt of Loty term absences has been actnadally valued as per Projectsd Thut Credit Method.

viii} Sheet tesrn compendated shyonoes heve boen provided on actusl busis,

N Defined benefit linbility and employer contribotions:

1) Expected contributions to post-employmsed benefit plans in naxt year Re249.67 lace Ra, 224,75 lacs
if) The weighted average duration of the defined henefit obligation is § years. The expectsd matyrity analysie of nndieconnted gratmity benefits is as follows:
R inLacs
Perind 31.03.2023 3032022
1 Year 119.73 10956
205 Years 76.74 75.11
6to 10 Yeare 109.55 101.66
More Than 10 Yeas 382.50 37721
Total 68852 663.54

35. Disclosure es per clouse 34(3) and 53(6) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosurs Requirsnents) Regulations 2015 and Secton 186 (4) of the

(2} Loans to mbsidisrics: {Rs. in Lacs)
Relationsh| Amount cutstandings on Parcaminge to the total Loans & | Madmum Maximum
Neme of the compeny ] March 31 |.M
2023 2022 2023 200
Super Tatmery (UK) Ltd Subsidisey 130.04 130.04 130.04 130,04
Secnre safety lmited Subsldieey 1249 12.49 1249 1249
Super Italia SRL Subgidi 87.59 87.59 §7.59 §7.59

The aforcanid Loans har been given to meet the working capital requirements and the same has been utilieed for the same jarposce.

B  Iovegiments: refier Nobe No, 3 (A)
¢) Quarmtes given
The company has not given my corporate guarantee, for sceuring the credit fcility.
d) Security provided:
The compary has not provided ey other recurity to/ffor any of it subsidieries and sssociates.

36 Expendiura on Corpomts Sockl Responsibility [CSR)
InpnrmmeofﬂnmmmlofﬂwCumpamﬂAﬁ,ZOlSdeSRPohcyofﬂnCommyﬂmmunedhnpmﬂtwopmtnfﬂwwmt]xuﬁmfw
the three i dhi ds CSR activitics.
mmmmmmmmmmmmmumwhmmmmm
the yoar is Rs. in Lacs 10.81 Laca.

The amount recogniscd as expense in the Statement of Profit end Losx on CSR related activities ia Re. 10.81 Lacs {previcus year: Re. 9.20
Lace) detriled ax umder:

Rs. In kacs

Particulara 2022-23 2021-22
Paid Yet to be paid Total Paid Yet to be paid Total
CSE. Bapenditore 10.81 - 10.81 2.20 - 520
Tl 10.81 - 10.81 .30 - .20
37. Expenditurs on Ressarch and Developmant

Rs. In kacs
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Revenue Expenditure 540 2.18
| Total 540 2.18

38. Discloture puriuant o Ind AS 116 "Leases”™:
(2} Wheve the compery is Lessor
The compeny hes not exntered into any Lease arrangements.

(b) Whete the competty Is Lessee
The coxnpany has not entered intd any Lease arangemeis,

39. Anandal Instruments
(i) Capital Management

The Company’s cepitel manageerent is intended to creats valos for sharsholders by facilituting the meeting of long-term and short-em goals of the
The capital structure of the company congists of debt, which includes the borrowings mcluding temporery ovendrawn balence , cash mnd cazh equivelents
(Re. in Lacs)
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Gi)

(i)

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
681642 7,748.72

339.81 297.53

647661 7451.19

9,578.75 9,016.37
0.68 0.83

Categurice of fingncinl ingtrimesnts

Caleulation of Fair Values

The fair values of the financial pasets end liskdlites are defined as the: price thet would be received to sell an agset or paid to transfier & Hability inan
orderly tremsaction between market participants at the measrement date. The following methods snd assmmptions were uzed to estimate the fiir values
8) Tha fair values of investment in quoted itvestment in equity shares is baged an the current bid price of Tespective imvestmesrt ae at the Balance Sheet
b) The fair value of the leng-tenm borrowings carrying floating-rate of interest is not impacted dne to interest rate changes and will not be significantly
different from their camying amounts as there is no significant change in the nnder-lying credit risk of the Company (since the date of incepticn of the
¢) The fair value of loans from banks and other financial indebtedness as woll as other non current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting firture
cash flows using rates currently available for debt or similar terms end remaining matarities.

d) Cash and carh equivalentz, trade receivables, other finemcial assets, trade payables, and other fmancisl lisbilities have fair valnes that approximate to
their carrying amounts due to their ghort-term natyre,

{Ra. in Lacg}
Particulars | Asallﬂlrcllgms Asallﬂlrchgm
Carrying value | Falr value Carrying valua Falr value
Financial Assets
Financial assets measured at fair value
Envestments measured at
i. Fair value through oéher comprehensive income 307.90 301.97
ii. Fair value through profit and loss 0.52 0.52
Financial assets measured st amortized cost
Trade Receivables 5,339.06 5,325.67
(Cash and cash cquivalents 339.81 297.53
[Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 442,63 509.26
Other fi inl arscts 391,76 724,52
Total 6,513,286 30842 6,856.98 30249
Financial Lishilitics
Financial lisbhilities measmmed at amortized cost
Bomrowings 5,816.42 7,748.72
'Trade payables 3,545.73 334227
Other financial lisbilities 734.02 B48.48
Total 11,096.17 - 11,939.47 -
{Rs. in Lacg}
2022-23 2021-22
(17.50) (33.60)|
{0.29) o1l

Fair value mensurements recognized in the balance sheet:

The following teble provides an analysis of finencial metrorments that ere measured subseqoent to mitial recognition at fiir valne, grouped into Levels 1
10 3 bascd on the degree to which the fair value is obacrvable,

-Level 1 fair value messyrements are: thoae derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or linbilitics,

~Level 2 fair value measurcmends are thoae derived from inputs other than quoted prices inchuded within Level 1 that are obacrvable for the asset or
liability, sither directly {i.e. 3¢ prices} or indirectly (ie. dedived from pricee).

-Lewel 3 fair value measurements are those derived fhom valoation techniques that inclnde inputs for the aset or linhility that are not based on observable

(iv) Financinl riek management ohjectives:

The Company’s principal financial Habilities comprize of loan from banks and financial ingtitutions, and trade payables. The main mupose of these
fineneinl Hobilites is to ruise finance for the Clormmpary’s opesations. The Comnpany hag various Bnaneis] assete goch an trade recedvables, cash and ghort
The main risky eriging from Company's financial instroments are foreign ourency risk, eredit rigk, merdcet rigk, inteveat rute tisk and Bquidity riak. The
Board of Directors review end agree policies for menagimg each of these riskn.

{a) Credit risk:

Credit risk is the riek of financial loas to the Company if 2 customer or counterparty o 4 financial ingtrament faile to mect its contmctual obligations, and
arises principally fiom the Company’s trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents sud other bank balances. The mazinmm sxposure to credit
Trade and Other receivables
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Notes forming part of the Standalong Ainanclal Staterments for the year endad March 31, 2023

Custamer credit is managed by each business unit mbject to the Company's established policies, procedures and control relating to customer credit rigk
managenent. Trade recelvables are non-imksreut boating and are genesally on 90 days credit term. Crodit limity are egtablished Sir all cogtormers baved on
The Conpery mesamares the expectod credit loss of trade revetvablos besed on histericsl trend, industry practices and the bosiness atviromrment in which
the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actusl credit loss experience and past trends.

Expected credit loss assessment for customers:
The company i making provizions on trede receivebles based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. The reconciliation of ECL i as follows:

(Rg. in Lacg)
Particulars 032-23 1021-22
Impairment logs ag per ECL recogniped/{reversed) 17.50 33.60
Additional Provisicn/writs off 27.93 18.92
Amomnt debited to Profit and Loss 4543 52.52
Orther financial ageets

The Company tmaintaing exposute in cash and cash squivalents, term deposits with banks and destvative conteacts,

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Re, in Tacs 339,81 Lace at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022; Rs, in Lacs 297,53 Lacs), Cash and cash
equivalents are beld with repotable and credit-worthy banks,

Individual risk limits are set for each countee-party based on financial position, credit rating and pest expecience. Crodit limite and concenteation of
exposured mre sotively manitered by the Minagement of the Conpaty.

{b) Market risk:
Mareot Risk fs the rak thet the fair vaboe or foture cash flows of a fruscisl istraent will st bocause of changes in madost prices. Mirket tsk
comprises three typea of risk: currency rigk, intereat mate risk end price rak.

(I) Forcign currency risk

The Company i exposed to currency risk on accomt of ite operating end fimemeing activitics. The fimetionsl currency of the Company is Indien Rupee.
Companys cxpomire iz mainly denominated in USD, GBP end Furo. The exchenge rates have changed enhetantially in recent perinds and may cottime
to finchyate substantially in the foture, The Company has pat in place & Financisl Risk Management Policy to Identify the moet effective and efficient
ways of managing the corancy tsks. The Company uses derivative ingtoments (meinly fovegn exchange forward contracts) to mitigste the sk of
The Compeny do not nse derivative fmencial mstroments for trading or speculative purposes.

(1L} Fterest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is meagmred by using the cash Oow sensitivity for changes in variahle interest rates. Ay movement in the refarence rates could heve an
impact on the Company’s cash flows as well s ooats. The Compeny slso uses 8 mix of interest rate sensitive fmeneial mstroments to menage the
Liquidity and fimd requirements for its day to day operaticns like ghort-term loans.

Interest rate sensittvity analysis:

Ar ot March 31, 2023 interset bearing financial hiability ( d Inen from banks) stood at Re., in Tace 6816.42 Lacs, was subject to varishle interest
rutes, Increase/decroaso of 50 basis podnts In Interest rates at the balance sheet date would result in decroase/incroase i prodit befors tax of Rs. in Lacs
The risk estimates provided arsnme g paralle] shift of 50 basis poinix intereat rate. Thiz calenlation alec samumes that the change occurs at the balance
gheet dats and hag been calcolaied hassd on gk exposmres catstanding as at that date, The perind end balances are not neceesarily represestative of the
average debt outstanding doting the pexiod.

Feir value of financis] instruments:

All financial assets are initislly recognized et frir valne of consideration paid. Subsequently, financisl ssectz are carried at fiufr value or amortized cost
leae mpaimment. Where non — derivative financial assetx are carried at fair value, gains and losees on re- measurement are recognized directly in equity
wnless the financisl assets have been designated as being held at fair value through profit or loes, in which case the gains and loeses ave recognized
directly in the standalone staterment of prodit and loss, Financial assets are designated as being held st fair valoe throngh profit o loss when 1t is necessary
1o reduoe messurement inconsistency for related sssets and lisbilities. All finemcial linkilities other than derivatives ere initinlly recognized at fair value of
coneideration received net of transacticn coata ae appropriste (initial cost) end subsequently carried at amortized coat.

The Company follows 8 Conservative policy of ennring sufficient Hquidity st ell thmes through 8 stretegy of profiteble growth, efficient iquidity at all
mw.mﬁmmcﬁmmmmuwﬂmm@mmmMMnm
facility with banks to suppart amy temporary

ThCumpmbﬂmewwhmdmsheqnimm tiod up borrowlng lines wnd cash fow thet is generated fiom operations is sofficient
meet requirements. Accordingly, liquidity risk is perceived to be low.

Liquidity table:

Liquidity tebles drawn up bazed on the cash flows of finemcial lisbilities based on the earliest dete on which the Company can be required to pay ia
disclosed et Note no. 49.

(V} Other price risk:
The Compeany is not exposed to any significant equity price risks arising from equity imvestments, a8 on 31et March 2023. Bquity imvestments are held for
etratexic rather than trading purposes, The Company does not actively trade thess investments,

There is no exposure to equity price riska ax ot the reporting date or ag at the previcus reporting daks,
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Notes forming pert of the Standalone Ananclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

40. Disdosura puruant to Ind AS 27 "Separate Financial Statementa™
Investments in following subsidiaries and associstes iz accounted st cost:

S.  Nama of Subskilary company f Aa ot March 31, 2023 As ot March 31, 2022
No. Assoclate Company Bfiective Phective Bliective PRective
Principal Placa
OF Bt proportion of proportion of proportion of proportion of
ownership voting power ownarship voting power
Inbarest PE) Interest H Interest H Interest ﬂ
(A) Wholly Owned Sobsidiaries (Foreign)
i  Super Taoneey (UK} Lid. UK 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
ii  Super Italia SRL Italy 100.00%% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
(B) Subsidisries (fndis)
i,  Angrifi Tanners Limited India 82.52% B82.52% B1L52% B2.52%
ii. Super Comporation Limited India 32.00%% 52.00% 52.00% 52.00%
ifi, 8 Safity Limited India 53.29% 63.29% 63.29% 63.29%

41, There is no amount due and outetemding to be credited tn Investor Edocation & Protection Pund s at March 31, 2023.

42, Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liahilties and Contingent assets”:
The conmpenty hag recognised contingent liabilitiea aa disclosed in Note 33 above and as snch no provision is required to be made. No peovision was
ontstending es at the begirming end st the end of the year.

43, Diselownre pursuxst to Ind AS 105 “Non-corrent susets hald for sale and diseontinoed operations™:
There are no such asset beld for sale snd dscortinmed operations on 31 March 2023,

44, Tax Bxpenges
(a) Amounts recognized in profit and logs {Rs._ in Lacs)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
(Current tax expense
Current year 180.00 162.00
(Changes in estimates relating to prior years (6137} 74.20
118.63 23620
Drefiarred tax expense 3440 25.00
Origination and reversal of temporary differences - -
Recognition of previcusly unrecognized tax losses - -
34.40 25.00
Tax expense recopnized in the income siatement 153.03 261.20
(b) Amounis recognized in ofher compreheneive § {Ra. in Lace)
|Particul 202221 2021-22
Tierns thet will not be reclasgified to profit or logs
- Remeasurements of the defined henefit plima 14.17 24.1B
Tax Expenec/{Bencfit) (3.6} (629
Net of Tax 10.49 17.89
fc} (i} Unmsed tax lozaes for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the Balance Sheet NIL
(i) Uneecognised deductible temporary differences for which no deferred tax aaset is recognised in Balance Sheet NIL
(d) Components of deferred tax (assetd) and Hehilities recognised in Balance Sheet end Statement of Profit or Loss: Re. In lacs
|Particulare Balance Sheet s at Statement of Profit & Loss
31-03-2023 | 31-03-2022 31-03-2081 2022-23 2021-22
|Differenca between book halance and tax balance of fixed s 722.84 667.43 486.70 55.41 180.73
(On MtoM valuation of desivatives and véher items 136.90 139.2% 93.19 (2.3%) 46.06
Others (108,19 (53.21) (109.21) (14.98) 16.00
Net Deferred Tax (assec) Lability 751.55 713,47 470.68
|Dedierred Tax expense/(income) 38.08 242,79
- Recognieed in Staternestt of Profit & Loes 3440 236.50
- Recogmised in Cther Comprehensive [ncome 3.68 £.29 |
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Fnandal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{¢) Reconciligtion of defierred Tox (Amsct) Lishility (Ra. in Lacs)
|Pacticul 202223 2021-22
Opening Balances 713,47 470.68
Tax (incomelexpense during the perind recognired in:

- Statement of Profit and Logs in Profit or Lose section a0 23650
- Btatement of Profit and Logs under OCT section 368 529
Cloging Balances 75155 71347

45, Financial Statements of the subsidiary companies and related detailed information will be made available to the investors, of the company and subzidiary
compenies, seeking such information. The financial staterment? of the subaidiary companies are also kept at Registered Office of the comparry and that of
subgidisry companies for ingpection of mvestors of the compeny and subsidiery comparies.

46. Disclosurs of related parties/related party transactions/balances pursuant to Ind AS 24 "Releted Party Disclosures”

(A} Name of Related Partles and nature of relationship
L. Related partias over which control exist [Subsidiaries)
a} Super Tannery {U.K) Lid.
b} Super Halia SRL
¢} Aarifl Tanners Ltd
IL Joint Vantures NIL
. Key Management Personnel (KMP] & Relatives:
a} Mr. Hidkharul Amin —Managing Director
b} Mr. Igbal Ahsan — Director
¢} Mr. Veqarul Amin- Non Executive and Non Independent Director
d} Mr. Imran Siddiqul — Whole time Director
g} Mr. Arshad Khan — Whole time Director
f} Mr. Mohd Imran — Whaole time Director
g} Mr. R K. Awasthl - Company Secretary

d) Super Corporation Limited
#) Safety Secure Limited

h) Mr. ¥ S Kathyar - Non Executive Independent Director
i] Mr. Mubsshirul Amin [Son of Mr. lqbal Alsan)
1) Mr. Tanwveerul Amin {Son of Mr. Hdkharul Amin}
k) Mr. Khalld Sayeed {Brother of Mr. Imran Siddiqul)
1} Mr. Umalrul Amin {Son of Mr. Igbal Ahsan)
m) Mr. Ahmad Faraz Amin (San of Mr. Iftikharul Amin}

v Others: Enterprise over which KMP or relatives of KMP are able to exercise significant influence:

a} Amin Tannery Ltd
b} Banthar Industrial Pollution Contral Company

(8) (i} Disclosure of related party transactions during the year {In ordinary course

e] Industrial Infrastructure Services (1) Ltd
d) Bowvinl Frlls LLP

of business at arm length price) Summary:

Transactons Subsldiaries Assorlates Other related parties KMP and Relatives
As at / for the year ended As at / for the yearended  As at / for the year ended As at / for the year ended
31,0823 310322 3108.03 310322 310323 310822  31.0323 31.08.22
Purchases of materials / finlshed gooc 27.14 - - - 95.80 415.33 - -
Sale of materials / finished goods 962.45 B47.38 - - 158.79 238.82 - -
Servicas (Job Work) - - - - 024 3.35 - -
Danation o - o 5 11.70 10.45 - =
Rent recetved - - - - 0.72 072 - -
Rent paid 3.60 3.60 - - - - - -
Remuneration - - - - - - 119.87 120,29
Recelvables/Advanice {Net) 811.27 783.17 - - 128.54 231.96 011 -
Payahles {Trade payable & other llabl| 20.99 12.24 - - 10.22 48,50 30.83 17.63
Loans and Advances 230.12 23012 - - 028 0.os - 23.02
Investments  refer Note No. 3
(B} (Ii) Detall of related trarsactions during the year {in ordinary course of business at arm length price)
Name of related party & Transactions Subsidiaries Assoiates Other related parties KMP and Relatives
As at / for the year ended As at / for the year ended  As at / for the year ended As at / for the year ended
31.03.23 31.03.22 31.03.23 31.03.22 31.03.23 31.03.22 31.03.23 31.03.22
Purch materals f finlsh
Amin Tannery Ltd. - - - - 56.32 410.93 - -
Bowvinl Frills LLP - - - - 29.48 440 - -
Super Corporation Limited 27.14 - - - - - - -
27.14 . : = 9580 41533 . -
RIS OF] TT16 DR i
Amn Tannery Ltd, - - - - 10B.73 205.66 - -
Super halla SRL 962.45 B47.38 - m = = m =
Bowinl Frills LLP - - - - 90.06 33.15 - -
962.45 847.38 - - 198.79 238.82 - -
Services avalled {lob Work}
Amin Tannery Lid, - - - - 0.24 332 - -
Industrial Infrastructuras Services {Ind - - - - - 0.04 - -
Bowinl Frills LLP - - - - - - - -
=, 5 - - 0.24 3.36 - =
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Remuneration
Mir. tftikharul Amin o 5 5 # " - 24.00 24,00
Mr. Igbal Ahsan - - - - - - 2400 24,00
Mr. Imran Siddique = = n - - " 6.12 7.08
Mir. Arshad Khan - - - - - - 3492 438
Mr. Mohd Imran - - - - - - 394 394
Mr. Mubsashirul Amin - - - - - - 1834 1834
Mr. Ahmad Faraz Amin - - - - - - 5.BB 4.70
Mir. Tanveerul Amin - - - - - - 1554 15.54
Mr. Khalld Seyeed - - - - - - 1.76 1.68
Mr. Umalrul Amin - - - - - - 13.54 11.07
Mr. R K Awasthl - - - - - - 2.82 2,56
- - - - - - 119.87 120,29
Donatlan
Amin Walfare Trust - - - - 1170 10.45 - -
- - - - 1170 10.46 - -
Rent recelved
Bovinl Frills LLP - - - - 072 0.72 - -
- - - - 072 0.72 - -
Rent paid
Arifi Tanners limited 3.50 3.60 - - - - - -
{C] Outstanding belances with refated carties:
 Recshvables/Advance {Net)
Super Corporation Ltd, - 0.02 - - - - - -
Supar Tannary UK Ltd 5645 55.05 - - - - - -
Super Italla SRL 753.68 721.28 - - - - - -
Aarfl Tanners Ltd. 081 0.81 - - - - - -
Secure safety Limited L EE] - - - - - - -
Mr. Mohd Imran 011 -
Amin Tannery Ltd - - - - B85.65 202.29 - -
Bovini Frills LLP - - - - 42.89 29.68 - -
B11.27 783.17 - - 12854 23196 0.11 -
W " by o " panrable 5 b
Bavinl Frills LLP - - - - 593 - - -
Amin Tannery Ltd - - - - 4.30 47.38 - -
Amin Welfare Trust - - - 111 - -
Aarifl Tanners Ltd, 571 0.18 - - - - - -
Secura safety Limited 12,06 12.06 - - - - - -
Super Corperation Lid. .2 - - - - - - -
M. Ifdkharul Amin - - - - - = 14.80 2.00
M. Igbal Ahsan - - - - - - 007 2.00
M. Imran Skddique - - - - - - 142 138
Mr. Arshad Khan - - - - - - 0.81 0.58
Mr. Mohd Imran - - - - - - - 0.43
Mr. Mubashirul Amin - - - - - - 745 3.63
Mr. Ahmad Faraz Amin - - - - - - 109 0.85
Mr. Tarveerul Amin - - - - - - 291 2491
Mr. Khalid Sayeed - - - - - - 0.35 0.38
Mr. Umairul Amin - - - - - - 1.26 2.75
Mr. R K Awasthl - - - - - - 0.54 0.43
099 12,24 - - 10,22 48,50 20.83 17.63
{M) Loans gnd Advances
Super Italla SRL 8759 87.59 - - - = - -
Secure safety Limited 12.48 12459 = = - - = -
Super Tannery UK 13004 130.04 - - = " - =
Amin Welfare Trust - - - - 028 0.06 - -
Igbal Ahsan - - - - - - - 23.02
230.12 230.12 - - 0.28 D.06 - 23.02

(€} Mo amourt has been written off/back or provided as doubtful debts during the year in respect of related parties.
{E} Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to post-employment benefTts and other long term employee benefits recognized as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employee Benefits’ n the
financlal statemants. As these employee baneflts are lump sum amounts provided on the basls of actuarial valuation, the same Is not Included above,

47. Remunarastion to Whala Tima Directors

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
{a) Short Term Employes Banefits (Salary} 6131 62.72
{b) Comribution to defined contribution plan {PF) 0.67 0.67

Total 61.98 63.39
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48, {a} Forelgn Currency Exposure hedged and un-hedged as at the balance sheet date ks 2 unden: {Forelgn Currency amount In Lacsh

PARTICULARS usD EURQ GAP 5TG

3149.23 3Lm.22 31.03.23 3Lo3.22 31.03.23 31.03.22 31.03.23 m.22
Dedstors 35.B5 3539 14.69 1785 183 268 -
Creditars 0.50 250 126 0.10 - - - -
Dther Payables 2.36 2.52 0.09 0.08 o4 | " -
Advances 218 0.73 0.40 074 .16 -0.14 -
Cash & Bank Balance 017 o002 003 003 -
Letter of Credit 2.56 i1} 5231 - -
"roprosents less than 0.01 Lacs

{b) Derivative instrument Outstanding {Forward Carntract for hedging) [Forelgn Currency amount In Lacs}
PARTICULARS LSD f INR EURO f INR GBP fINR
202233 | 202133 202223 | 202132 | 2022-23 2021-22

| Agalnst exports 672 | 33.75 18.07 | - 845 -

49, Disclosura pursuant to Ind AS 1 "Presemtation of Financlal Stataments®,

(a) Current llabilties and borrowings expected to be recovered within twehe months and after twelve months from the reporting date:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Within After Total ‘Within After Total
twelve twelve twelve twelve
months months months months
Borrowings 6,771.59 - 6,771.59 7.654.99 - 7,694.99
Trade and other payables 3545.73 - 3,545.73 3,34237 - 3,242 27
Other finandal llabilides 73402 - 734.02 B48.48 - B48.44 |

(b} Current assets expected to be setted within twalve months and after twelve months from the raporting date:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Within After Total ‘Within After Total
twialve twelve twelve twelve
months manths h menths
Inventories 5955.98 - 5955.98 6,473.87 - 5,473.87
Trade Recehable 53349.06 - 5339.06 532567 - 5,325.67
Other Financial Assets 381.76 - 391.76 724,52 - 724.52
Other Current Assets 1,340.16 - 1,340.16 1,17640 - 1,176.40

50. Additional Regulatory Information
Additional Regulatory Information pursuant to Clause 6L of & | instructons for preparation of Balance Sheet as given in Part | of Division || of Schedule Il to the
Companles Act, 2013, are given hereunder to the extent relevant and ather than those ghven elsewhere In any other notes to the Ananclal Statements,

(a) TiHie deeds of Immovable Property not held In name of the Company
Detalls of Immovable properties hekl In the name of directors of the company -

Whathar G
dusdhalder is u
promotar directa
Title deed
Description of r ar edative® of
heat Gross Carmying | held In the . Property held | Reasen for not being held In
Tl vt o s o framiof value rameofthe| P since which date |  the name of the compamy
property com fdirector or
Fam employee of
promoter/drecto
I
Lend No. 1363, Directer{Veqarul
o , Plartt and Equipment-Land F Banther Unnao 24,712.00 Ng Amin} 14.08.2002
Land No. 1362 Director{Veqarul
Banther Unnap 99,892.00 No Amin} 14.08.2002
Land No. 1417 DiractorVeqarul
Banther Unnap|  1,05453.00 No Amin} 14.08.2002 Thawgh cost of land Is pakd by
Company but due to oversight
Larvd No., 1416 reglstration was done In the
& 1415 Director]Veqanl rame of director.Howawer the
Hunther Unnap 96,395.00 No Amin} 05.10.2002 | process of registering the tile
dnads n the name of company
Land No. 1413 ks underway at the time of
& 1414 Director{Veqarul finalzation of accounts
Banther Unnao| 2,05,820.00 No Amin} 0L01.2004
Lend No. 1354
& 1365 Director{Veqarul
Banther Unnao 42,350.00 No Amin} 10.03.2004
Land No. 1366 Directar{ifdkharul
Banther Unnap|  1,02,520.00 No Amin} 14.09.2004

79



SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

{b} Falr Value of Investment Property

The Company do not have any Investment property.

The Cnmpanv has not revalued any of Its Prnnertv, Plant & Equlpment and Intanglble Asset, during the year.

{d) Detalls of Benaml Property held
The company do not have any Benam| Property, where any proceading has been Initlated or pending agalnst the company for holding any benaml property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and the rules made thersunder,

{e) B .
The t‘:nmpeanylI has a w::rldng Caplual IImIt nf Rs 10,430 Lacs from c::nsorﬂum of 58I oompnslng of Fund-based limits of Rs. 8,600 Lacs and non-fund-based limits of
Rs 1,830 Lace. For the said facility, the Company has submitted Stack and debtars statement ta the bank on monthly basis as also the Quarterly Information
Statements. The differance between value as per books of accounts and as per quarterly statements submitted with lenders are as under:
{Rs. In Lacs)
Value as per Value as per quarterty Difference Reason for Difference
Quarter ending Books of Arcaurts statements submitted
with lenders
June 30, 2022 8513 57] 8,625.61 {113.04)| The differences ara thare,
September 30, 2022 1_3184.79| 12,861.20 323.59 |berause the statements
December 31, 2022 12151.75| 12,474.47 {322.71)|flled with the lenders are
March 31, 2023 11295.04 11,112.43 175.61 |based on financlal
June 30, 2021 12265.52 12,885.36 619.84) | statements prepared on
September 30, 2021 12366.12 12,913.59 (547.47) | provisional basis,
December 31, 2021 11365.95 11,487.34 (121.39)]
Mareh 31, 2022 11795.54 11,534.54 265.00 |
{f Witful Defaulter

The Company has not been declared as a wlliful defautter by any lender who has powers to dedlare a company as a willful defaulter at any fme during the financlal
year ar after the and of reporting period but befare the date when the financial statements are approved.

{g) Relationship with Struck off Companles
The companmy has ne transactions with companles struck off under section 248 of the Companles Act, 2013 or sectlon 560 of Companles

Them ks na chargs ar satkfactlnn H'lereufyet ta be reglsta'ed wﬂh qustrar of Companies beyond the statutory perlod == on the date of Balance Sheet except the

following:

Dascripton of Charge Asinlacs Duadate Aeasan

Charge In favour of SBI 40.00 The Comparty if follbwing up with relevart banker for the purpose of filling of
Charge In favour of UCO bank In 20,00 satisfaction of charges,

respect of vehlcle lan

Charge in favour of 5Bl 5.00

Charge in favaur of SBI 40.00

{I} Compliance with humber of layers of companies
There Is no non-compllance of provisions regarding the number of layers prescribed under clause {87) of sectlon 2 of the Act read with Companles {Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

{l} Ohe Company has not granted any loans or advances In the nature loans etther repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or perled of rapayment.

{k] The Company has not recelved any funds from any personi{s) or entlty(les), Including forelgn entities {Funding Party} with the understanding {whether recorded In
writing or otherwise} that the Campany shall;
|. Mracty or Indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or entithes Identlfled In any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the Funding Party [Ultimate beneflclaries),
Il. Provide any guarantee, security or the lTke to or on behalf of the Uldmate Beneficlarias,

{l} Undisclosed Income
The Company daes not have any transactions which Is not recorded In the boaks of aceounts but has bean surrendersd or disdosed as Incame during the year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 { such as, search or survey or any other relevant provislons of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

{m) Detalls of Crvoto Currence or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or Invested In Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.

{n} Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
During the year, no Scheme of Arrangements has besn approved by the Campetent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Campanies
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{o} Ratios
Partlculars Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022 Varlance and Reason
Numerator Ratlo Numeretor Ratio Varlance Reason
Denominator Denominator
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs

{a) Current Ratlo {In times) 13,805.40 14,507.25

Current assets / Current llabllitles 11,792.12 117 12,757.50 114 2.98% N.A.
{b} Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) 6,816,42 7,748.72

Total Debt / Shareholder's Equity 9,578.75 0.71 9,016.37 0.86 | -17.20% NA
{c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio {in times) 1,584.58 1,311.65

Earnings available for Debt service f Debtservi{  1,284.36 123 £27.11 159 | -22.20% NA.

|{d} Return on Equity Ratio {in %) 605.88 402.92

[Net Profits after taxes—

Preference Dividend {if any)] / 9,297.56 6.52% 5,832.96 4.56%| 42.86% Note: o1
{e] Inventory turnover ratlo {In times) 22,455.10 22,117.68

Sales/ Average Inventory 6,214.93 3.61 7,168.55 3.0% | 17.12% N.A.
{f) Trade Receivables tumover ratio {In times} 22,455.10 22,117.68

Net Credlt Sales/ Average

Accounts Recelvable 5,332.37 421 5472.56 404 4213 N.A.
{g) Trade payables turnover ratla {In times} 14,769 28 14,384.16

Net Credlt Purchases/ Average

Trade Payables 3,444.00 4,329 3,803.21 378 | 13.39% N.A.
{h} Net capital turnover ratio {in times) 22,459.10 22,117.68

Net Sales/ Working Capital 2,017.28 1113 1,749.75 12.64 | -11.92% N.A
{1) Net profit ratlo {in %) 605.88 402,92

Net Profit/ Net Sales 22,459.10 2.70% 22,117.68 1.82%| 42.09% | Note:o2

1{) Return on capltal employed (ROCE) {In %) 111097 948.69

Earning before interest and

taxes/ Capltal Employed 10,001.68] 10.19% 10,283.15 9.23%| 10.46% N.A.
{k} Return on investment {in %) 5.94 5.74

Income generated from

Invested funds/Average

Investad funds in reasury 305.46 1.95% 2649.63 1892%| 155% N.A

ol Increase in revenue from operation has resulted in improvement in aforesaid ratio,
02 Increase in revenue from operation has resulted in improvemnent In aforesaid ratio.

51 Figures of the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever required in order to make them comparable with those of current year. Figures have been
rounded off to the nearest rupees In lacs.

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000952C

Mohd. Imran Hdkharul Amin

Director {Hnance} & CFO Managing Director
Divyank Nigam DIN:00037627 DIN:00037424
Partner
M. No. 438443
Place: Kanpur
Date: 30-05-2023 R. K. Awasthl
Company Secretary
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- 104, 15 Floor, Hinalava Housea, -
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Mew Dehi - 110 007

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To
The Members of Super Tannery Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (the "Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries
(Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its associates, which comprise the consolidated balance sheetas
atMarch 31, 2023, and the consolidated statement of profitand loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referved to as “the consolidated financial statements”),
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration of reports of other
auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by the other auditors, as referred to below in other matiers
paragraph, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally acceptedin India, ofthe consolidated state of affairs of
the Group as at March 31, 2023, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows forthe year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our auditin accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Curresponsibilities under
those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group and its associate companies in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Act, We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the cuirent period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Information Otherthan the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Holding Company's annual report, but does notinclude the financial statements and our auditors' reportthereon.

Cur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit reports of other
auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are reqguired to reportthat fact,

We have nothing to report in thisregard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Govemance for the Consolidated

Financial Statements

TheHolding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consclidated cash flows ofthe Group in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective
Beard of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other ivegularities; the
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness
ofthe accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Directors ofthe Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors of the companigs included in the Group
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are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative butto do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each
company.

Auditor's Responsibilities forthe Audit ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issueg an auditor's report thatincludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will alvays detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

« |dentify and assessthe risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due tofraud oreror, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from eror, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override ofinternal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3){f) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company
and such companigs incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies have adeguate intemal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management,

« Conclude onthe appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial
statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group (Company and its subsidiaries) as well as its associates to cease to continue
asagoing concem.

*= Evaluatethe overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Ve are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of financial information of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors,
Forthe other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried outby them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion. Qurresponsibilities in this regard are further described in para {(a) of the section titled ' Other Matters' in this audit report.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referred to in sub-paragraph
{a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during cur audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key auditmatters.

We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter orwhen, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of deing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

OtherMatters

{a) We did not audit the financial information of a subsidiary included in the consolidated financial results, which reflect, before consolidation
glimination total assets, of Rs, 175.55 Lacs asat March 31, 2023, and totalrevenue oftotal revenue of Rs, 1 68 Lacs and Rs. 4.38 Lacs, total
net profit after tax of Rs. {-)1.23 Lacs and Rs. 1.27 Lacs, total comprehensive income of Rs. (-)1.23 Lacs and Rs. 1.27 Lacs for the guarter
ended March 31, 2023 and for the year ended March 31, 2023 respectively, and net cash outflow of Rs. 0.02 Lacs for the year ended March
31, 2023 as considered in the statement. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us by the Holding Company's management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so farasitrelatestothe
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so
far asitrelates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the auditreports of other auditors.

{b) We did not audit the financial statementsfinancial information of two subsidiaries, whose Financial Statements before consolidation
elimination reflect total assets of Rs. 749,56 Lacs as at March 31, 2023, total revenue of Rs. 405.89 Lacs and Rs. 1238.16 Lacs, total net
profit aftertax of Rs.15.08 Lacs and Rs. 22 47 Lacs, total comprehensive income of Rs. 15.08 Lacs and Rs. 22.47 Lacs forthe quarter ended
March 31, 2023 and for the year ended March 31, 2023 respectively, and net cash inflowi{net) of Rs. 21.80 Lacs for the year ended March 31,
2023, as considered in the statement. These unaudited financial statements have been fumished to us by the Holding Company's
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Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us by the Holding Company's Management, these financial statements are not material to the Group.

Cur opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in
respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial
statements/financialinformation certified by the Holding Company's Management.

Report on OtherLegal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial
statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by other auditors, as noted in the 'Other Matters' paragraph, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

1.

a)
b)

c)

d)

9

h)

Wehave sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the

puposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation ofthe aforesaid consolidated financial statements have

been kept sofar as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports ofthe other auditors.,

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the

consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealtwith by this Report are in agreement with

the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our oginion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 ofthe Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as of March 31, 2023 taken on record by

the Board of Directors ofthe Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India,

none of the directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a

directorin terms of Section 164{2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its

subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating effectivenass of such controls, refer to our separate Reportin "Annexure

A

As required by Section 197(18)} of the Act, based on our audit and on consideration of the report of the statutory auditors of such

subsidiaries and associates incorporated in India not audited by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by holding company,

its subsidiaries f associates incorporated in Indiais in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under Section 197 ofthe Act,

With respect tothe other mattersto be included in the Auditor's Repoit in accordance with Rule 11 ofthe Companies (Auditand Auditor's)

Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the

consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the 'Other Matters'

paragraph:

i The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as atMarch 31, 2023 on the consolidated financial

position ofthe Group. Refer Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements,

ii. ~ The Group companies incorporated in India did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including

derivative contracts.

iii. ~ There has been no delay in transferring amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its

subsidiary companies incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2023,

ivv. (@ The Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and associate companies which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other
auditors of such subsidiaries and associate companies respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds
{which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries and associate
companies to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foereign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or investin other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities and associate companies ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries ;

{b) TheManagements of Holding Company and its subsidiaries and associate companies which are companies incorporated in
India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such
subsidiaries and associate companies respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds {which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in wiiting or
otherwise, that the Company or any of such subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associate companies shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
{"Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security orthe like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, performed by
us and those performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries and associate companies which are companies incorporated in
India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor's notice that has
caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and {ii) of Rule 11({g) as provided
under (a)and (b)above contain any material misstatement.

v. (a) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Holding Company during the year is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Acl, as applicable. No dividend is paid by its subsidiary companigs and associate
companigs incorporated in India
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{b) As stated in Note 12 (H) to the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the holding company have
proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members atthe ensuing Annual General Meeting.
The amount of dividend proposed isin accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi. Provisoto Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using accounting software which
has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
repoiting under Rule 11{g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,
2023,

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 000852C

{Divyank Nigam)

Partner

M. No. 438443
UDIN:23438443BGRYUU7862

Place: Kanpur
Date: 30.05.2023
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Kapoor Tandon & Co. Brancl,

Chartered Accountants E "24:57, First Floor, Birhana Eoad,
" Hanpu — 208007
- 104, 15 Floor, Hinalava Housea, -

73 Aesturaa Gendhby Marg,
Mew Dehi - 110 007

ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 2{f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reqguirement section' of our report of even date on the consolidated
financial statements of Super Tannery Limited {the Holding Company)for the financial year ended March 31, 2023}

Report on the Intemal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with cur audit of the consolidated financial statements of Super Tannery Limited ("the Holding Company”) as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internalfinancial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company
and such companies incorporated in India under the Companias Act, 2013 which are its subsidiary companies, as ofthat date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies have, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by
such companigs considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {the “Guidance Note”).

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are companigs incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the criteria
established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note, These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and emors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (bereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to exprass an opinion on the intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements hased on our audit,
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143{10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
MNote require that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Cur audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the intemnal controls based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We belisve that the audil evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the relevant subsidiary companies
incorporated in India in terms of their reports refered to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Acompany's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial repoiting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.
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InherentLimitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent imitations of intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation ofthe internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subjecttothe
risk that the intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate hecause of changes in
conditions, orthatthe degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Qur aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the intemal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to subsidiaries companies incoporated in India, is based on the cowesponding reports of
the auditors of such companies. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Fim Registration No, 000852C

{Divyank Nigam)
Place: Kanpur Partner

Date: 30.05.2023 M. No. 438443
UDIN:23438443BGRYUUT862
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Consolidated Balance Shest as at March 31, 2023

Particulars Note As 3t March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. Rs. In Laes Rs. In Laes Re, [ Lacs Rs. In Lacs
ASSETS
Non-current asseis
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2{a) 7,278.54 7,333.34
(b} Capital work-in-progress 2(s) 1,125.44 B40.46
(e} Goodwil 2} 43.70 43,70
{d) Other Intangible assets 2(q) 6.54 5.091
{e) Financlal Assets
(] Investments 3 4511 4p.18
(I} Loans 4 33B.02 364.13 338,15 378.33
(I} Other Finandal Assets 5 4401 37.50
Current Assets
(a) Inventorles L] 6,191.67 6,766.94
{b) Financlal Assets
{1} Trade recetvables 7 4,722.13 4,976,17
(I} Cash and cash equivalents ] 431.70 35228
{ll} Pank Balances ather than ()
above 9 442,63 509,256
[iv) Other Financial Assets 10 411.78 5.998.24 745,33 6,583.04
{c} Current Tax Assets (Net) - -
{d] Other current ass=ts 1,387.10 1,221.66
TOTAL ASSETS EJ’? 11.88
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a) EquityShare Capital 1 1079.73 1,079.73
(b} Other Equity 13 8,100.25 7,512.32
Equity attributable to the owners of the company 9,179.98 8,592.05
Non Controliing Interast 66.56 54.58
TOTAL EQUITY 9,246.54 8,656.53
LIABILITIES
Non curent [labiites
{a) Financlal llabilitles
{} Borrowlings 14 44.53 53.73
(b} Deferred tax liabilities {net) 15 752.64 714.56
(e) Other non-current labllities 15 526.55 490,58
Current Babliides
{a) Finandal liabllities
(Il Bomowings 17 6,771.58 7,604,923
(I} Trade payables 18
(a) Total Qutstanding Dues ta micro and small enterprises 7138 T7.20
(b} Total Outstanding Due to parties other than micra and small enterprises 348348 3,607.20
(i} ©ther financial llabllifes 19 73617 11,062.62 B850.38 12,229.77
(b} Other current llabllitles m 6548 BS5.35
{e] Provisions FA 221,11 202.36
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EJ’? 11.88
Significant Accounting PaBcies 1
See accompanying notes to the consolldated financial statements
As per pur attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Kapoar Tandon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Am Reglstration No. 000352C
Mpohd. Imran ttlkharul Amin
Diractor {Ananca] & CFD Managing Diractor
DINOOO3T627 DINDOD3 7424

Divyank Nigam
Partner
M. No. 438443

Place: Kanpur
Date: 30-05-2023

R. K Awasthi

Company Secretary
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Consolidatad Statament of Profit and Losa for tha year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Note No. 02223 021-22
Rs. in Laes Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Laes
INCOME:
Revenue from Operatlons
{a} Sales fIncome from aperations 2ia) 21,784.10 21,159.73
{b] ©Other Operating Revenue 22{b) 989.81 935.57
Total Revenue from operations 2673.91 22,085.30
Other Income k-] 23113 254,87
Total Income 22,905.04 22,350.17
EXPENSE:
Cost of materials consumed 24 1254819 13,632 82
Purchase of stock-An-trade s 1,967.67 1,213,098
Changes in inventories of finished goods, -
work-Inprogress and stockdn-trade 26 79346 B830.19
Employee Benefits Expanses 27 1,048.09 920.75
Finance costs 8 445,60 356.98
Depreclation and Amortization Expenses 66748 626,86
Other Expanses 29 4,647.10 401023
Total Expansas E&iﬂ z!&u
Profit before Exceptional items and Tax 786.44 718.35
Exceptional Items - -
Profit bafore Tax 786.44 718.35
Tax expense;
L Current Tax 180.00 18203
2. Defarred Tax 34.40 25,00
3. Tax adjustment relating to earller years (61.37) 74.19
153.03 261.22
Profit for the peried 533.41 457.13
Profit/{Loss) fer to Minority | {1.98) {0.49)
631L.43 456.64
Cther comprehensive Income
{} tema that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans 14.17 2418
{ll} Income tax related to [tams that will not be reclassified to prefit or loss (3.68) 10.49 {6.29) 17.89
Total comprehensive incomea for the pariod 61192 474.53
Earnings per equity share an
{Face Value per Share Rs. 1/}
1 Baslc 059 042
2 Diluted 0.58 042
Significant Accounting Policias 1
See arcompanying notes to the consolidated finandal statements
As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Kapoor Tandon & Co.
CharteretiADdaR Ntants
Flrm Reglstration No. 000952C
Mohd. ImmRn Iftkharul Amin
Director (Fivance) & CFD Managing Director
Divyank Nigam DIN:DOO37527 DIN:OOD27424
Partner
M. No, 438443
Place: Kanpur R. K. Awasthi
Date: 30-05-2033 Company Secratary
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Consolidated Statemaent of Changes In Equity for the yesr ended March 31, 2023

A Share Capltal

Particulars Rs. in Lacs

Balanee as at March 31, 2021 1,079.73

Changes In Equity Share Caphal due to prior period errors -

Restated balance as at Aprl 01, 2020 1,079.73

Changes In equity during the year -

Balance as at March 31, 2002 1079.73

Changes In Equity Share Caphtal due to prior period errors -

Restated balance as ot Aprl 011, 2021 1079.73

Changes in aquity during the year -

Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,079.73

B.  Other Equity RE In Lacs

Partlculars Reserves and Surplus Total

Capital Securlties General Retalned Other
Reserve Premium Reserve Earnings Equity

Balance as at Aprll 04, 2021 29.59 irm.1s 4,563.21 2 228.80 709178

Profit for the year - - - 456.64 456.64

Dhvidend Pald {53.99] (53.99)

Othar Comprahansiva Incoma - - - 17.89 17.89

Balance s at March 31, 2022 13.59 170.18 4,509.22 1,703.33 751232

Praftt for the year - - - 631.43 631.43

Dhvidend Pald {53.99] (53.99)

Othar Comprohensive Incame = - N 10.43 10.43
|!dlr|:l as ot March 31, 2033 29.59 270.18 #,455.23 3,945.25 8.100.25

Significant Accounting Policles i

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finandial statements

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Kapoor Tandon & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 8K952C

Mohd. Imran Htlkkharul Amin
Director (Anance) & CFO Managing Director

Divyank Nigam DIN:037627 DIN:00037424

Partner

M. No. 438443

Place: Kanpur R. K. Awasthl

Date: 30-05-2023 Comgany Secretary
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Coisolidated Statemeant of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Note M22-23 2021-22
Ne. Rs. In Lacs Re. In Lacs
A.  CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit befors tax 786.44 718.35
Adjustments far :
Deprediation/ Amortsation 65749 626.86
[Profit)/Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments {33.32) (270}
Interest Incomea (25.29) {27.27}
Finance Cost 35206 28458
Deferral of Income on govemment grant {100.42) {74.26)
Expected Cradit Lost 17.50
Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans 1417 24,18
Share of profit from firm {5.94) {5.63}
Derlvatives of MTM F {14.77) {10.45)
Oparating profit before working capital changes 1,857.92 1,533.68
Adjustment for {Increase)fdecreace In operating nxsets
(Increase)/ Decrease In trade recelvables 23654 410.87
(Increase}f Decrease In Inventories 575.27 1,278.66
(Increase}/ Decrease In other non current loans / assets 0.13 {0.13)
[Increase}f Decrease in other non current financial assets {6.51) (238}
(Increase)/ Decrease In other current financial assets 333.55 42.14
(Increase}f Decrease in other current assets {165.44) {169.38)
{Increase}/ Decrease In non current llablitbes - 11459
Inerease/ [Decrease) in trade payablas {129.54) {1,029.78)
Increase/ [Decrease] in ather financial llabilites {114.21) {102.07)
Inereasa/ [Decrease) In other current llabllites {235.00) 97.94
Increase/ (Decrease) In Provislons 214 054
Cash panerated from operations 217585 2,175.06
Income taxes refunded / [pald), net {123.01) {134.60)
Net cash genarated from operating activities 2,052.84 2,040.37
B, CASH FLOW FRDM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property Plant & Equipments {B57.95) {1,156.72)
Purchase of other intanglble assets - {1.18)
Proceeds from sale of PPE 130.96 1154
Purchase of non current Investmemts - -
Adpustment on consolidation - 5.89
Interest racehmed 2529 2227
Other bank balances (Margin Maney & others) 66,63 {4.60)
Net cash (used in) f penerated from Investing activithes {645.07) {1,116.38)
€. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repaymernt of long-term loans [Net} (8-90) {226.00)
Praceeds/{repayment) from/of working capltal loans {923.40) {316.54)
Finance eosts paid {352.06) {284.58)
Dividend Pald {53.99) {53.99)
Net cash ussd In financing activities (1,338.35) {a1.11)
INCREASE / {DECREASE] IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6342 42.BB
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 35228 309.40
Cash and cash equivalents at the and of the year 421.70 35228
{refer Not= No. B for break-up)
Significant Accounting Polides 1
See accompanying notes to the consolldated financlal statements
As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Kapagr Tandon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registmation No. 0009520
Mohd. Imran Htikharul Amin
Director {Hnance) & CFO Managing Director
DIN:00037627 DIN:00D37424
Dhvyank Migam
Partner
M. No. 438443
R. K. Awasthi
Place: Kanpur Company Secretary
Date: 30-05-2023
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Notes forming part of consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1:

A.CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (the company/parent company) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, "the Group") for the yearended March 31, 2023. Group is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and
trading of Leatherand Leather Goods.

The Company is a public limited company having its registered office situated at 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur — 208010 (UP). The
Company's equity shares are listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE}

Thefinancial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on May 30,2023,

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ({the Act) read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.
In addition, the guidance notes/announcementsissued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) are also applied except where
compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment,

2.Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for following assets and liabilities which
have been measured atfair value amount:

i}  Certainfinancial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments),

i} Defined benefitplans- plan assets
Historical costis generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods orservices,
Fairvalue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
atthe measurementdate, regardiess of whetherthat price is directly observable orestimated using another valuation technigue.

3. Consolidation procedure

{iy The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries. For this
purpose, an entity which is, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Parent Company is treated as subsidiary. The Parent Company
together with its subsidiaries constitute the Group. Control exists when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, has power over
the investee, is exposed to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns,

(i) Consolidation of a subsidiary begins whenthe Parent Company, directly orindirectly, obtains controlover the subsidiary and ceases
when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, loses control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss from the date the Parent Company,
directly orindirectly, gains control untilthe date when the Parent Company, directly orindirectly, ceases to control the subsidiary,

(i} The consolidated financial statements of the Group combines financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries line-
by-line by adding together the like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. All intra-group assets, liabilities, income,
expensesand except unrealised profits/losses onintra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation. The accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been harmonized, to the extent possible, to ensure the consistency with the policies adopted by the Parent
Company. The consolidated financial statements have been presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as Parent
Company's standalone financial statements.

{iv) Non-controlling interest represents that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of subsidiaries attributable to
interestswhich are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Parent Company.

{v} Incaseofforeign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated atthe average rate prevailing during the year. All assets (except fixed
assets and share capital) and liabilities are converted at the rates prevailing at the end of the year. Exchange differences arsing on
consolidation is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Investmentsin 100% foreign subsidiaries have been eliminated with
the corresponding Share Capitaland Share Premium, if any, of the subsidiary company.

{vi) In case of associates, where the company directly or indirectly through subsidiaries holds more than 20% of equity (i.e. where the
Group has significant influence}, investments are accounted for using equity method except where the associate operates under
severe long-temn restrictions that significantly impair its ability to transfer funds tothe parent Company

{vii) The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiary/associates, over the net assets of the subsidiary/associates is
recognized in the consolidated financial statements as goodwill or capital reserve, as the case maybe,

{viil) An investmentin associate is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafterto recognize the Group's share of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of associate,

{(ix} As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other eventsin similar circumstances and are presented in the same mannerasthe Company's separatefinancial statements.

4. Operating Cycle for currentand non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on cumrent/non-current classification.
An assetis classified ascurrentwhenitis:

a) expectedtoberealised orintended to be sold or consumed in the nommal operating cycle,

b} held primarily for the purpose of trading,
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cy  expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d} cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
Aliability is classified as currentwhen;
a} itis expectedto be settledinthenormal operating cycle,
b} itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,
cy itis duetobe settled within twelve months after the reporting perod, or
d} thereisnounconditionalright to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afterthe reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
The operating cycle of the Company, that is, the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash
equivalentis 12months.
Ceferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

5. Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest
rupeesinlacs.

6. Critical estimate and Judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date ofthefinancial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Theareasinvolving critical estimates or judgements are:
- Employee benefits (estimation of defined benefit abligation)
Post-employment benefits represent obligations that will be settled in the future and require assumptions to project bensfit
obligations. Post-employment benefit accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of future benefit costs over the employee's
approximate service period, based on the terms of the plans and the investment and funding decisions made. The accounting
requires the Company to make assumptions regarding variables such as discount rate and salary growth rate. Changes in these key
assumptions can have a significantimpact on the defined benefit obligations.
Estimation of expected usefullives of property, plantand equipment
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each reporting date, based on the expected
utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of
property, plant and equipment.
Contingencies
Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending againstthe Company. Due tothe uncertainty inherentin such matters, itis
often difficult to predict the final outcome. The cases and claims against the Company often raise difficult and complex factual and
legalissues that are subject to many uncertainties and complexities, including but not limited to the facts and circumstances of each
particular case/claim, the jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law. In the normal course of business, the Company consults
with legal counsel and other experts on matters related to litigations. The Company accrues a liability when it is determined that an
adverse outcomeis probable and the amount ofthe loss can be reasonably estimated. In the event an adverse outcomeis possible or
an estimateis not determinable, the matteris disclosed.,
Valuation of deferred taxassets
Deferred income tax expense is calculated based on the differences between the camrying value of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their respective tax bases that are considered temporary in nature. Valuation of deferred tax assets is
dependent on management's assessment of future recoverability of the deferred benefit. Expected recoverability may result from
expected taxable income in the future, planned transactions or planned optimising measures. Economic conditions may change and
lead to a different conclusion regarding recoverability
Fair value measurements
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets, their fair values are measured using valuation technigues, including market multiples model (Markst
Approach}and Capitalisation method (IncomeApproach } which involve various judgements and assumptions,
impairment of Property, plant and equipment, Right-of-use assets, intangible assets (otherthan goodwill)and Capital work-
in-progress
The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash flows after considering current
economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rates and anticipated future economic and regulatory
conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value,
Forthe purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped atthe lowest levelsforwhich there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independentofthe cash inflows from otherassets or groups of assets.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
perod; they arerecognised in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both cumrent and future periods.

7. Property, plant and equipment (FPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and
impaimment losses, if any. For this purpose, costincludes deemed cost which represent the carrying value of property, plant and equipment
recognised at 1st April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost directly
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attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments
arising from exchange rate vanations attributable tothe assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount orrecognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when itis probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will low to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably,

Assets are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plantand equipment when completed and ready forintended use.

Expenses incurred relating to project, including borrowing cost and net of income eamed during the project development stage prior to its
intended use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under Capital Work - in - Progress.

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the Company intends to use these during more than a period of 12
months.

8. Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is classified as
investment property. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Forthis purpose, costincludes deemed cost which represent the carrying value of property, plant
and equipment recognised at 1st April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP, Such costincludes purchase price, borrowing cost and any
cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment or any significant part initially recognised of such item of property plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset)is included in
theincome statement when the assetis derecognised.

9. Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation has
been provided on such cost of assets less their residual values on straight line method on the basis of estimated useful life of assets as
prescribed in Schedule || of the Act. However, in case of foreign Wholly Cwned Subsidiary (WOS) the depreciation {including on Investment
property)oramortisation is accounted forin accordance with the relevant statute/ applicable accounting standard of the country.

Freehold land is not depreciated/amortised.

Assets held under financial leases are depreciated overtheir expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, wherever shorter,
thetermm of relevant lease,

Depreciationis calculated on a pro rata basis except that, assets costing uptoRs. 5,000 each are fully depreciated in the yearof purchase.

The estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at eachfinancial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

10.Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated
amortisation/depletion and impaimment loss, if any. Such costincludes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from
exchangerate vanations attributable tothe intangible assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camying amount orrecognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when itis probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably,

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are camied at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
camying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Losswhen the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets being computer software is amortised on straight line method over the period of five years.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangibles assets recognised as on April 1, 2016 measured asperthe
previous GAAP and usethatcamying value as its deemed cost as oftransition date.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,

The amortisation expense onintangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.

11.Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whetherthere is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, orwhen
annual impaimment testing for an assetis required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amountis
the higher of an asset's orcash-generating unit's (CGU ) fairvalue less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Impaimentloss is recognized when the carrying amount of an assetexceeds recoverable amount.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there 1s an indication that previously
recognized impaimentlossesnolonger exist or have decreased.

If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does nol exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount thatwould have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised forthe asset in prior years.
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12. Leases

Companyasalessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveystherightto controlthe use of an identified assetfora define period of time in exchange forconsideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified assets, the Company assesses whether: (i} the contact involves the use of an identified
assel {iiythe Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and {iii) the Company
has therighttodirect the use ofthe assst.

As a lessee, The Company recognises a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date, The right of use assetis
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and removethe underlying asset orto restore
the underlying asset orthe site on which itislocated, less anylease incentives received.

The right of use assst is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the eadier of the end of the
useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right of use assets are determined on the same
basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted
for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
using the interest rate implicitin the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. For leases
with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to
the lease or the incremental borrowing rate forthe portfolioas a whole

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments and
lease paymentsin an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option;

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Company has elected nottorecognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for shortterm leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, The Company applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environmentwith a similar end date.

Companyasalessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. Where the Company is a lessor underan operating lease, the assetis capitalised within property, plantand equipment and depreciated
over its useful economic life. Payments received under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line
basisovertheterm of thelease.

13. Inventories
Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. The basis of detemmining the cost for various categores of inventory
are as follows:

(a) Raw matenals, Chemicals, Components, stores & spares and Stock in Trade — Cost includes cost of purchase (Net of recoverable

taxes)and other costsincumed in bringing the inventories totheir present location and condition. Costis determined on FIFQ basis.

(b} Stockin process and finished goods- Direct cost plus appropriate share of overheads,
(c) Saleable Scrap/Waste/By products - At estimated realisable value.

{d} Inter group goods transfer—transferprice

(e} ImportEntitlement/ Licences —At estimated realisable/Utilisation value
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessarytomakethe sale,

14. Foreign Currencies

a} Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the cumrency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates ('the functional currency'y. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR/Rupees), which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

b} Transaction and balances
Transactionsin foreign currencies arerecorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of thetransaction.
Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement are accounted for in the
Statement of Profit & Loss either under the head foreign exchange fluctuation or interest cost, as the case may be, except those
relating tolong-tenm foreign currency monetary items
Investment in overseas Wholly Owned Subsidiaries are carried in Balance Sheetatthe rates prevailing on the dates of transaction.

15. FairValue measurement

Fairvalue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordery transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. Thefair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

- In the principalmarket for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market which can be accessed by the Company for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that marketparticipants act in theireconomic bestinterest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and forwhich sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed inthe financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowestlevel inputthat is significantto the fairvalue measurementas a whole;

- Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 Valuation techniguesforwhich the lowest level input that is significantto the fair value measurementis directly orindirectly observable
- Level 3 Valuation techniguesforwhich the lowest level input that is significantto the fair value measurementis unobservable

Forassets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company detemmines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) atthe end of each reporting period.

16. Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regularway trades) are recognised on the trade date,
i.e., thedate thatthe Company commitsto purchase orsell the assst.

Subsequentmeasurement

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification ofthe respective financial assets. Based on the business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset, the Company classifies financial assets
as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fairvalue through other comprehensive income orfairvalue through profitand loss,
Debtinstruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments such as trade and other receivables, security deposits and loans given are measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

- The assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI} on the
principal amountoutstanding.

Afterinitial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method,
Amortised costis calculated by taking into account any discountor premium on acquisition and fees or coststhat are an integral part of the EIR,
The EIR amortisation is included infinance income in the profit or loss. The losses arsing from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.
Debt instruments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income {(FVOCI)

A'debtinstrument is classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following criteria are met;

- The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

-The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI,

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (CCI).

Debtinstruments at Fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL})

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments excluding investments in subsidiary and associate companies. Any debt instrument, which
does not mest the criteria for categorization as atamortized cost oras FVTCC, is classified as at FVTPL,

After initial measurement, any fair value changes including any interest income, foreign exchange gain and losses, impaiment losses and
other net gains and losses are recognisad inthe Statement of Profitand Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the company decides to classify the same either as at FVTOC| or FVTPL. The company makes such
election on aninstrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Profit or loss.
De-recognition

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.
removed fromthe Company's Balance Sheet) when

- The fights to receive cash flows from the assethave expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset orhas assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flowsin full
withoutmatenal delayto athird party undera 'pass-through' arrangement; and either:

- The Company hastransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

- The Company has neithertransferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but hastransferred control of the asset.
On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments (other than debt instruments measured at FVQCI) and equity instruments
{measured at FVTPL} are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains and lossesin respectof debt instruments measured at FVOC|
and that are accumulated in GC| are reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition. Gains or losses on equity instruments measured at FVOC|
thatare recognised and accumulated in OCI are notreclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition.

17. Impaiment offinancial assets
The Company applies expected creditloss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets
and creditrisk exposure:
a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured al amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade
receivables and bankbalance.

b} Financial assets measured atfairvalue through other comprehensiveincome.
In case of other assets (listed as a) above}, the company determines if there has been a significantincrease in credit risk of the financial asset
since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and
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recognized as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equalto ifetime ECL is measured and recognized
asloss allowance.

18. Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, and denvative financial
instruments.

Subsequentmeasurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

FinancialLiabilities at FairValue through Profit or Loss (FVTPL})

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or lossinclude financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
orloss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and
only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit
risk is recognized in OC|, These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the company may transfer the
cumulative gain or losswithin equity. Allother changesin fairvalue of such liability are recognised in the statement of profitor loss.

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities classified and measured at amortised cost such as loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of
transaction cost incurred. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subseqguently measured at amorised cost using the Effective interest
rate (EIR} method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the ER
amortisation process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or coststhat are anintegral partof the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costsin the statement of profit and loss,

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, The
differenceinthe respective camying amountsis recognised in the statement of profitorloss.

19. Derivative financialinstruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage the commodity price risk and exposure on accountof fluctuation in interest rate
and foreign exchange rates. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently measured at fair value with changes being recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Derivatives are cared asfinancial assets when thefairvalueis positive and asfinancial liabilities when the fairvalue is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken through profit and loss.

20. Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any differences between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)and the redemption amount is recognised in Profit or loss over the perod of
the borrowing using the effective interest method, Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the
loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the drawdown
oceurs.

The borrowings are removed from the Balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid including any noncash asset transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as othergains/{losses).
Borrowings are classified as cument liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability of at least 12
months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as
current, if the lenderagreed, after the reporting perod and before the approval of the financial statement for issue, nottodemand paymentasa
consequence ofthe breach.

21. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs thatan entityincurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing cost alsoincludes exchange differencesto the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs,

Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencement of acfivities relating to
construction/development of the qualifying assetupto the date of capitalisation of such assetis added to the cost of the assets,

Interest income eamed on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation,

All other borrowing costs are expensedin the penod in which they occur.

22_Offsetting of financialinstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal nght to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency orbankruptcy ofthe company, orthe counterparty.
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23.Claims

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts are disclosed after a careful evaluation of the facts and legal aspects of the matter
involved,

24_Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constnuictive} as a result of a past event, itis probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflectthe current best estimate.

If the effect of the time value of money is matenal, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific tothe liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time isrecognized as a finance cost.
Contingent liabiliies are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company, or presentobligations whereit is not probable that an outflow of resources willbe required, or the amount of the obligation cannotbe
measured with sufficient reliability, Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notestothe Financial Statements,

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed when the inflow of economicbenefitsis probable. However, when the realisation of income
is virtually certain, then therelated assetisnolonger a contingentasset, butitis recognised as an asset.

25.Government Grant
Govemment grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be
complied with,
A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses incurred in previous period(s}, Such a grant is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in which it becomes receivable.
Govemment grants shall be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses
therelated costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Govemment grants related to assets are presented in the balance sheet as deferred income and is recognised in profit orloss on a systematic
basis overthe expected useful life of the related assets or other relevant basis.
Govemment grants by way offinancial assistance on the basis of certain qualifying criteria are recognised as they become receivable,

In the unlikely event that a grant previously recognised is ultimately not received, it is treated as a change in estimate and the amount
cumulatively recognised is expensed in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

26.Revenue Recagnition

Sale of Goods and services

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Company expectstoraceive in exchangeforthose goods,

Revenue fromthe sale of goods is recognised at the pointin time when (a) control is transferred to the customer, which is mainly upon delivery
in case of domestic sales and onissuance of Shipping Bill in case of export sales.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and services rendered, net of returns,
rebates and discounts to customers.

Revenuefrom the sale of goods excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as Goods & Services Tax (GST).

Interestincome

Interestincomeis accrued on using on a time basis by the effective interest rate with referencetothe principal outstanding.

Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder' srightto receive payment has been established.

ExportIncentives

Export Incentives are recognised when certainty of receipt is established.

Insurance Claim

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted /expected tobe admitted and tothe extentthat the amount recoverable can
be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

Otherlncome

Otherincomeis accounted for on accrual basis except where the receipt of income s uncertain ans in such cases it is accounted for on receipt
basis,

27_Employeebenefits

The Company makes contributions to both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes which are mainly administered through/by duly
constituted and approved Trusts and the Govemment.

Defined Contribution Scheme

In case of provident fund administered through Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, the Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payabletothe provident fund.

In case of members of constituted and approved trusts, the Company recognises contribution payable to such trusts as an expense including
any shortfall in interest between the amount of interest realised by the investment and the interest payable to members at the rate declared by
the Government of India.

The Company's contributions paid / payable during the year to provident fund administered through Approved Trust, Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner, Superannuation Fund and Employees' State Insurance Corporation are recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss as an
expensewhen employees haverendered services entitling them to contributions.

Cefined Benefit Scheme

Gratuity: Cost of providing the Benefit is determined on an actuarial basis at the end of the year and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
The costof providing these benefits is determined by independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.
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Re-measurements, comprising of actuanal gains and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling, (excluding amounts included in netinterest on
thenet defined benefit liability and return on plan assets), are recognised immediately in the balance shest with a corresponding debit or cradit
to retained eamings through other comprehensive income in the perod inwhich they occur, Itis included in retained earnings in the statement
of changesin equity and in the balance sheet.

Leave encashment: Accrued Leaves are encashed annually at the end of the calendar year and not accumulated. Provision for the same is
doneonthebasisofleaves accrued asatthe end of the reporting period.

23. Research and Development Expenditure
Expenditure on research of revenue natureis charged to Statementof Profitand Loss and that of capital nature is capitalized asfixed assets.

28.Taxesonlncome

Currenttaxis the amount of tax payable determined in accordance with the applicabletax rates and provisions of the Income TaxAct, 1961 and
otherapplicable taxlaws,

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
carry forward tax losses and allowances to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the applicabletax rates. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set, and presented asnet.

Current and deferred taxes relating to items directly recognised in reserves are recognised in reserves and notin the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT} paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future
income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is
recognised as an deferred tax asset in the Balance Sheet when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the
Company.

30. Dividend Distribution
Dividends paid (including income tax thereon} is recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are approved by the Board of
Directors, or in respect of the final dividend when approved by sharsholders.

31. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows statement is prepared as perthe Indirect Method specified in Ind AS 7 on Cash Flows, Cash and cash equivalents (including bank
balances) shown in statement of cash flows exclude item which are not available for general use on the date of balance shest.

32_Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss)
after tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense orincome
{net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from
continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have
beenissued ata later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted forthe proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at
fairvalue (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares), Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period
presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus
shares, as appropriate,

33. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in consistent mannerwith the intemal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of
the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the Company.

34. RecentIndian Accounting Standard {(Ind AS)

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments tothe existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCAamended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements — This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather
than their significant accounting policies, The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and theimpact of the amendment is insignificant in the financial statements.

Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Erors — This amendment has introduced a definition of 'accounting
estimates' and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting
estimates. The effective date foradoption of thisamendment is annual periods beginning on or afterApril 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated
the amendmentand thereis noimpact on its financial statements

Ind AS 12, Income Taxes — This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendmentand thereisnoimpact on its financial statements.
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Notes forming part of the consalidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

[a] Proparty, plant and equipment [R5 In lacs)
. Electric .
Land Factory Mant & Office |Furniture & Capital
Partculars Freehold | bullding | Machinery Ipualhllan Computer Equipment | Fxtures Vehide Total g
& Fittings

Gross canmying value

As at March 31, 2021 77.19| 259188 221.01 51.23 7L.10 163.54 582,23 | 10,034.63 213.74
Addltlons 92.09 7.28 398.88 16.33 1542 530,00 62747
IndAs AdJustments - - 188.85 - - - - - 188.85
Adjustment/{Deletions) {54.72) {27.01) {81.73) {0.75)]
As ot March 31, 2022 169.28 | 2,599.16] &809.46 221.01 51.23 71.10 179.87 570.54 | 10,671.75 B40.45
Addltlons - 98.47 409.86 14,12 68.60 591.05 383.45
IndAs Adjustments - - 127,39 - - - - - 127.38
Adjustment/{Deletons) (17.01) {113.03) {1.23}] {131.27) {3B.47]
As at March 31, 152.27 2,697.53 7,233.68 221.01 51.23 71.10 193.99 638.01] 11,258.92| 1,125.44
Accumulated

Depreciation/Amortisation

As at March 31, 2021 - 285.20| 1,943.%0 108.60 99.80 39.08 86.58 280.70| 2,783.26
Depreclation for the year - 63.24 437.64 21.04 72.27 554,19

IndAs Adjustments 32.29 3219
Adjustment/{Del=tians) {57.56) {12.77) {71.33)

As at March 31, 2022 - 348.44| 2355.67 108.60 39.80 39.08 107.62 339.20] 3,333.41
Depreclation far the year - 45.16 469.86 22.21 72.63 608,86

IndAs AdJustments 57.14 57.14
Adjustment/{Deletons) {25.00) {0.43)) (25.43)

As ot March 31, 2023 - 393.50 | 285767 108,60 39,80 39.08 128,83 411.40] 3,979.98
| Wet Carrying emount

As at March 31, 2021 77.19 1,306.58 4,333.15 112.31 4.12 32.02 76.05 301.53 7,251.37 213.74
As at March 31, 2022 159.28 2,250.72 4,453.79 112.41 11.43 32.02 TL25 231.44 7,333.34 BAD.AG
As at March 31, 15227 2,304.03 4,376.01 112.41 11.43 32.02 54.16 226.61 7,27494 | 112544
[b) Goodwill - Goodwill an Consolidation
{Ra. Inlacs)
Partculars

Ca valus

As at March 31, 2022 43,70

Addition during the year -

As at March 31, 43.70

101



SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

{c] Other Intangible assers

Particulars TomPutar | wabsite | Trademark|  TOTAL
{Ra. In |acs] | {Rs. In lacs}| {Rs. In lacs}| [Ra. In |mcs)

Bross ca value
As st March 31, 2021 5.B0 .41 1.41 7.62
Additions - - 1.16 116
Ad|ustment/{Deletdons) - - - -
Deletions - -
As at March 31, 2022 5,80 .41 2.57 B.78
Additions 0.12 - - 0.12
Adjustment/{Delations] - - - -
Deletions - -
As st March 31, 2023 5.52 4.41 2.57 B.590
Accumulated Depreciation -
As at March 31, 2021 0.48 0.40 0.61 149
Depreclation for the year - - 0.38 .38
Adjustment/{Deletions) # #
Az at March 31, 2022 0.48 .40 0.99 LB7
Depreciatian for the year 0.45 - - 0.49
Adjustment/{Deletions) - -
As at March 31, 2023 0.597 .40 0.89% 136
Nt Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2021 5.32 0.01 0.80 5.13
As at March 31, 2022 5.32 4.01 1.58 6.91
As ut March 31, 2023 4.95 .01 158 6.54 |

{d] Assets given as security for borrowings
M Al the items of Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been given ta lenders as seeurity for various borrowing facilities.

{} The management has carried out an exercise of [dentifying the asset that may have been Impalred, during the year, In respect of each cash generating unit. On
the basis of review carried out by the management, there was no impairment lass on ficed assets during the year.

{e] CapitalWork-In Progress [CWIP)
{Rs. In lacs)
{a) Ageing schedule for Capitalwork-In
progress As at March 31, 2029 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Amounit in CWIP for a period of Total Ameaunt in CWIP for a period of Total
Lessthanl | 1-2years | 2-3years | Morethan3 Lessthanl | 1-2years 2-3years More than 3
YEAr Your L. -1 L= 1
{i} Projects In progress 38345 626,72 4.99 110.28 1,135.44 627.47 4.99 208.00 BA0.46
{1} Projects temporarily ded — - - - - - - - -
Total 38345 626,72 4.99 110.28 1,125.44 627.47 4.99 - 208.00 B40.46
{b} CWIP, whosa completion Is overdue or has sxceeded Its cost compared to Its original plan: NIL NIL
{fl Intangible azsets under devalopment [Intangible CWIP) NIL NIL
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Notes forming part of tha Consolidated Ainanclal Statamants for the year andad March 31, 2023

3 FAnancal Assets: Invastments - Non Current

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. in Lacs R. in Lacs
Equity Sirares Ungquoted
A OTHERS
(I} SUPERHOUSE OVERSEAS LIMITED
5,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully palkd D50 0.50
(I} AL-BARR FINANCE HOUSE LIMITED
20,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pakd 200 200
(I} SWVIT PRONEXT MACHINES PRIVATE LIMITED
8,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pakl 117 1.47
(v} INDUSTRIAL INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES {INDLA) LIMITED
25,20} Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pakd 247 247
{v} KANPUR UNNAQ LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT CO. LTD.
75,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pakd 7.50 7.50
{wi} LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pakd 1.00 1.00
(wii) JAIMAU TANNERY EFFLUENT TREATMENT ASSGCIATION
26,200 {NIl) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully pald 2.62 262
Total - A 1736 17.56
Equity Shares Quoted
B. (I} SuperhouseLimited
5,200 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid D52 052
Total - B 0.52 0.52
Imvestrent [n Partnership Flrm
C  Bowini Frills WP
15% In the capltal of the LLP b0.75 0.75
Share of Reservas and Surplus of the LLP 27.58 2135
Total - C 2833 12,10
Total {A+B+C) 48.11 40.18
Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Investments 0.52 052
Market Value of Guoted Investments 848 248
Aggregate Book Value of Ungquated Investments 1726 17.56
Detalls of Partners, Capltal and Profit Sharing Ratio In LIP Rs. In Lacs
Profit
Sharing Capital 2% on Capital 25 on
Nama of Partners Ratlo 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
1 Mir. Shahbhaz Khan 5% 275 275
2 Super Tannery Umited 15% 0.75 0.75
3 M. Htlkharul Amin 15% 0.75 0.75
4 M. lgbal Ahsan 15% 0.75 0.75
Notes forming part of the Consolldated Financial Strtements for the year ended March 31, 2023
4 Fnancal A Loans = Non Current
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Ungecured Considered Good
Loans & Advances 338.02 33B.15
Total 338.02 338.15
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5 Other Financial Assets- Non Current

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023
Rs. in Lacs

As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In Lacs

Unsecured Considered Good

Preliminary Expensax
Security Deposits

Total

6§ Invantories (At cost or net realisabla value whichaver 1s lower)

44,01

32.50

37.50

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022
Rs. in Lacs

As at March 31, 2022
Rs. in Lacs

Raw Materlals

Waork In Progress
Finlshed Goods

Chemical, Componerts, Stores and spares

Waste & Scrap

Total

{a) All the Inventories have bean hypothecated as security for varfous working facliitles from banks.

7 Finandal Assets - Current: Trada Racalvable

1,47178
1,950.36
1,319.05
1,429.62

20.86

-

1,239.50
2,293.03
1,672.15
1443.69

11851

5,7656.94

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

As at March 31, 2022
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

(=)
{b)
{c)
{d)

Secured Consldered Good
Unsecured Consldered Good

Unsecured which have significant Increase In cradit risk

Unsecured credit impaired

Less: Impalrment loss allowance [ECL)

Toral

All the Trade Recelvables have been hypothecated as securlty far various working faclitties from banks.

Trade Recefvable ageing Schedule:

Partlculars

4,722,13
112.61
4,834.74
112 61

4,722.13

4,976.17

95.11
54071.28
95.11

497617

Rs. In Lacs

Nat Due

Outstanding from due date/date of transaction

Total

6 months

1 year - 2 year-

More than

- 1year

2 year 3 year

3 years

As at March 31, 2023
Undisputed Trade Recelvables
{i) Considered Good
{Il) which have slgnificant
Increase In credlt risk
{iii} Credit impalred
Disputed Trade Recehvables
{i) Considered Goad
{1l) which have slgnificant
Increase In credit sk
{l} Credit Impaired

419.42

1.08

4.56 -

051 -

19.54) 472213

4,88 112,61

Total

508.57

507 -

2842 4,824.74

As 2t March 31, 2022
Undisputed Trade Recelvables
{) Considered Goad
{Il) Which have slgnificant
Increase In credit risk
{iiii) Credit impaired
Disputed Trade Receivables
{)) Considered Good
{1} Which have slgnificant
Increase In credit risk
{lil) Credit Impalred

181 66

0.1

15.06 0.37

157 0407

11131 4976.17

6.04 95.11

Total

4,343.41

117.35 5071.28
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8 Financial Asssts - Currant: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. [ Lacs Rs, In Laes
Balances with banks
©N CuITent accounts 392,62 33239
on EEFC accounts 16.35 385
on fixed deposit 513 6.29
Cheques and Draft on Hand/Aemittance [n Transit = 5
Cash on hand 7.60 9.75
Total 42170 352.28
9  Financlial Azsets - Current: Bank Balances other than cazh and cash equivalents
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
RS, n Lacs Ry, In Lacs
Margin money deposits 434,090 500.16
{restricted, hedd as lien against bank guarantees/LCs)
Earmarked balances with banks - unclaimed Dividend 7.54 9,10
Total 443 63 S09.26
10 Other Curment Financial Assats
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Unsecured consldered good
Export Incentive Recetvable 236.77 506.62
Other Clalms Recetvahle - 0.96
Balance with Govt/Revenue authorty 175.01 237.75
Total 41178 74533
11 Other Current Assets
Partlculars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
RS, [n Lacs Ry, In Lacs
Urserured considered gond
Advances to Trade Creditors 1,189.23 9034
Advance recoverable In cash or kind or for velue to be recelved 152,75 295.66
Prepald expenses 45.12 1565
Total 1387.10 1,221.66
12 Eguity Share Capital
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of No. of
Shares Rs. in Lacs Shares Rs. in Lacs
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rs. 1/-each 11,00,00,000 1,100.00 11,00,00,000 1,100.00
Insued
Equity Shares of Rs. 1/-each 10,79,73,360 1,079.73 10,79,73,350 1,079.73
Subscribed and fully pald-up
Equity Shares of Rs. 1/-each 10,79,73,360 1,079.73 10,79,73,360 1,079.73
Tosl TS 107375
Raconclliation of the number of equity shares and share capltal
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of No. of
Shares Rs. In Lacs Shares As. In Lacs
Subseribed and fully pald-up equity shores
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,79,73,360 1,079.73 10,79,73,350 107973
Shares |ssued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,79,73,360 1,079.73 10,79,73,360 1,079.73
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(8)

(B} Terms and rights attached to equity shares

(C} Detalls of sharahaldars holding more than 5% shares in the company

Detall of Shares held by the promoters:

As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2022 Changes during the year
$.  Name of the Pramoter Na. of % of Shares No. of % of Shares Changes during the year
No. Shares held Shares held No of shares %
1 YEQUARUL AMIN 1,78,83,900.00 16.56% 1,78,83,900.00 16.56% - 0.00%
2 |QBAL AHSAN 91,42,502.00 8.47% 91,42,502.00 8.47% - 0.00%
3 IFTIKHARUL AMIN 90,80,432.00 8.41% 90,80,432.00 B.A1% - 0.00%
4 MUBASHIRUL AMIN 45,90,000.00 4.25% 45,901,000.00 4.25% = 0.0
5 UMAIRUL AMIN 45,90,000.00 4,255 45,50,000.00 4,25% - 0.00%
6 TANVEERLL AMIN 45,00,000.00 1.17% 45,00,000.00 1,17% - 0.00%
7 FARHA FATIMA 44,564,912 00 4.14% 45,040,000 00 4.17% (35,088.00) -0.03%
B SOPHIA AMIN 34,58,400.00 3.20% 34,58,400.00 3.20% - 0.00%
9 ISMAT IQBRAL 30,82,800.00 2186% 30,82,800.00 2.865% ) 0.0
10 RUMANA AMIN 26,33,400.00 2.44% 26,33,400.00 2.44% - 0.00%
TOTAL 5.,34,25.345.00 58.74%  6.34,51.434.00 58.78%  [85.088.00) =0.09%
Az ot March 31,2022 As gt March 31,2021 Changes durlng the year
S.  Name of the Promoter No. of % of Shares No. of % of Shares Changes during the year
Na. Shares held Shares held No of shares %
1 VEQUARUL AMIN 1,78,83,900.00 16.56% 1,78,83,900.00 16.56% - 0.00%
2 |QBAL AHSAN 91,42,502.00 847% 91,42,502.00 B.ATH - 0.00%
3 IFTIKARUL AMIN 90,080,432 00 8.41% 90,810,432 00 A.41% - 0.00%
4 MUBASHIRUL AMIN 45,90,000.00 4.25% 45,50,000.00 4.25% - 0.00%
5 UMAIRUL AMIN 45,90,000.00 4.25% 45,50,000.00 4.25% - 0.00%
6 TANVEERUL AMIN 45,00,000.00 4.17% 45,00,000.00 4,17% - 0.00%
7 FARHA FATIMA 45,00,000.00 4.17% 45,00,000.00 4.17% - 0.00%
A SOPHIA AMIN 34,58, 400.00 3.20% 34,58,400.00 3.20% - 0.00%
9 ISMAT IOBAL 30,82,3800.00 2.B6% 30,82,800.00 2.86% - 0.00%
10 RUMANA AMIN 26,33,400.00 2.44% 26,33,400.00 2.40% a 0.0
TOTAL 6,34,61,434.00 50.78% 5,34,61,434.00 58.78% - 0.00%

The company has only one dass of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 1 per share. Each holder of equity shares ks antitled to one vote per share. The company dedares and
pays dividends In Indlan Rupees, The dividend proposad by the Board of Directors Is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensulng Annual General Meeting.

In the avent of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recefve remalning assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.
The distribution will be In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Parteulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of No. of
Shares % Shares %
{a) Mr. Vegarul Amin 1,73,83,500 16.56% 1,78,83,900 16.55%
(b} Mr. igbal Ahsan 91,42,502 847% 91,42, 502 B.ATH
(c) Mr. Ifikharul Amin 90,80,432 841% 90,280,432 A.41%
023-23 H121-22
{No. of Shares) {No. of Shares)
(D) Equity Shares allotted as fully pald pursuant to contract(s} without payment belng recelved In cash NIL NIL
during the Immediately preceding fiwe y=ars
(E) Equity Shares allotted as fully pald up Bonus Shares during the Immediately preceding five years NIL NIL
(F} Equity shares buy-back In Immediately preceding five yrars NIL NIL
(6] Shares held by hokiing/ultimate holding company and/or thelr subsldiaries/ assodates NIL NIL
(H} The Board of Dimciors of the Company hes mcommendad a final dividend of Re. 0.05 per aquity whame (5%} face valus of Re.1 sach for the year endad March 31, 2023, sublect
1o the approval of Shareholdars.
13 Other aquity
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Capital Reserve 29.54 2959
Securiies Premium 270.18 270.18
Ganeral Reserve 4,455.23 4,509.22
Retzined Eamings 3,345.25 270333
Total 4,100.25 7,512.32
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(A) Capital Reserve
It represent the galn of capital nature which mainly Include the excess of value of net assets acquired over conslideration pald by the company for business combination In aarler
yEars.

(B} Serurithes Premium
Saecuritles premium Is used to record the premium on Issue of shares. This resarve Is utlilzed In accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(C} General Reserve
The Company has transferred a portlon of the net profit of the Company before declaring dividend to general reserve pursuant 1o the earller provislons of Companles Act, 1956,
Mandatory transfer to general reserve is not required under the Companles Act, 2043,

[D} Retuined Earmings

Retained mamings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends pald or other distributions out of resarvas to
shareholders.

14 Finandal Liabilties - Nonturrent: Borrewdngs

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rz In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Secured
Term loans from banks- INR
Vehicle Term loans from banks - INR 44,83 5373
Total 44,83 53.73
Amount of default as an the Balance Sheet date:
{a} Repayment of loan NIL NIL
{b} Interest on Loan NIL NIL
Repayment terms:

{a) The classfication of loans between current [Ebilitles and non —current llabllitfes continues based on repayment schedule under raspective agreements as ne loans have
been recalled due to nen compllance of conditions under any of the kan agreements.
{b) Scheduled repayments: Contractual repayments In case of loans from banks {Incduding Current maturitles disdased under other Current financlal labllities:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Upto three years 59.79 115.65
Between three to five years 9.58 615
Over flve years . -

Refer note 27(b) (1) & {ll1) on Interest rate risk and Liquidity Risk respectively.
Security details:-

Term Loan gther than Vehicle Loans
Afaresald Term Loans are secured by hypothecation/morigage of company's ble and im: bie properties. Further secured by the personal guarantee of pramoter
Directors of the company and Aarifi tanners Ltd. which Is the subsidiary of the company

{c) Setured by hypothecation of vehicls financed and are repayable in 36 to 60 Equated Monthly Instalments (EMIs)

15 Deferred tax [abilites (N=t)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
R= In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Tax effect of items constititing deferred Lo Habifity
©On difference hetween book balance and tax balance of fixed assets 860.53 BO7.77
Total Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liakility 86083 BO7.77
Tax effect of Mems constituting deferred tax assets
Expenses allowable on payment basis and other kems 108.19 93.21
Total Tax effect of tems constituting deferred tax assets 108.19 93.21
Net Deferred Tax Liabliity 75164 71456
16 Other Non-current Liakilites
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 Az at March 31, 2022
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Deferred Revenue
Govt Grant under IDLS 94.82 135.09
EPCG Obligations 43173 16449
Total 52655 £39.58

{2} Government Grant under IDLS, the deferred gramt Income is recognlzed In Statement of Profit and Los on a systematic basls over the useful [ife of asset on which such grant
Is racetved subject to compllance of other terms 8 conditions of the scheme.

{b] Under EPUG scheme, the Company Is committed to export prescribed times of the duty saved on Import of cpltal geods cver a specified perlod of ime apart fram
malntaining average export growth. In case such commitments are not met, the Company would be required to pay the duty saved along with Interest to the regulatory
authorites, The deferred grant Income Is recognlzed In Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basls over the periods In which the related performance obligetions are
fulfilled.
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17 Financal LlabiRties - Current: Borrowings

Particulars As at March 34, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In Lacs RS. In Lacs Rs. [n Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Secured
‘Waorking Capltal Loan From Banks
Rupee Loans
{a} Cash Credit 419.50 430.48
(b} Packing Credit 452129 4,542 88
(c) Advance against bills sent on collection 167182 6,612.61 182256 6,795.92
Other Short term Borrowings
Forelgn Currency loan
{] Stand by line of CredI{SBLC) 134.44 831.00
Current maturities of long term borrowings 24,54 GB.07
Total 677158 7,694.99
Amount of default as on the Balance 5heet date:
{2} Repayment of loan NIL NIL
{b} Intereston Loan NIL NIL

{A) Security

Warking Capltal Loans are primarily secured by hypothecation of present and future Current Assets and Actkanable talms (vir Inventorles, trade recelvable / book debts,

outstanding monles, recalvable claims, bills and matedals In transkit).

Thesa are further collaterally secured by extenslon of charge over moveable and Inmoveable properties of the company.
Further secured by personal guamntee of promoter director{s] of the company and Aarifl tanners id. which Is the subsldiary of the company.
{B} Stand by Line of Credit{SBLC) are primarily sacured by hypotivecation of Plant and machinery and raw matarial and are further secured by personal guarantee of promoter
director{s) of the company and Aarlfl tanners ltd, which Is the subsidiary of the company,

{C) Rate of Interest

Working capital credit facllities carry interest rates ranging from 9.10% to 10.15%.

18 Financial Lisbilities - Currant: Trade Payable

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2002
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
(a) Total Outstanding Dues to micro and small enterprises {refer note below) 71.38 .20
(b} Total Qutstanding Due to partfes other than micro and small enterprises 3A483.48 3,607.20
Total 3,554.86 3,684.40
Trada Payable ageing Schadula:
Particulars Not Due Outstanding from due date/date of transaction Total
Lisss than 1-2 years 2-Jyears More than
- 1 year 3 yoars
As at March 31,
Undiputed Duss
il MSME {Micro and Small Entities) 22.44 48.94 7138
{llj Others 937.61 2,506.22 4,95 0.18 34.52 3483.48
Disputzd Dues
{ MSME {Micro and Small Entitles) -
{I) Others -
Total 960.05 1,555.16 4.95 0.18 34.52 3.554.86
As at March 31, 2022
Undisputed Dues
i) MSME {Micro and Small Entities} 6749 971 - - - T1.20
() Others 1,439.18 1,532.87 78.02 44,56 18.38 3,113.02
Diputed Dues
M MSME {Micro and Small Entitles} - - - - - -
{ill Others 35549 138 69 2 E - 404,18
Total 1868217 168127 78.02 44.56 18.38 3,684.40

Note: The company has requested confirmation from Suppllers regarding thelr reglstration [filling of Memorandum) under the Micre, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 (the MSMED Act). According to the information available with the com pary, the following discasures has been made in respect of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises:

Particulars As at March, 2023 As at March, 2022
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
{3} Princlpal amount and Interest due therean remalning unpald to any supplier at the and of the year
Principal Amount 7138 77.20
Interest due on above 110 038
{b] Amount of interest paid by the company in terms of sectlon 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the payment ik Nk

made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year
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(c) Amount of Interest due and payable for the perlad of delay In making payment (which have been pakd but beyond the

appointed day during the year} but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act NIL NIL
(d} theamount of Interast acerued and remalning unpaid at the end of the year 5.64 454
(=] the amount of further Interest remalning due and payable even In the succeeding years, untll such date when the Interest
dues abowe are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under NIL NIL
saction 23 of the MSMED Act
19 HAnandal Uabiites - Curvent: Other Anandal Lisbildes
Partlculars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. in Lacs Rs. In Lacs
{a} Book owerdraft from banks 38.40 131.25
{b] Unclaimed Diidend* 7.64 59.10
{c} Other Uabliitles 690.13 710.03
Total 738.17 850.38
* Represents dividend amounts either not clalmed or kept in abeyance in accordance with Section 126 of the Companles Act, 2013
20 Other Current Linbiltles
Partlculars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In Lacs R In Lacs
{3} Advance from customers 192.05 410.10
{b} Advance agalnst sake of fixed assets 373.10 419,60
{c} M-to-M wluation on farward cover 40,32 25,55
{d) Rentin Advance - -
Total &05.48 855.25
21 Current Lisbilities: Provisions
Partlculars As at March 31, 2023 Az gt March 31, 2022
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Provision for Gratulty 21421 191.07
Provisian for current tzo 5.90 11.29
Total 22111 202.36
22 Revenue from opearations
Partlculars 2022-23 2021-22
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs, [ Lacs Rs. In Lacs
{a) Sales/ Income from operations
() Sales [Export & Overseas) 17,654.38 17,405.79
{ll) Exchange Fluctuation on Sales (Export) 369,19 304.42
i Sales (Indigenous) 3,760.53 3,449.52
{refer Note {c) below for break-up} 21,784.10 21,158.73
(b} Other operating revenue
Export Incentives {refer Note {d) below for break-up} BA9.81 935,57
Revenue from operatlons {gross) 22,673.91 22,095.30
{c} Breakup of Sales
Finished Leather 11,856.75 10,695.20
Leather Shae and components 9,927.04 10,464.53
Others
Total 21,784.10 21,159.73
{d] Detalls of other opersting revenue
Export Incentives
Duty Draw Back / ROSL 640.08 678.18
Ncences/Entidements 249,73 257,39
Total 380.81 935.57
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23 Other incoma

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
RS. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Interest Income
- from Fixed Deposit with Banks 19.36 2409
- recetved from Income Tax 5.93
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments 33.48 6.25
Deferred revenue on EPCG & IDAS Subsidy 100.42 74.26
Liabllities/provisions no longer requi - -
Exchange Fluctuation 20,52 -
Miscellaneous Income 4519 14453
Share of profit from the firm 6.23 5.63
Accretion in Investment - 411
Total 23113 254.87
24 Cost of matarial conaumed
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs. 1n Lacs
Raw Material consumed
(2) Raw Hide for sole 40.41 197.65
(b} Raw Hide for chrome 2,943.87 4,155.07
() wet Blue Leather Chrame 27126 35109
(d} Upper for safaty shoas BO1.88 1,576.97
(=) Finish leather for shoe upper and shoes 2,010.74 1,855.19
{f} Others 507.45 13.05
Raw Material consumed 6,581.62 8,159.02
Chemicals consumed 4,102.68 3,352.83
Stores & Spares consumed 1,863.89 212097
Total ﬂ.ﬂ 5532.82
25 Purchase of stock in trade
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Re. in Laes Rs. in Lacs
{a) Finished Leather {including Spiit) 1,596.76 921.60
(b} Shoe Upper 370,91 202,39
Tatal 1,967.67 1,213.99
25 _Increase/decrease In Inventories
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Inventories at the commencement of the year
Finlshed Goods 167215 1,592 46
Work In process 2,293.09 3,201.39
Scrap 118.51 120.09
TOTAL'A 4,083.75 4,913.94
Invantories at the end of the year
Finished Goods 1,319.05 167215
Work In process 1,950.38 2,293.09
scrap 20.86 118,51
TOTAL'P' 3,290.28 4,083.75
Dacreusa/f{Iincrease) In Stocks (A-B) 70346 830.19
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27 Employes benefit expense

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
RE In Lacs RE In Lacs
Salary, Wages and Bonus 79043 696,18
Directors Remuneration 61.98 63.35
Contribution te Provident and other funds 78.80 7493
Contribution to Gratuity Fund 57.32 4863
Workmen and Staff Welfare expenses 59.56 37.62
Total 1,048.05 920.75
28 Finance covt
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Interest on
- Term Loan - o094
- Others 352.06 283.64
35206 28458
Bank Charges 79.82 98.22
Forelgn Bank Charges 14.72 14.18
Totul [ ] 698
28 Other expenses
Particulars 202223 2021-22
Rs. in Lacs Re. in Laes Re. in Laes Re. in Laes
Manufacturing Expenses
Job Work Charges 1,284.64 1,179.58
Power and Fuel 747 579.12
Effluent Treatment Expenses 119.31 63.51
Repalrs and Malntenance
- Bullding 119,65 1B.43
- Machinery 142.51 B8.58
2,373.28 1,929.22
Selling and Distribution Expenses
Freight, Handiing and Other Sales and Distribution Expenses 1,254.37 1,256.71
Commissian an Sale 104.08 114.87
Advertisement and Publidty 4.05 2.99
Expected Credit Loss 17.50 33.60
Bad Debrts - Provision/write off 27.93 62.25
1407.93 1470.42
Establishmant Expenses
Rent 2748 2B.04
Rates and Taxes 55.74 47.52
Insurance 42,80 28.41
E.C.G.C Premium 70,43 2535
Communication cost 36.22 27.26
Travelling ansd Conveyance 189.72 121.52
Repairs and Maintenance - Others BB.57 60.08
Printing and Stationery 11.56 10.26
Legal and Professional Charges 60.60 68.25
Audrtor's Remuneration {refer Note {a) below} 3.55 3.62
Miscellanzous Expenses 206.29 84.70
Research & Development Expenses 540 218
Exchange Difference 64.16 20.35
Charity and Donation 12.02 10.29
Loss an Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments 016 355
Dimunition n value of Investrent 0.29 -
Corporate Soclal Respansibiity Expenses 10.81 9.20
B65.89 610.59
Total E.m ﬂm.ﬂ
{8) Auditors remuneration comprises:
As audlter 3.55 3.62
Total 3,55 3.62
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Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Rs. In Lacs Rs In Lacs Rs In Lacs Rs. In Lacs

30 Eaming per share (EPS]

{a) Profit for the year (Rs. In Lacs) 63341 457.13
{b) Welghted average number of equity shares for the purposa of

of caleulation of Baslc and Diluted EPS 10,79,73,360 10,79,73,360
{c) Nominal value of aquity shares {[Rupees) 1.00 1.00
{d) EP5- Basic and diluted (Rupees per share) 0.59 0.42

31 Capital and other commitments

1. Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on capltal

account {net of advances) 180.71 13135

M. Other Commitments NIL NIL

32 Contingent NahiEties

iy

Contingent Uabliitles n respect of:
(a] Letter of Credit opened and outstanding 58931 1,064.64
(b} Clalims against the company not acknowledged as debt NIL NIL

Disclosure pursuant to lnd AS 19 "Employee Benafita”;

(b

Definad Contribution Plan
The employees of the Company are members of a state-managed retirement benefit plans namely Provident fund and Penslon and Employee State Insurance (ESI} aperated
by the Government of India. The Company & required to contribute a specied percentage of payroll costs to the retirement banefit and ESI schemes,

The only obligation of the company with respect to such retirement and other banefit plan ks to make the specified contributions.
The Company has recagnized the following amounts In the Income Statement during the year under 'Contributlon ta staff provident and other funds® (refer nata 27)

Rs. in Lacs
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
|Empluver's contributicn to PF and FPF 8248 59.45
Employer's contribution to ESIC 16.32 15.48
Tatal 78.80 74.93 |

Defined Banefit Plan

The employees Gratulty Fund Scheme, which Is a defined benefit plan, Is managed by the trust maintalned with UC, The present value of obligetion Is determined based on
actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method, whith recognises each perind of service as giving rise to additional unit of employse benefit entitiement and
measures each unit separately to bulld up the final obligation.
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Notas forming part of the Consolidetad Financial Statements for the year anded March 31, 2023

Particulars Gratutty (Funded Gratulty {Funded
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{A] Movements In presemt value of defined benefit obligation
Obligations as at baginning of the year 325,42 305.93
Current service cost 36.57 3462
Intarest cost 23.11 20,80
Current service contribution- emplayee = o
Past Service Cost - -
Plan amendment - -
Remeasurement {or Actuarial (gain)/Loss) arising from - -
-change In demographlc assumption - -
- change in financial assumption {L.1E) {6.99)
- experfence varisnce {13.57) {16.54)
- others - -
Benefits pald {30.16) {12.00)
Present value of defined ben=fit obligation as at end of the year 340.29 32542
(B} Movements in the fair value of plan assets
Falr value of plan assets at beginning of the year 134,36 122.76
Investment Income 9.54 835
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised In net Interest expense {0.57) 0.25
Actual contrlbutions by the employer 129 15.00
Employee contribution - -
Beneflts pald (30.15) {12.00)
Falr value of plan assets as at end of the year 126.08 134.38
(€} Amount recognized In the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit cbligation as at end of the year 340.29 325.42
Falr value of plan assets as at end of the year 126.08 134.26
Funded status {Surplus/{deficit}} (214.21} {191.06)
Effact of balance sheet asset limit - -
Unrecognised past service cost - -
Net asset/{llabliity) recognlsed In balance sheat (214.21) {151.06)
Net asset/{llabliity) recognised In balance sheet at beginning of the year (191.07} {183.17)
Expense recognisad In Statement of Profit and Loss 50.23 47.08
Expense recognised In Other Comprehensive Income (14.18} {24.18)
Actual contributions by the employer 1291 15.00
Net acquisition/business combination - -
Net asset/(llabdilty) recognised In balance sheet &t end of the year [214.21) {131.07)
(D) Amounts recognized In the statement of profitand loss
Current service cost 35.67 34 62
Interast cost 13.56 12.45
Lossf{galn) on settlememnt - -
Past service cost - -
Totzl 50.23 a7.08
(E} Amounts recognised In other comprehensive Insome
Actuarial {galn} / loss due to
- change in demographic assumption -
-change In financlal assumption (1.18) 500
- experience variance (13.57} -16.94
-others - -
Return on plan assats, exduding amourt recognised in net Interest sxpense 057 {0.25)
Remeasurement [or actuarfal (galn)/loss) arsing due to asset celling - -
Total [14.18) {24.19)
{F} Category of plan assets
Funds managed by Insurer 100% 100%
[G) Sensithvity analysls
DED on base assumptions 340,29 32542
A. Discount Rate
1, Effect due ta 1.00% Increase In discount rate -6,36% 318.65 -12.23% 285.62
2. Effect dus to 1.00% decrease in discount rate 7.50% 365.81 1.40% 329.97
B. 5alary Escalation Rate
1. Effect due to 1.00% increase in salary escalation rate 6.75% 36325 0.67% 327.59
2. Effect due ta 1.00% decrease In salary escalation rate -5.89% 32026 -11.78% 287.07
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C. Withdrawal Rate

1. Effact due to 50% Increase In withdrawal rate 0.15% 339.79 -£.47% 304.36
2. Effect due to 50% decrease In withdrawal rate 0.15% 079 -5.46% 307.64
D. Mortaltty Rate

1. Effect due to 10% Increase In mortality rate 0.02% 340,23 -6.05% 305,73
2. Effect due to 10% decrease in mortality rate 0.02% 035 -5.92% 306.14

{H) Risk Exposure - Asset Volatility
The plan llablltles are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a defidt. Most of the plan
asset imvestments is in fixed income securities with high grades and in government securities.
Thess are subject to interest rate risk and the fund manages imterest rate risk derivatives to minimize risk to an acceptable level. A portion of the funds are invested in
equity securities and In altemative Investments % which have low correlation with aquity securities.

The equlty securitles are expected to @am a return In excess of the discount rate and contribute to the plan deficit.

() Actuarial asumptions
Actuarial valuation as at the year-2nd was dotve In respect of the aforesald defined benefit plans based on the followlng assumptions:

I} General assumptions

- Discount rate {per annum) 7.15% 7.10%
- Withdrawal rate 2.00% 2.00%
- Rate of Increase In compensation 8.50% B.50%

11} Moriality rates considered are as per the published rates in the India Assured Lives Moriality {2012-14) Ulimate.

M) Leave encashment: Leave balance as at the end of the calendar year I8 encashed and balance leavas earned thereafter 1o the extent not avalled by the employees are
provided In the accounts.

] The discount rate should be based upon the market yields avallable on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the lfabllities.

v} The expected rate of return on plan assets Is based on market expectation, at the beginning of the year, for returns over entlire Ife of the related abligation.

vl) The assurnption of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, prometion, supply and demand and other relevart factors.

vii] Uablilty on account of long term absences has heen actuadally valued as per Projected Unlt Credit Method,
will] Short term compensated absences have been provided on actual basis.

{) Defined banefit llabllity and employer contributions: 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Expected contributions ta post-employment benefit plans In next year R5.249.67 lacs Rs.224.75 lacs

I}
I} The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8 years, The expected maturity analysis of undscounted gratuity benefits i s follows:

Rs. in Lacs
Perlod 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
1 Year 119.73 109.56
2to5 Years 76.74 75.11
6o 10 Years 109 55 101.656
More Than 10 Years 38250 377.21
Total 588.52 663.54
34 Disclosure pursunnt to Ind AS 108 “Opamting Segment”
The campany is operating mainly in single ssgment i_e.. Leather and leather products; hence no disdosure is required in terms of Ind AS 108,
35 Bxpanditure on Research end Development
Rs. In Lacs
Partlculars 2022-23 2021-23
Revenue Expanditura 540 2.18 |
Total 5.40 218

36 DEdorure pursuant to Ind AS 116 "Leases"™:
{a) Where the company is Lessor
The company has not entered Into any Lease arrangements.

{b] Where the company [s Lessee
The company has not entered Into any Lease amangements.

37 Anandal Instruments
(I} Capital Management
The Company's capital management Is Intervded to create value for shareholders by facllitating the meeting of long-term and short-term goals of the Company.
The Company determines the amount of caplital required on the basls of annual operating plans and kong-term product and other strateglc Investment plans. The funding
requirements are met through equity amk other lang-term/short-term horrowings. The Company’s pollcy |5 aimed at combination of shart-term and long-term borrawings.
The Company monitors the cpital structure on the basis of total debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the averall debt portfolio of the Campany.
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The capltal structure of the company conslsts of debt, which Includes the borrowings Including temporary overdrawn balance , cash and cash equivalents Induding short
term bank deposits, equity comprlising Issued capital, reserves and non-controlling Interests, The gearing ratlo for the year Is as under:

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Debt 6,816.42 7.748.72
Less: Cash and cash equivalent

421,70 352.28

Net debt (A) 5,354.72 7,356.44

Total equity {B) 9,179.98 8,592.05

Debt Equity Ratio [A/B) 0.70 0.86

() Categorles of financlal Instruments
Caleulation of Fair Values

The falr values of the finandal assets and llabllitles are deflned as the price that would be recelwed to sell an asset or pald to transfer a llabllity In an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the falr values of financlal Instruments:

a} The fair values of Investment In quoted Investment In equity shares 1s based on the current bid price of respective Investment as at the Balance Sheet date.

b) The falr value of the long-term borrowings carrying floating-rate of Interest Is not Impacted due to Interast rate changes and will not be significantly different from thelr

camying amaunts as there is na significant change in the underlying credit risk of the Company (since the date of inception of the loans).

¢} The fair value of loans from banks and other financlal Indebtedness as well as other non current financlal llabllites Is estimated by discounting future cash flows using

rates currently avallable for debt or simllar terms and remalning maturities.

d} Cash and cash equivalents, trade recelvables, other financlal assets, trade payables, and other financlal llabllifes have falr values that approxmate to thelr carmying

amounts due to thefr short-term nature.

{A5. In Lakhs)
Particulers As at March 31, 2023 As ot March 31, 2022
Carrying value Falr valua Carrying value Falr valua
Financlal Assets
Financlal assets measured at fair value
Investments measured at
i Faiir walue through other comprehensive income 17.26 17.56
ii. Fair value through profit and loss 0.52 D.52
Financial assets measured at amortized cast
Trade Recelvables 472,13 4,976.17
Cash and cash equivalents 421,70 352.28
|Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 442.63 509.26
(Other financlal assets 411.78 745.33
Total 5,958.24 17.78 6,583.04 18.08
Financial Liabllitles
Financlal llabliides measured at amortized cost
|Borrowings 6,816.42 - 7,748.72 -
Trade payables 3,554.86 - 3,684.40 -
Other financlal llabilities 736,17 - 25038 =
Total 11,107.45 : 12,283.50 :
(i} Income, expenses, gains or losses on financial Instruments Rs. In Lacs
Partculars For the year ended For the yaar snded
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financlal assets measured at amortized cost
Allowances for doubtful recelvables {17.50) [33.60)
Financial atsets measured at fair value through Profit and Loss {0.29) o111
Financial assets measured at fair value thraugh Other Comprehensive Income - -

Fair value measurements recognized in the balance sheet

The following table provides an analysis of finandal Instruments that are measured subsequent to inftial recognition at fair value, grouped imte Levels 1 to 3 based on the

degree to which the falr value Is observable.

-Level 1 falr value measurements are those derlved from quoted prices {unadjusted) In actlve markets for Identical assets or llabllides.
Level 2 falr value measurements are those dertved from Inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or llabliity, etther directy

(I.e. a5 prices} or Indirectly {l.e. derived from prices).

-Level 3 fair value measurements are those derved from valuation techniques that indude Inputs for the asset or llabllity that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable Inputs).
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(] Financlal risk management objectives:
The Company's princlpal financial llablliies comprise of loan from banks and financlal Institutions, and trade payables. The maln purpose of these financlal llabliitles Is to
ralse finance for the Company's operations. The Company has varlous financlal assets such as trade recelvables, cash and short term depaosits, which arise directly from s
operations.
The main risks arlsing from Company’s financial Instruments are forelgn currency risk, credit risk, market risk, Interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors
review and agree policles for managing each of these risks.

(a) Credit risk:

Credit risk is the ritk of finandal lost to the Company if 2 customer or counterparty 1 a finandal instrument fails ta mest its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Campany's trade and gther receivables, @sh and msh equivalents and other bank balances. The maximum exposure to credit risk in @se of all the finandal
Instruments covered helaw Is restricted to their respective camrying amount.

Trade and Other recelvables

Customer credit is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established poficies, procedurss and control relating to customer credit risk management. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 90 days credit term. Credit limits are astablished for all customers based on intemal rating criteria. Outstanding
custamer receivables are regularty monitored,

The Compary measures the experted credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, Industry practices and the business environment In which the sntity
aperates. Loss rates are based on actual aredit loss sqerience and past trends.

Expected oredit loss assessment far customers:
The company Is making provislons on trade recelvables based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) madel. The recondllation of ECL |5 as follows:

{Rs. In Lakhs)
Purticulars 2022-23 2021-22
Impalrment loss 85 per ECL recognised/{reversed) 17.50 33.60
Additfonal Provision f write off 27.93 BL25
Amount deblted to Profit and Loss 45.43 95.85

Other financial atsets

The Company maintains exposure in cash and cash equivalents, term depasits with banks and derfvative contracts.

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs, 421,70 Lacs at March 31, 2023 {March 31, 2022: Rs, 352,28 Lacs). Cash and cash equivalents are held with reputable and
credit-worthy banks.

Individual risk limits are set for each counter-party based on financial posttion, credit rating and past experlence. Credit limits and concantration of exposures are actively
monitored by the Management of the Campany.

Other than trade and other recelvables, the Company has no other financlal assets that are past due but not Impalred

(b} Market risk:
Market Rigk Is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of a finanelal Instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices. Market risk comprises three types
of risk: curreney risk, interest rate ritk and price risk.

(1} Forelgn currency risk

The Company [s exposed to currency risk on account of s operating and financing activities. The functional currency of the Company Is Indlan Rupee. Company's exposure Is
mainly denominated In USD, GBP and Euro. The exchange rates have changed substantially In recent periods and may continua to fluctuate substantally In the future, The
Company has put In place a Financlal Risk Management Policy to Identify the most effective and efficlent ways of managing the currency risks. The Company uses derlvative
Instrumenis {mainly foreign exchange forward contracts) to mitigate the risk of ehanges in forelgn currency exchange rate.

The Company do not use derivative financlal instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

(11} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. Any mavement in the reference rates could have an impact an the
Company's cash flows a5 well as costs. The Company alsa uses a mix of imterest rate sensitive financlal Instruments to manage the liquidity and fund requirements for Its day
to day operatlons like short-term loans.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis:
As at March 31, 2023 interest bearing financial llability {secured loan from banks) stood at Rs. 681542 Lacs, was subject to variable interest rates, Increase/decrease of 50
basls palnts In Interest rates at the balance sheet date would result In decrease/increase In profit before tax of As. 34.08 Lacs.

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 50 basls polnts Interest rate. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has
been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end balances are not necessarfly representative of the average debt cutstanding during the
period.

This analysis axsumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain canstant.

Falr value of financlal Instruments:

All financlal assets are IniHally recognized at falr value of conslderstion pald. Subsequently, financlal assets are carrled at falr value or amortized cost less Impalrment.
Where non — derfvative finandal assets are carrled at fair value, galns and losses on re- measurement are recognized directly In equity unless the financlal assets have been
deslignated as being held at fair value through profit or loss, In which case the galns and losses are recognized directly In the consolidated statement of profit and loss.
Finantial assets are designated as being held ot fair value thraugh profit or los when it is necestary to reduce measurement inconsistency for relaied assets and liabilities.
All financlal liabillties other than derivatives are initlally recognlzed at falr value of considerstion recefved net of transaction costs as appropriate (initial cost) and
subsequently carrled at amortized cost.
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{I1) Liquidty risk:

The Company follows a Conservative policy of ensuring sufficlent liquidity st all imes through a strategy of profitable growth, efficlent liquldity at all times through a
strategy of profitable growth, efficlent working capital management as well as prudent capital expenditure. The Company has a overdraft fadiity with banks to support any
temporary funding requiremeants.

The Company belleves that current cash and cash equivalents, tied up bomowing lines and ash flow that Is generated from operstions Is suffident to meet requirements,
Accordingly, liquidity risk Is perceived ta be low.

Uquidity able:

Liquiity tables drawn up based on the cash flows of financial liabiliGes based on the sarliest date on which the Company @n be required to pay is disclosed at Note no. 43.

(v} Other price risk;

The Company is not exposad to any significant equity price risks arising from squity investments, as on 31st March 2023, Equity investments are held for strategic rather
than trading purposes. The Company does not actively trade these Investments.

(Wi} Equity price sensitivity analysis:

There Is no exposure to equlty price risks as at the reporting date ar as at the previous reporting date.

38 Disclosure pursuant to Ind A% 37 " Provisions, Corntingent Liubllities and Contingent assets™:
The company has recognised contingent llablliitles as disclosed In Note 32 above and a5 such no provislon Is required 1o be made, No provision was outstanding as at the
beginning and at the end of the year.

39 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 105 "Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations®:
There are no such astet held for sale and discontinued operations as on March 31, 2023,

40 Disclommrs of releted parties/related party fhal pursmsant to Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures”
{A} Name of Related Parties and nature of relationship
I. Joint Ventures NIl
Il Associates with whom transactions were carried out during tha year Nl

L.
a) Mr. ftikharul Amin —Managing Director
B] Mr. Ighal Absan — Directar
¢} Mr.Vequarul Amin- Non Executive and Non Independent Director
d) Mr. Imran Slddiqul — Whole time Directar
e] Mr. Arshad Khan — Whole time Director
1) Mr. Mahd mran — Whole timae Directar

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relathves:

M. R. K. Awasthl - Company Secretary

M. Y 5 Katiyar - Non Executive and indepandant Dinectar
Mr. Mubashirul Amin [Son of Mr. Iqbal Ahsan)

M. Tarwveard Amin {Son of Mr. Iftkharul Amin)

Mr. Khallid Sayeed {Brother of Mr. imran Siddigul)

M. Lirnarul Amin (Son of Mr. ksl Ahsan)

sEEaIR

m) Mr. Ahmad Faraz Ahmad (Son of Mr. fdkharul Amin}

v, Others: Enterprise over which KMP or relatives of KMP are able to exercise significant influence:

a) Amin Tannary Ltd d} Industrial Infrastructure Sendoas {I) Ltd

b) Amin Colonlzers & Deviopers Ltd &} Bowvinl Frills LLP

t) Banthar Incustrial Pellutian Cantral Company

m Disclosure of relatad transactions during the year [In ordinary course of business at arm le summary:
Transactons Assodates Other related partfes KMP and Relatives
As at f for the year anded Az ut f for the year snded Az at f for the year ended
31.3.23 31.3.22 31.3.23 3L3.22 31.3.23 31322
Purchases of materals / finished goods - - 95.80 41533 - -
Sale of matarials / finished goods - - 158.79 238.82 - -
Services (lob work} - - 0.24 336 - -
Denation - - 11.70 10.46 - -
Rent recelved - - 0.72 0.72 - -
Remuneration/siting fee - - - 119.87 120.29
Regalvables/Advancas (Net) - - 128.54 23168 011 -
Payables {Trade payable & other liabilities) - - 10.23 48,50 30.83 17.63
Loans and Advances - - 0.28 0.05 - 23.02
Investments refer Note No. 3
{N) Detall of related party transactions during the year (In ordinary course of busl at arm lenghth price)
Name of related party & Transactons Associates Other related parties KMP and Relatives
As at f for the year ended As at / for the year ended As gt / for the year ended
31.3.23 31.3.22 31.2.23 313.22 31.2.23 313.22
Purct f nteriak / inihed "
Amin Tannery Ltd - - 6532 410,93 - -
Bowind Frills LLP - - 29.48 440 - -
Sale of materials / finlshed gonds
Amin Tannery Led - - 108.73 205.66 - -
Bavin Frills LLP - - 90.06 33.16 - -
- - 158.79 23882 - =
Services (ob Work)
Amin Tannery Ltd - - 0.24 332 - -
Industrial Infrastructures Services {Indla) - - 0.04 - -
- - 0.24 336 - -
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Amin Waifare Trust - - 1170 10.46 - -
- = 1170 1046 = -
Rent recefved
Bowini Frifls LLP - - 0.72 G.72 - -
W e 0.72 0.72 - -
Name of related party & Transactlons Associates Other related partles KMP and Relatives
31323 31322 31323 31.3.22 31323 31322
Rermuneration/stting fea
Mr. Iftikharul Amin - - - - 24.00 24.00
Mr. Igbal Ahsan - - - - 24.00 24,00
Mr. Imran Sliddique - - - - 6.12 7.08
Mr.Arshad Khan - - - - 392 438
Mr. Mokhd Imran - - - - 3.94 3.94
Mr. Mubashirul Amin - - - - 1834 1834
Mr. Ahmad Faraz Amin - - - - 5.8 4.70
Mr. Tamveerul Amin - - - - 15.54 15.54
Mr. Khalid Saveed - - - - 176 1.68
Mr. Umalrul Amin - - - - 13.54 14.07
Mr. R.K, Awasthl - = - - 2.82 2.56

Amin Tannery Ltd - - 85.65 202.01 - -
Mr. Mohd Imman - - - - Q11 -
Baovinl Frills LLP - - 42.89 29.68 - -
= = 128,54 231,69 0,11 -
(it Pavables (Trade payable 8 other llabllities)
Earvinl Frills LLP 5.93 - - -
Amin Tannery Ltd - - 430 4738 - -
Amin Waelfare Trust - - 111 - -
Mr. Iftikharul Amin - - - - 14.90 200
Mr. Igkal Ahsan - - - - 0.07 200
Mr. Imran Slddique - - - - 142 138
Mr.Arshad Khan - - - - 0.81 0.B8
Mr. Mohd Imran - - - - - 043
Mr. Mubashirul Amin - - - - 745 3.69
Mr.Ahmad Faraz Amin - - - - 109 085
Mr. Tanvaerul Amin - - - - 291 251
Mr. Khalld Sayeed - - - - 039 038
Mr. Umairul Amin - - - - 126 275
Mr. RK. Awasthl - - - - 0.54 043
- - 10.23 48,50 30.83 17.63
(M} Loans and Advences
Amin Welfare Trust - - 0.28 0.06 - -
Igbal Ahsan - - - - - 23.02
- - 0.28 0.06 - 23.02
{0}  No amount has been written off/back or provided as doubtful debts during the vear In respect of related parties.
{8 Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to post-employment benefits and other long term emploves banefits recognized as par Ind AS 19 - Employes Benefits’ In the financial
statements. As these employee benefits are imp sum amounts provided on the bask of actuarial vaheton, the same Is not Included above.
1 Remuneration to Whole Tima Directors
Partloulars 2022-13 2021-21
{a) Short Term Employee Benefits (Salay) 6131 62.72
{b) Contribution to defined contribution plan {PF} 0.67 0.67
Total 8198 £3.39
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42 Additional information pursuant toa Schadula Bl to tha Act for tha year andad March 31, 2023 of antarprises consolldeted as subsidiary

and associsten
Name of the company Net Asseis e, total assets Share In Profit or {Loss) Share in Other Comprehenshe | Share In Total Comprehensive
As % of Amount{Rs. | As%of Amount (Rs. In Lacs) Amaunt {Rs. Amount
consolidated  |In Lacs) consolidate As % of In Lacs) As%of {Rs. In Lacs}
et assets d profit or consoldated othar eonsolldated total
loss comprehens ve comprehensive
Income Income
103.59% 9578.75 95.95% G05.88 100.00% 1049 96.02% £16.37
-3.42% (353.08) -1.16% -735 - - -115% -7.35
-0.09% {8.18) 4.72% 29.82 - - 4.65% 29.82
-0.14% [12.68) 0.20% 127 - - 0.20% 127
0.27% (24.83) 0.58% .64 0.57% 3.54
0.00% ool oo 015 - ook | 015
99.28% 9,179.58 100.31% 633.41 100% 100.31% 643.90
0.72% 656 | pamx L i, < 0.31% 58
100.00% $,246.54 100% 63143 1009 10.49 100% £41.92
431 Discosure pursuant to ind AS 1 "Presentation of Ainanchal Statemenis”.
{a) Current liabilities expertad to ba sattled within twelva months and after twelve months from the reporting date: e
Partculars Mote As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No, Within Afer Total Within After Tuotal
twelve twele twele twele
months munths munths months
|Borrowings 677159 - 677159 7,694.59 - 7,694.95
Trade and other payables 3,554.86 - 3,554.86 3,684.40 - 3,684.40
Gther finandal labllides 736.17 - 736.17 850.38 - B50.38
{b} Cisrernt asseix expected to be recovered within twehe months and after twelve months from the reporting date:
As In Lacs
Partlculars Note As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. Within After Total Within After Total
twelhe twele twelve twehe
munths months months munths
Imventorles 6,191.67 - 6,191.67 5,766.94 - £,766.94
Trade Recelvable 472213 472213 4,976.17 4976.17
Other Financlal Assets 411.78 - 411.78 745,33 - 74533
Other Current Assets 1,387.10 - 1,387.10 1,221.66 - 1,231.66 |

A4 Addttionml Regubabory information

Addifonal Regulatory Information pursuant to Clause 6L of General Instructions for preparation of Balance Sheet as ghven In Part | of Divislon Il of Schedule 11l to the Companles Act, 2013, are
ghven at respective place(s) to the extant relevant and are not of repeatative nature with no additional Information, the same are diclosed appropriately In standalone financlal statements.

45 Figures of the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever required In order to make them comparable with those of current year. Figures have been rounded off to the

hearest rupess In lacs,
As per our attached report of even date

For Kapoor Tandon & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No. 000952C

Divyank Nigam
Partrer
M. No. 4384432

Place: Kanpur
Date: 30-05-2023

For and on behalf of the Board
Muhd, Imran Iftikharul Amin
Director (Finance) & CFO Munaging Direcior

R. K. Awasthi

Company Secretary
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

CIN:.L19131UP1984PLC0O06B421
Regd. Office ;187/170, Jajmau Kanpur-208010

Please complete the aftendance slip and hand it over at the enfrance of Meeting Hall and alsc bring your copy of the enclosed

Annual Report.

ATTENDANCE SLIP
| hereby record my presence at the 38" Annual General Meeting of the company held on 30th September 2023,
Regd. Folio No. DP ID*
No.of shares Client ID*

Name of the Share holder (in block letters)

Signature of the shareholder or proxy

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

CIN:L19131UP1984PLC00G421
Regd. Office :187/170,Jajmau Kanpur-208010

PROXY FORM / FORM NO:MGT-Il
(Pursuant to section105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 1%(3) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rule,2014).

e-mail Id:
Name of the member(s):
Folio No/* Client Id:
Registered Address
*DP Id:
I/We, being the member(s) of of shares of Super Tannery Limited, hereby appoint:
1. __of having e-mail id _orfailing him
2, of having e-mail id_ _or failing him
3 of having e-mail Id

and whose signature(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for mefus and on my/ our behalf at the
38" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Saturday, September 30:2023 at 09.AM. at 187/170 Jajmau, Kanpur,

208010 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
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** | wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:

Resolutions For Against

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Adoption of Audited Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year
ended March 31, 2023 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors.

2.Declaration of Dividend.

3.Re-appointment of Mr. Arshad Khan, who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

4. Re-appeintment of Mr. Mohd. Imran, who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

5.Appointment of M/s Kapoor Tandon & Co (Registration No.000852C). as Auditors of the
Company , and fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS ( Special /Ordinary Resolutions)

6.Appointment of Dr. Rohit Mohan as Non-Executive Independent Director not liable to retire
by rotation for a pericd of 5 years.

7.Donation to charitable and other funds not directly related to the business of the Company.

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form,

Signed day of 2023 Affix
Signature of Shareholder Revenue
Stamp
Signature of first proxy holder Signature of second proxy holder Signature of third proxy holder
NOTE:

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office ofthe Company not less
than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

AProxyneed not be a member of the Company.

Aperson can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. Amember holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person of
shareholder.

Thisis only optional. Pleaseput a'X'inthe appropriate column against the resolutions indicated inthe Box. If youleave the 'For’ or
‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks
appropnate.

Appointing a proxy does not prevent amemberfrom attending the meetingin personifhe so wishes.

Inthe case ofjoint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders should be stated.
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
CIN : L19131 UP 1984 PLC 006421
Registered Office : 187/170, Jajmau Road, KANPUR - 208 010.
Phone No. : 7522000370, 371, 372 Fax No. : 91-512-2480792
Website : www. supertannerv.com E-mail ;: share@supertannery.com

BALLOT FORM

1. Name and Registered address of the
SolefFirst named Shareholder
{In block letters)

2. Name of the Joint Holders, if any

3. Registered Folio No./DP ID No*
(*Applicable 1o investors holding Shares in Demat Form)

4, Number of Equity Shares held

5. |MWe hereby exercise my /Our Vote(s) in respect of the following resolutions 1o be passed at the 39th Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Saturday, 30th September, 2023 for the business stated in the
notice dated 12" August, 2023 by sending my/our assent or dissent to the said Resolution by placing the (X)at the
appropriate box below.

Please mention No. of
Shares

Resolutions No. For Against | Abstain

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Adoption of Audited Balance Sheet and Statement of
Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 together
with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors’
thergon.

2. Declaration of Dividend.

3. Re-appointment of Mr. Arshad Khan, who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
4, Re-Appointment of Mr. Mohd. Imran, who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

5. Appointment of M/S Kapoor Tandon & Company
Chartered Accountants kanpur as Auditor ofthe
Company and fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

6. Appointment of Dr. Rohit Mohan as Non- Executive
Independent Director for a period of 5 years.

7. Donation to charitable and other funds not directly

related to the business of the Company.

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

Place- Kanpur
Date.30.09.2023 Signature of Shareholder
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Note:

1

This form should be completed and signed by the members. In case of Joint holding this form should be
completed and signed {as per the specimen signature(s) registered with the Company) by the first named
member and his absence, by the next name member. Unsigned ballot form will be rejected.

The Vote may be accorded by recording the assent in column'For'or dissentin column' AGAINST' by placing
an X mark in the appropriate Column.

In case of Shares held by Companies, Trust, Society, etc.the duly completed ballot Form should be
accompanied by a cerified copy of Board resolution.

The Scrutinizers decision ofthe validity of the ballotform shall be final.

The Company is also offering e-voling facility as an alternate, for all the members to enable them to cast their
vote electronically instead of dispatching physical ballot form. The detailed procedure of e-voting is sent to
you along with notice of thisAnnual General Meeting.

If a member has opted for e-voting, then hefshe should not vote by physical ballot also and vice-versa.
However, in case members cast their vote both via physical Ballot and e-voting then voting through e-voting
shall prevail and voting done by physical ballotbe treated as invalid.

A member desiring 1o exercise vote by physical ballot may complete this ballot form and send it to the
Scrutinizer Mr.K.N.Shridhar &Assocites 111&108, Chandralok Complex Birhana Road Kanpur 208001.

Members may please note to bring copy of this ballot form to the meeling hall ifthey are coming to attend the
Annual General Meeting personally.
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BOOK POST

If Undelivered, Please return to :
SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur-208010

designed by: skadvertisers@gmail.com
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